









Project acronym	INTERLINK
Project full title	Innovating goverNment and ciTizen co-dEliveRy for the digitaL sINgle marKet
Call identifier	DT-GOVERNANCE-05-2020
Type of action	RIA
Start date	04/09/2022
End date	02/11/2022
Grant agreement no	959201

WP	WP5 EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT
Author(s)	Diego López de Ipiña, Roberto Carballedo, Igone Porto, Daniel Silva and Julen Badiola (DEUSTO), Elena Not and Chiara Leonardi (FBK), Angelo Mazzoli and Michele Cappuccio (MEF), Matīss Veigurs (VARAM), Ana Jiménez and Raquel Povar (ZGZ), Noortje Hoevens (Radboud), Serge Sushkov (TREETK) and Pauli Misikangas (CNS).
Editor(s)	Diego López-de-Ipiña (DEUSTO)
Reviewers	Matīss Veigurs (VARAM), Danilo Giampiccolo (FBK)
Leading Partner	DEUSTO
Version	V1.0
Deliverable Type	R
Dissemination Level	PU
Delivery date	30/09/2022
Submission Date	03/11/2022

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





VERSION HISTORY

Version	Issue Date	Status	Changes	Contributor
V1	05/09/2022	Draft	Initial table of contents	DEUSTO
V2	17/09/2022	Draft	Requested contributions from pilots and other partners	DEUSTO, FBK, Radboud, TREE TK, CNS
V3	28/09/2022	Draft	First contributions from pilots received and other partners	MEF, VARAM, ZARAGOZA, Radboud, TREE TK, CNS
V4	15/10/2022	Draft	First complete version of deliverable integrated	DEUSTO
V5	26/10/2022	Draft	Version ready for revision	DEUSTO
V6	28/10/2022	Draft	Reviews received	FBK & VARAM
V1.0	02/11/2021	Completed deliverable	Revision of the document according to suggestions from the internal reviewers.	DEUSTO





Glossary

ENTRY	DEFINITION
INTERLINKERs	Common building blocks, provided as software tools or in the form of knowledge offered digitally, that represent interoperable, re- usable, EU-compliant, standardized functionality for the co- production of public services
Public Service	Services that are publicly available and are provided by the government or on behalf of the government's residence in the interest of its citizens. In INTERLINK we focus not only on the software services (i.e., the services delivered digitally) but also the services that rely on digital technologies.

Acronyms

ABBREVIATED	EXTENDED
CSC	Unified State and Municipal Customer Service Centres in Latvia
G2C	Government to Citizen
G2G	Government to Government
GA	Grant Agreement
KPI	Key Performance Indicator
MEF	Ministry of Economy and Finance - Italy
VARAM	Ministry of Environmental Protection and Regional Development - Latvia
ZGZ	Zaragoza, capital city of the Zaragoza province - Spain





Table of Contents

E	xecutive summary	12
1	Introduction	14
	1.1. Methodology for Pilot Execution	14
	1.2. Co-production enabling tools deployed at pilots	17
	1.3. Pilots' evaluation strategy	24
	1.3.1. Evaluation goals	25
	1.3.2. Evaluation dimensions and constructs	26
	1.3.3. Measurement instruments to populate KPIs	30
	1.3.4. Automation of KPIs collection	32
	1.3.5. Evaluation journey	34
	1.4. Pilot's operation and monitoring management	38
	1.4.1. Evidence of cross-pilot execution arrangements	39
	1.4.2. Engagement strategy applied	46
2	Pre-pilot subphase evaluation	48
	2.1. Approach followed in evaluation of pre-pilot subphase	49
	2.2. Heuristic Evaluation of the Collaborative Environment prototype v1	51
	2.2.1. The Heuristic Evaluation method	51
	2.2.2. Results	52
	2.3. Alpha usability tests with pilot owners	56
	2.3.1. Methods of the alpha tests in Bologna	56
	2.3.2. Results	58
	2.4. Alpha tests related to co-production concepts: Focus Groups	62
	2.4.1. Methods	63
	2.4.2. Results	64
	2.5. Cross-testing between WP2 and WP5	73
	2.5.1. Methods	73
	2.5.2. Results	76
	2.6. Training sessions with alpha testers (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ)	77
	2.6.1. Methods	77
	2.6.2. Results	78
	2.7 Cross testing sessions with alpha testers (MEE_VARAM_7G7)	00
		00



2.7.1.1. Results	82
2.7.2. Cross testing session with VARAM	
2.7.3 Cross testing session with ZARAGOZA	87
2.8. Conclusions pre-pilot subphase	89
3 Pilot execution subphase evaluation	
3.1. Approach followed in pilot execution subphase	92
3.2. Pilot execution subphase at MEF	92
3.2.1. MEF pilot goals	92
3.2.2. MEF co-production approach	93
3.2.3. MEF activities during pilot execution subphase	95
3.2.4. MEF KPIs	103
3.2.5. MEF's reflection on KPIs	109
3.2.6. Reflections on MEF's pilot execution subphase	110
3.3. Pilot execution subphase at VARAM	114
3.3.1. VARAM pilot goals	114
3.3.2. VARAM co-production approach	114
3.3.3. VARAM activities during pilot execution subphase	
3.3.4. VARAM KPIs	123
3.3.5. VARAM's reflection on KPIs	130
3.3.6. Reflections on VARAM's pilot execution subphase	
3.4. Pilot execution subphase at ZGZ	134
3.4.1. ZGZ pilot goals	134
3.4.2. ZGZ co-production approach	135
3.4.3. ZGZ activities during pilot execution subphase	137
3.4.4. ZGZ KPIs	
3.4.5. ZGZ's reflection on KPIs	156
3.4.6. Reflections on ZGZ's pilot execution subphase	158
3.5. User-behaviour analysis: backend and frontend logging	159
3.5.1. User-behaviour analysis through backend logging	160
3.5.2. User-behaviour analysis through frontend logging	165
3.6. Assessment of quality of the co-production process	
3.6.1. Quantifying quality of the co-production process	169
3.6.2. Co-producers context and experience in INTERLINK	173
3.6.2.1. Experience on co-production	173



	3.6.2.2. Participation in co-production	175
	3.6.2.3. Motivation	176
	3.6.2.4. Reason	177
	3.6.2.5. Inspiration	178
	3.7. Conclusions pilot execution subphase	179
4	Post-pilot reflection phase	180
	4.1. Reflection questionnaire	181
5	o Conclusion	187
R	References	188
6	6 Appendix A – KPIs for pilots' evaluation	192
	6.1. INTERLINK global KPIs	192
	6.2. INTERLINK local KPIs	197
7	Appendix B – Data models of INTERLINK	201
	7.1. Catalogue data model	201
	7.2. Co-production data model	
8 q	B Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users	Perceptions 205
8 q	8 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire	Perceptions 205
8 q	Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users Juestionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire	Perceptions 205 205 205
8 q 9 sı	Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session subphase	Perceptions 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205
8 q 9 su 10	Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session subphase O Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release	Perceptions 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 205
8 q 9 su 10	Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session subphase 0 Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release 1 Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release	Perceptions 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 205 208 210
8 9 51 10 11	Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session subphase 0 Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release 1 Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release 2 Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release	Perceptions 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 208 208 210 212
8 9 5 10 11 12 13	 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session Subphase Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release Appendix H – Co-producers' context and experience 	Perceptions 205 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 208 208 210 212 214
8 9 5 10 11 12 13	 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session Subphase Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release Appendix H – Co-producers' context and experience 13.1. Experience in co-production 	Perceptions 205 205 205 205 205 208 208 210 212 214 215
8 9 5 10 11 12 13	 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session subphase Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release Appendix H – Co-producers' context and experience 13.2. Participation in co-production 	Perceptions 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 205 205 208 210 212 214 215 217
8 9 5 10 11 12 13	 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session Subphase Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release Appendix H – Co-producers' context and experience 13.1. Experience in co-production 13.2. Participation in co-production 	Perceptions 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 205 205 208 210 210 212 214 215 217 220
8 9 5 10 11 12 13	 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users questionnaires	Perceptions 205 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 208 208 210 210 212 214 215 217 220 223
8 9 5 10 11 12	 Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users guestionnaires. 8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire. 8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire. Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session subphase. Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release . Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release. Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release. Appendix H – Co-producers' context and experience. 13.1. Experience in co-production. 13.4. Reason in co-production. 	Perceptions 205 205 205 205 n in pre-pilot 205 208 208 210 212 217 217 217 220 223 226





List of Figures

Figure 1. INTERLINK piloting framework, with a focus on pilot iteration 1(M16-M21)	16
Figure 2. INTERLINK's iteration 1' evaluation journey.	16
Figure 3. Activity types in Pilots Iteration I subphases	17
Figure 4. MEF's customized version of Collaborative Environment	21
Figure 5. VARAM's customized version of Collaborative Environment	22
Figure 6. Zaragoza's customized version of Collaborative Environment	22
Figure 7. Catalogue list view showing some internal knowledge INTERLINKERs.	23
Figure 8. Event Organizer calendar view	24
Figure 9. Catalogue's grid view showing some internal software INTERLINKERs.	25
Figure 10. INTERLINK's default co-production schema.	26
Figure 11. View of ENGAGE phase within Default schema for co-production.	27
Figure 12. Evaluation and assessment strategy	28
Figure 13. Snapshot of user acceptance testing created to validate Product-ba quality. 29	ased
Figure 14. Evaluation and assessment strategy (source D5.1[2])	33
Figure 15. Folder with evaluation questionnaires	33
Figure 16. SQL query to return co-production processes with teams of diffe stakeholder types. 37	rent
Figure 17. Evaluation process in INTERLINK's iteration 1.	38
Figure 18. Collaborative Environment alpha release (April-May 2022).	39
Figure 19. Collaborative Environment beta release (June-September 2022).	39
Figure 20. Collaborative Environment release towards end of iteration 1 (September 2022). 40	15th
Figure 21. Evaluation process timeline	41
Figure 22. Redmine front-end used by pilot participants to manage issues.	43
Figure 23. Information consent form INTERLINK.	44
Figure 24. Feedback (in app) questionnaire designed for the Collaborative Environm 47	ient.
Figure 25. Alpha script questionnaire filled in by alpha testers after pre-evaluation	ation

subphase's activities. 48



Figure 26. Community Building Plan for VARAM	50
Figure 27. Gantt detailing workplan of MEF pilot from April to September 2022.	51
Figure 28. Evaluation process followed in pre-pilot subphase within iteration 1.	52
Figure 29. Number of usability issues found during the Heuristic Evaluation segm by type of the heuristic they violate.	ented 56
Figure 30. Number of usability issues found during the Heuristic Evaluation, segm by section of the Collaborative Environment interface where they occurred.	ented 57
Figure 31. Heuristic analysis results' spreadsheet.	58
Figure 32. Brainstorming session during usability testing in Bologna	61
Figure 33. Usability study spreadsheet.	65
Figure 34. INTERLINK's Collaborative Environment User Manual.	82
Figure 35. Access to support mechanisms from Collaborative Environment.	83
Figure 36. Snapshot of User Acceptance Testing template.	91
Figure 37. Snapshot of co-production tree template.	91
Figure 38. Usability enhancements for Collaborative Environment as result of feedback. 93	pilots'
Figure 39. Evaluation stages of pilot execution subphase.	94
Figure 40. Output of the brainstorming during the first workshop	113
Figure 41. Highlights of the second workshop	114
Figure 42. Geographic distribution of VARAM pilot activities (alpha and beta to workshops) in Latvia (red - big cities; blue - towns; yellow - villages).	esting 118
Figure 43. INTERLINK workshops led by VARAM in various locations in Latvia (fro left: in towns of Bauska, Kuldīga, Sigulda, and Ogre)	om top 134
Figure 44. INTERLINK representation materials and a gift for VARAM pilot itera participants (a notebook, a pen and a solar power bank)	ation 1 135
Figure 45. Habitar Etopia_ to bring together all the agents involved in the inno ecosystem of Etopia. 149	vation
Figure 46. Reminder and additional information on the practical session schedul July. 150	ed for
Figure 47. Collaborative Environment. Cafetopia II event.	151
Figure 48. Collaborative Environment. Cafetopia I with people who are part of eTOPIA ecosystem. 152	of the





Figure 49. Training session II with "Cloud'N'Sci" on eTOPIA's calendar and resource booking application. 152

Figure 50. Exemplary log generated when a resource (asset) created through Google Drive is accessed in Collaborative Enviroment. 163

Figure 51. Grafana dashboard for MEF providing statistics about organizations, teams and users (captured from https://varam.interlink-project.eu/monitoring). 165

Figure 52. Grafana dashboard for VARAM providing statistics about users and their roles in co-production processes. 166

Figure 53. Grafana dashboard for VARAM providing statistics about co-production schemas and INTERLINKERs. 167

Figure 54. Matomo visit overview during September 2022 for MEF pilot. 168

Figure 55. Matomo analysis of visitors' country of origin during September 2022 for MEF pilot. 169

Figure 56.	Matomo analysis	of visits in the pe	riod June to S	September 2022	for MEF pilot.
169					

Figure 57. Matomo insights on an activity celebrated on 15th S	September for MEF.	170
Figure 58. INTERLINK's catalogue data model		204
Figure 59. INTERLINK's co-production data model		206
Figure 60. Collaborative Environment's Workspace view		210
Figure 61. Collaborative Environment's co-production proces	sview	211
Figure 62. Collaborative Environment's co-production Guide	view	211
Figure 63. Collaborative Environment's co-production Team	view	211
Figure 64. Collaborative Environment's WorkSpace view		212
Figure 65. Collaborative Environment's co-production Overvi	ew view	212
Figure 66. Collaborative Environment's co-production Guide	view	213
Figure 67. Collaborative Environment's co-production Workp	lan view	213
Figure 68. Collaborative Environment's co-production Team	view	214
Figure 69. Collaborative Environment's Workspace view		214
Figure 70. Collaborative Environment's Overview view		215
Figure 71. Collaborative Environment's Guide view.		215
Figure 72. Collaborative Environment's Workplan view.		
Figure 73. Collaborative Environment's Team view.		
Figure 74. Experience feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.		
INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3	Page 10 of 229	





Figure 75. Participation feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.	222
Figure 76. Motivation feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.	225
Figure 77. Reason feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.	228
Figure 78. Inspiration feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.	231

List of Tables

Table 1. Identified Pilot risks	19
Table 2. INTERLINK's currently available co-production schemas.	26
Table 3. Dimensions explored and data collection techniques used at pilot sub 40	phases
Table 4. Summary of activities carried out during pre-pilot execution subphase	52
Table 5. Number of usability issues segmented by heuristic and severity level.	57
Table 6. Number of usability issues segmented by interface section and severi 58	ty level.
Table 7. Usability issues scores related to 1) Task completion (scores given by th keeper-observers) and 2) Perceived difficulty (scored assigned by the testers)	ne note- 61
Table 8. Training sessions.	81
Table 9. Cross-testing sessions in pilots.	83
Table 10. Outline of VARAM's cross-testing session	88
Table 11. Co-production process carried out in MEF.	95
Table 12. Engagement activities carried out in MEF pilot.	97
Table 13. KPIs for MEF pilot	106
Table 14. Co-production process carried out in VARAM.	117
Table 15. Engagement activities carried out in VARAM pilot.	118
Table 16. KPIs for VARAM pilot.	126
Table 17. Co-production process carried out in ZGZ.	137
Table 18. Engagement activities carried out in ZGZ pilot.	139
Table 19. KPIs for ZGZ pilot.	153
Table 20. Quality of Service in Co-production processes in the pilots.	173
Table 21. INTERLINK global KPIs.	194
Table 22. INTERLINK local KPIs.	199





Executive summary

This document is the result of **Task 5.4**. **"Use-case operation, monitoring and evaluation**" and **contains INTERLINK platform evaluation results obtained after the first iteration of use-cases or pilots**. It reports on the effort and strategy used for the deployment and the running of use-case operations. This deliverable addresses the following objectives of "WP5 – Evaluation and assessment":

- 05.3 Operate and monitoring the INTERLINK platform during the 2 phases of validation in the three use-cases considered: VARAM, MEF and ZARAGOZA
- 05.4 Evaluate the INTERLINK solution on the three use-cases, in terms of its impact on user community, civil servants and other stakeholders and in terms of the efficiency/effectiveness of the technical solutions.

Task T5.4 ensures a seamless operation of the use-case-specific systems deployed in "T4.5 Instantiation for the use-cases". To this extent, T5.4 has monitored the trial operation in iteration 1 and promptly detected and analysed problems or missing features that prevented a successful execution and, hence, reported them to the appropriate project WP. During the first pilot iteration, these activities have been triggered by PA-specific problems, but their management has ensured project-level coordination for those aspects that have cross-site relevance (as result of "Task T5.1 Coordination of the use-cases").

Furthermore, this task has evaluated the system on the three use-cases. The aim of the evaluation is twofold:

- evaluating the effectiveness of the proposed INTERLINK solutions and at collecting information to improve the system (formative evaluation);
- assessing the level of achievement of the KPIs (defined in "T4.1 Socio-technical requirements") and at identifying improvement actions towards their achievement (summative evaluation).

The evaluation does not only cover technical aspects, but it also investigates the social implications of the adoption of the INTERLINK solutions. It investigates the impact of the INTERLINK solution on the lives of the users, companies, and civil servants to detect its strengths and the barriers/obstacles to its wider adoption. Finally, T5.4 is also responsible for collecting operational best practices and know-how from the different PA experiments and making them available to the other PAs. These activities will be repeated for the two iterations of the PA use-cases.

In essence, in this deliverable "**D5.3 Use-case deployment and operation report v1**", the results of performing the evaluation of the INTERLINK platform in iteration 1 are compiled. Another version of this deliverable, namely "*D5.5 Use-case deployment and operation report v2*" will be produced in M33 after pilots' execution in iteration 2 (see iterations and timings in Figure 1).





Figure 2. INTERLINK's iteration 1' evaluation journey.





1 Introduction

The INTERLINK platform has been installed and operated in three different use-case sites with different operational settings, background, user maturity levels. For this reason, careful coordination of these different use-case sites has been considered to ensure a successful validation of the INTERLINK solution. Detailed plans for use-case pilot activities were prepared in advance (as described in Deliverable D5.1[1]), together with guidelines for community building and engagement (collected in Deliverable D5.2 [2]) and a methodology for evaluation and for measuring pilot specific KPIs (Section 4 of Deliverable D5.1[1]).

This chapter provides a summary of the pilot execution methodology and strategy (goals, dimensions, measurement instruments, evaluation journey) devised together with showcasing the co-production enabling tools made available for pilots. Besides, it provides evidence about the materials prepared and actions executed for the proper pilot's operation and monitoring.

1.1. Methodology for Pilot Execution

According to the methodology defined in D5.1, a plan of action was prepared that prescribed that each pilot use-case (i.e., MEF, VARAM, ZGZ) was to be divided into two sub-phases: a *pre-pilot launch subphase* and a *pilot execution subphase* (*Figure 1*). This section briefly summarises the different steps in which each subphase was articulated. Figure 3 graphically illustrates the planned types of activities that each pilot was suggested to undertake for the execution and evaluation of their own pilot objectives.



Figure 3. Activity types in Pilots Iteration I subphases

Next, we summarise the plan of action that was passed to pilot owners to guide their activities (as a brief excerpt taken from D5.1 [1]). Notice that in section <u>1.4. Pilot's</u>

INTERLINK





<u>operation and monitoring management</u> details about the actual actions executed at each pilot are reported.

Planning of pre-pilot sub-phase (From April 2022 – M16 to May 2022 – M17). It consists of the following actions in the given logical order, although iterations among them are possible.

- Internal release: the Collaborative Environment and a set of enablers (knowledge and software INTERLINKERs) are made available in alpha mode.
- Communication: INTERLINK public administrations (pilot owners) identify and select an internal group of potential alpha-testers (suggested number is between 5 to 10 users per pilot site). For that purpose, the public administrations announce the INTERLINK powered Collaborative Environment and INTERLINKERs, internally.
- Training: supporting documentation about the INTERLINK components are made available to the alpha testers. The alpha testers groups are convened in training workshops where they are invited to use the framework and access the Collaborative Environment and INTERLINK resources (knowledge and software INTERLINKER).
- Support: the different support channels are established and presented to the alpha-testers during the training workshop. Technical issues are reported to consortium members by the different technical mechanisms and support tools provided by the project.
- Measuring & Monitoring: Variables to be measured in pilot trials are established. Monitoring of the early testers of the INTERLINK ecosystem is carried out; gathering of evaluation metrics starts. Some of the early testers are staff from the public administrations or the INTERLINK consortium partners. Technical, procedural or ethical deficiencies are identified and addressed by the INTERLINK support team during M16 and M17.
- External Release: Once the support team solves the most critical reported issues (presumably technical mainly), updated versions (if required) of the framework components, INTERLINK collaborative environment and INTERLINKERs are updated. Users from engaged public administrations are free to access all of these components in release mode.

Planning of pilot execution sub-phase (From June 2022 – M18 to September 2022 – M21). It consists of the following action plan which is iterated through the whole pilot execution:

• Communication: an intensive dissemination must be carried out across different channels to mark the kick-off of the pilot execution sub-phase. Targeted user groups for each trial are reminded that the INTERLINK collaborative environment, reusable INTERLINKERs and co-produced specific public services built for each pilot site are now officially rolled-out urging and incentivizing them to use the INTERLINK ecosystem.





- Support: technical, legal and co-production model support services are maintained across the execution of the pilot.
- *Execution*: INTERLINK framework components are redeployed, after tuning them because of the pre-pilot sub-phase and are made ready for massive access and execution. This activity ensures that the individual deployment per pilot site is kept operative on a 24x7 basis.
- Monitoring: monitoring of the actual pilot users interacting with the INTERLINK ecosystem to co-produce new public services or consume and reuse the co-produced ones. The feedback retrieval during the pilot execution serves to sense the user perception of the services deployed and co-production approach.
- Evaluation: actual data about the usage of the tools by the different users is gathered, aggregated, and analysed. Every month usage statistics and KPIs are generated, and feedback analysis carried out.
- *Reaction*: Early conclusions are driven, and corrective actions are taken in case the pilot is not progressing as expected, monthly. Based on the monthly evaluations some of the following actions are triggered: new communication actions, launch of contests to incentivize usage or modification of available INTERLINK resources to solve issues that may be impeding a bigger adoption.

In addition to the action plan above, a list of potential risks that could hamper the pilots execution was identified, so that risks have been carefully monitored throughout pilot iteration 1 (see Table 1). Some of the corrective actions in Table 1 were directly integrated into the action plan, like the creation of a specific pre-pilot phase to manage more effectively possible software problems.

Risk ID	Probability	Impact	Description	Corrective action
R1	Medium	High	Critical mass problem	Motivate INTERLINK usage through campaigns and incentives. Campaigns have been carried out, no incentives have been used.
R2	Medium	High	Pilot users only use the deployed co-produced services and not leverage the INTERLINK co- production model and supporting collaborative environment	Engagement activities should not be only focused on the public services promotion but also on showing the main features and benefits of the INTERLINK framework components. As a matter of fact extensive communication on the co-production methodology and INTERLINK supporting tools has been carried out.
R3	Low	High	Low involvement of citizens and public administrations	Engagement plans should describe activities to motivate other stakeholders, e.g. citizens and public administrations and local businesses.

Table 1. Identified Pilot risks





R4	Low	Medium	INTERLINK pilots do not successfully develop co- production projects with the support of INTERLINK	Document usage and provide examples of co- produced projects. Motivate INTERLINK framework usage through further engagement activities.
R5	Low	High	General SW failures	A pre-pilot phase has been planned for detecting and solving these kinds of failures. General support tools and procedures for the pilot phases are available.
R6	Low	High	Platform and Services usability	A pre-pilot phase has been planned for detecting and solving these kinds of failures
R7	Medium	Medium	Pilot phase during summer vacation might result in a scarce number of users because July and August is a typical vacation time.	Reinforce engagement activities targeting September and plan well in advance with the different stakeholders the schedule of events/sessions. Involve crucial stakeholders as early as possible. Activities have been extended during the whole of September.

1.2. Co-production enabling tools deployed at pilots

This section describes the three different instances of the Collaborative Environment that were prepared to be used at the three pilot sites. During the pre-pilot subphase an internal release of the platform (called as *alpha release*) was used by alpha testers to refine its operation. As result of the usability, heuristic and training undertaken, an external release open to beta testers in pilots was made open in early June 2022 (*beta release*). The full source code of the software assets prepared by the project is available under the <u>interlink-project</u> organisation in GitHub.

Notably, the **INTERLINK Collaborative Environment** has been designed to promote the following two design goals:

- **COLLABORATION & RE-USE**. The INTERLINK platform offers a digital environment that facilitates collaboration between Public Administrations, private stakeholders and citizens and promotes the re-use of software for delivery of public services.
- **CO-DESIGN & CO-DELIVERY**. INTERLINK provides a step-by-step guidance for the co-design and co-delivery of public services along with guidelines, tips and templates that facilitate the contribution of different actors.

A key outcome of the project is a set of knowledge or software building blocks or enablers, namely **INTERLINKER**s, that a co-production team can re-use and customize to deliver services (see Deliverable D3.1[3] for a detailed description of INTERLINKERs).

Based on these design goals and concepts, the **INTERLINK Collaborative Environment** has been produced to support the co-production methodology of INTERLINK and





facilitate its adoption and application in the co-production of novel public services. It offers the following core functionalities:

- Co-producers' organization, team and project (process) management.
- Guide for co-production process;
- Recommendation of INTERLINKERs most suitable to the problem profiles represented by the chosen co-production task.
- Selection and registry of use (displaying result of using the enabler, e.g. instantiation of a Business Plan) and
- Access to INTERLINKERs catalogue.

The INTERLINK Collaborative Environment is designed to maximize extensibility, adaptation and reusability by making use of declarative models for INTERLINKERs and co-production schemas. (Deliverable D4.3 [4] provides a detailed, technical description of the developed software platform and user interface.)

A flavoured version of the INTERLINK's Collaborative Environment has been deployed which can be encountered at the URLs shown below. The customization has consisted of adapting each environment to the colour palettes used by the pilot owners of the pilots (two central and one local Public Administrations), introducing their logos, adapting the contents to their local languages and populating the catalogue with pilot specific INTERLINKERs, e.g. the Booking one in Zaragoza.

- MEF: <u>https://mef.interlink-project.eu/</u> (see Figure 4)
- VARAM: <u>https://varam.interlink-project.eu/</u> (see Figure 5)
- ZGZ: <u>https://zgz.interlink-project.eu/</u> (see Figure 6)



Figure 4. MEF's customized version of Collaborative Environment

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 18 of 229

ILINTERLINK



Figure 5. VARAM's customized version of Collaborative Environment



Figure 6. Zaragoza's customized version of Collaborative Environment

A range of generic software and knowledge INTERLINKERs has been produced, a total of 62 INTERLINKERs have been made available in release resulting of iteration 1 of the platform. Some examples of software INTERLINKERs for co-production are: a) Tools for ideas crowdsourcing and collaborative decision making; b) Tools for surveys; c) Tools for team management; d) Document sharing and File management tool. On the other hand, some exemplary knowledge INTERLINKERs for co-production are: a) Guidelines and canvas to perform stakeholders analysis; b) Templates for stakeholders' engagement plan; c) Templates for surveys for problem refinement; d) Guidelines and materials for workshops for service design or e) Templates for Business Plans. Some exemplary knowledge INTERLINKERs to build capacity are: a) Guidelines on GDPR for Data Protection; b) Information sheets and consent forms; c) Guidelines on the acquisition and reuse of software for public administrations. Some exemplary software

INTERLINK





INTERLINKERs supporting service building are a) Registration and authentication component or b) Collaborative Editor for public service descriptions.

Notice that a total of 33 internal knowledge INTERLINKERs have been made available for pilots. In Figure 7 provides details of 2 of them. Additionally, a total of 12 external knowledge INTELINKERs have been made available. Some examples are: W3C Web Content Accessibility Guidelines or Open API specification, among others.

	SCATALOGUE	?	٠	Q Search	r .	6
catalogue						
Q. Search						
Nature V Problem profiles V Minimum rating	1: 合合合合合					
Nature: Internal knowledge 💿						
33 INTERLINKERs found						
Business Model Canvas by INTERLINK Collaborative Environment Last update: 3 months ago	This canvas can b brainstorming or business model a	e used collabora a focus group, t ssociated to a co	atively, for o reflect c o-produce	r instance, during on the the most s ed service.	ra suitable	
Nature		R	ating			
internal knowledge		H H	79.79.79			
mode	Keywords					
Collaborative problem refinement by INTERLINK Collaborative Environment Last update: 3 months ago	This resource will by the co-produc effective and effic	support you to tion team as an cient solution.	refine the importan	problem to be a t step to creating	addresses J an	
Nature		R	ating			
internal knowledge		ជ្ជា	ជជជ			
	Keywords					
pro	blem (refinements)					

Figure 7. Catalogue list view showing some internal knowledge INTERLINKERs.

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3





Furthermore, some specific software INTERLINKERs were created for the VARAM and Zaragoza pilots' case, namely:

- Augmenter is an internal Open-Source software INTERLINKER developed by DEUSTO for VARAM that offers the possibility of creating and improving public services descriptions. In the workspace users can share terms, questions and feedbacks, finally an assigned moderator will decide whether to approve or not a suggestion. With Augmenter it is possible to create and improve public service descriptions, organize discussions and keep record of participation and involvement; manage moderator decisions over the improvements; and generate a final improvement report. For more details, check <u>Augmenter's catalogue entry</u> within INTERLINK Collaborative's environment Catalogue component. +
- Event Organiser (also known as the "Booking") is an external software INTERLINKER developed for Zaragoza by CNS which enables co-producing new public events. It offers a calendar view to design the schedule of proposed new events (Figure 8) and tools to specify required resources, write documentation, assign tasks to co-production team members, and co-evaluate different aspects of the proposal. In addition, the tool includes administrative views to manage available resources and select the proposals which can be accepted for production. For more information, check the Event Organizer description available in the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment.



Figure 8. Event Organizer calendar view

In summary, a total of 5 internal software INTERLINKERs (see Figure 9) and 1 external software INTERLINKER (<u>Event Organizer</u>, which is not directly integrated in the Collaborative Environment) have been made available for pilots, namely, <u>Augmenter</u>, <u>Collaborative Editor</u>, <u>Google Drive</u>, <u>Loomio</u> and <u>Survey Editor</u>. Readers interested may click on the provided links for further information provided at INTERLINK's <u>Catalogue</u> on this internal software INTERLINKERs and the mentioned external one. Notably, a

INTERLINK





total of 12 external software INTERLINKERs have been published in the catalogue, e.g. Doodle or Trello.



Finally, the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment has been populated with different co-production schemas, i.e., process models that can be adopted to undertake from generic co-production projects to more specific ones, e.g., organization of a hackathon for Zaragoza or refinement of the descriptions of e-services for the case of VARAM. The INTERLINK Collaborative Environment is flexible to allow the selection of the most suitable co-production schema (see Figure 10 for the default INTERLINK co-production schema and Figure 11 for the wizard through which users may select one of the available co-production schemas) for the co-production process sought or even to customise an

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





existing schema by adding/removing schema elements [5]¹). Table 2 provides a summary of the currently available co-production trees/schemas. It is assumed that a schema is chosen and personalized during co-production process setup. However, it is still possible to change the co-production schema associated to a process during its lifetime, or to modify/add/remove some of the phases, objectives or tasks of a given co-production process.



Figure 10. INTERLINK's default co-production schema.

Table 2. INTERLINK's currently available co-production schemas. **CO-PRODUCTION SCHEMA** DESCRIPTION Default schema for co-This schema support generic co-production process which can accommodate any co-production endeavour. It is composed of production four main phases to be followed by co-producers: a) Engage stakeholders b) Design the solution c) Build the service d) Sustain the co-created service Co-production schema to Specific co-production process developed for co-refinement of support co-refinement of public public service descriptions where citizens, civil servants

¹ Diego López-de-Ipiña, Julen Badiola, Daniel Lauzurica, Daniel Silva, Roberto Carballedo, Diego Casado-Mansilla, Elena Not, Chiara Leonardi, Pauli Misikangas. Fostering multi-stakeholder collaboration through co-production and rewarding. Accepted to UCAmI 2022, 14th International Conference on Ubiquitous Computing and Ambient Intelligence, November 29th to December 2nd, 2022 Córdoba (Spain) - In press

INTERI INK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 23 of 229





service descriptions	managing public service infrastructure and civil servants working at specific departments cooperate.
Hackathon creation process	This co-production schema is designed to guide ideation, preparation, launch and exploitation of a Hackathon devised to address some societal challenges in cooperation between public administrations, citizenry and other PA's stakeholders, namely, SMEs, academia or non-profit organizations.

					← Go back	Use schema \rightarrow
	ENGAGE	DESIGN	BUILD	SUSTAIN		
B Phase Engage			Name			
Objective Identify stakeho	olders		Engage			
🗵 (Task) Understand the	e different types of stakehol	lders	Description Which stakeholders	should be involved in	your co-productic	on process? How
🛛 🔀 Task Map stakehold	ers, analyse motivation, skil	lls, expectations	to communicate wit participation? Learn	h them about your pro about the value of inv	oject goals and the volving stakeholde	e benefits of rs. Use the
🗵 🛛 Task Visually map th	ne network of stakeholders		available knowledge in your project and	e tools to understand v the role they can have	who are the stakeh . Exploit communie	olders to involve cation templates
🗵 🛛 Task Create a contac	ct list of potential network p	participants	to raise awareness, i motivated contribut	invite stakeholders, an ors. Define partnershi	d create a lively ne p agreements and	twork of make sure shared
Objective Engage stakeho	olders		information is prote groups.	cted. Plan together the	e next steps and c	reate working
🗵 (Task) Prepare an eng	jagement plan					
🗵 🛛 Task Create awarene	ess and communication					
🗵 Task Communicate b	benefit for stakeholders					
🛛 🔀 Task Engage citizens	s in the co-production proc	ess				
Fi	gure 11. View of EN	GAGE phase w	vithin Default sch	ema for co-pro	duction.	

1.3. Pilots' evaluation strategy

The evaluation and assessment strategy followed is depicted in Figure 12:

PRE-PILOT SUBPHASE	PILOT EXECUTION	SUBPHASE
April 2022	June 2022	September 2022
GOAL : Instantiation of INTERLINK platform and testing TESTING GROUP I : Selected group of alpha testers (5-10 users/pilot site)[POST (B) group 1) CONTROL GROUP I : Users of current services [PRE(A) group 1]	GOAL: Pilot open to all stakeholders : INTERLIN available to authorized users TESTING GROUP II {POST (B) group II] open set administrations and local businesses (up to 200 It includes [PRE (A) group 1] which also now use 1] who alpha tested INTERLINK CONTROL GROUP II: [PRE(A) group 1] with infor before starting pre-pilot are taken as reference	NKERs and services published and t of users: citizens, public D users are expected) es INTERLINK and [POST (B) group mation gathered pre-pilot or even



Figure 12. Evaluation and assessment strategy

The following subsections summarize the approach followed to undertake the evaluation of pilots' execution, together with the instruments used for it.

1.3.1. Evaluation goals

The evaluation goals of INTERLINK's iteration 1 can be divided into:

- Global or pilot-agnostic goals, including the following dimensions:
 - A. **INTERLINK USE and CO-PRODUCTION of SERVICES**. In this respect, the evaluation considers the number of INTERLINKERs in use, stakeholders involved with the INTERLINK solution during the two Pilots, as well as the co-production of services enabled by INTERLINK, which correspond to the KPIs specified in the proposal and their targets.
 - B. **THE VALUE PROVIDED by INTERLINK**. Along this dimension, the evaluation measures the value improvements provided by the INTERLINK solution. It tries to answer the following questions:
 - a. INTERLINK decreases the PA's administrative and management costs.
 - b. INTERLINK increases the number and quality of co-produced initiatives.
 - c. INTERLINK increases the participation of citizens and private entities in the customization and co-delivery of services.
 - C. **THE USERS' PERCEPTIONS of INTERLINK**. This evaluation goal addresses users' perceptions of INTERLINK regarding acceptance, usability, and trust.
- Local or pilot-specific goals focusing on:
 - D. **PILOT SPECIFIC KPIs**. This evaluation goal considers key performance indicators that are custom made at each pilot site.

"<u>Appendix A – KPIs for pilots' evaluation</u>" shows the KPIs that were defined in deliverable "D5.1 – Use-case plans and guidelines v1" [1]. Notice that in section 3. <u>Pilot's execution</u> <u>subphase</u> it will be indicated what were the specified KPIs that have been eventually evaluated in the pilots for iteration 1. Notice that there were some few miss definitions at specification time, planning time, that once the project has been deployed, operated, and monitored have resulted in a few changes to the original set list of KPIs.





	Create a new organization	Click on ORGANIZATION top menu and then on button "+Create new organization"	"Create a new organization" pops up with form to complete organization details	x
2		Fill in form details: name (e.g. "Organization A"), description, logo, whether the organization details can be accessed by any user or not, who can create teams, i.e. only administrators or any member of a team within an organization, default team type or role, e.g. Citizens, public administration, non-profit organization, for- profit organization)	Organizations view shows in the table of Organization a new row with the details of the newly created organization.	x
5	Create a new team	Click on a row depicting an Organization in the table shown in ORGANIZATION view and click on "+Create new team" button which appears when expanding view of an organization	"Team creation" window pops up with form to complete team details	x
ł		Fill in form details: name (e.g. "Team A"), description, logo, type of team (role of its users, e.g. Citizens, public administration, non-profit organization or for-profit organization) add emails of those already logged in users who should be part of the team (introduce email address and when validated, click on button Add user). Notice that now when you type the name of a user belonging to at least one team in a organization, its name is automatically suggested	A new team appears in view of ORGANIZATION, counter of Teams should be incremented.	x
5	Manage existing team	Click on the team name within one of the shown organizations, all within ORGANIZATION (https://dev.interlink- project.eu/dashboard/organizations) view to manage the team	New pop-up window shows up, displaying team details, including its members	x
		Click on PENCIL ICON to edit team details: you may modify name, description, logo and list of members (adding new ones or removing existing ones). Click on DISK ICON to save changes	You should be back at the ORGANIZATION view, still being selected the ORGANIZATION where changes have been performed https://dev.interlink- project.eu/dashboard/organizations	x
7	Verify right documentation is shown	Click on "?" menu icon on top hand side menu of screen. Click on "Open user manual"	A new tab should be shown with all user manual documentation	x

Figure 13. Snapshot of user acceptance testing created to validate Product-based quality.

1.3.2. Evaluation dimensions and constructs

The evaluation dimensions and constructs defined for INTERLINK are shown in Figure 14. INTERLINK pilots aim to assess whether the co-production model and supporting tools and co-produced assets put forward by the project will enhance the quality, quantity, and reuse of public services among European public administrations (PAs) or not. Consequently, we aim to answer to the following question:

Will INTERLINK co-production model and its supporting tools and co-production enablers (INTERLINKERs) enhance the quality, quantity, and reuse of public services?

This explains that we have decided to measure the "quality" associated to the "coproduction approach" and the tools and INTERLINKERs supporting co-production produced by INTERLINK, looking at the following dimensions, as shown in Figure 14:

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





- Product-based quality: based on ISO/IEC 25010:2011 [6] quality model, this dimension indicates the degree to which a particular service or product conforms to its specification. The quality model determines which quality characteristics will be considered when evaluating the properties of a computer system or software product. The quality of a system is the degree to which the system satisfies the stated and implied needs of its various stakeholders, and thus provides value. Those stakeholders' needs (functionality, performance, security, maintainability, etc.) are precisely what is represented in the guality model, which categorizes the product guality into characteristics and sub-characteristics. The product quality model defined in ISO/IEC 25010 [7] comprises the eight quality characteristics shown in Figure 14 (box on the left). In order to be able to measure the product quality a script to manually check whether the Collaborative Environment meets INTERLINK'S functional and non-functional user requirements was devised. Such script has been bundled as the User Acceptance Testing template knowledge INTERLINKER published in the INTERLINK's Collaborative Environment's Catalogue, see Figure 13. The product-based quality is measured in INTERLINK by calculating the percentage of requirements correctly met by the implementation. For a release of Collaborative Environment to be considered acceptable, we established that the percentage of requirements fulfilment should be 90% or higher.
- User-based quality: based again on ISO/IEC 25010:2011 [6] quality model, this evaluation dimension means that the attributes of a product meet the customer's requirements (in the public sector this is very important due to the need for public accountability). The "quality in use" model is composed of five characteristics that relate to the outcome of interaction when a product, process or service is used in a particular context of use.
 - a. **Effectiveness**: accuracy and completeness with which users achieve specified goals. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK collaborative tools help me to achieve the desired results of the co-production process".
 - b. **Efficiency**: resources expended in relation to the accuracy and completeness with which users achieve goals. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK collaborative tools allow me to perform the steps involved in co-producing a public service in a faster and more resource-efficient manner".
 - c. **Usefulness**: degree to which a user is satisfied with their perceived achievement of pragmatic goals, including the results of use and the consequences of use. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK collaborative tools allow one to better engage in the process of co-producing public services".
 - d. **Ease of use**: understood as the combination of comfort, pleasure and usability perceived by a user resulting in her physical comfort, pleasure from fulfilling their personal needs and satisfaction in a specified context of use. In





INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK collaborative tools are easily graspable and intuitively used".

e. **Flexibility**: degree to which a process, product or system can be used in contexts beyond those initially specified in the requirements. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK collaborative tools can be accommodated to the co-production of different types of public services and used in an ubiquitous manner".

Note that Usability is defined as a subset of quality in use consisting of effectiveness, efficiency, and satisfaction. Usability can either be specified or measured as a product quality characteristic in terms of its sub-characteristics or specified or measured directly by measures that are a subset of quality in use. Besides, we have integrated quality in use from ISO/IEC 25010:2011 [16] with SERVQUAL[18], an approach for measuring customers' subjective assessment of service quality. By means of this approach, through a survey you ask your customers to rate the **delivered service compared to their expectations** [19]. This is precisely the approach followed in INTERLINK, where an evaluation questionnaire has been devised to ask about listed constructs.

- **Value-based quality**: this third evaluation dimension measures whether services are in line with requirements of public services (e.g., legal treatment) and broader societal notions (e.g. democratic values). The following quality characteristics are considered (as also discussed in deliverable D2.3 [8]):
 - a. **Inclusiveness** refers to citizens' perception that the e-government system increases the accessibility of public services and makes service delivery more egalitarian. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK co-production approach is sensitive to digital literacy, people with disabilities (e.g., visual impairment), people with a language barrier (e.g. immigrants) or Internet access demand (offline possibilities to engage with the co-production).
 - b. **Perceived privacy protection effect on customer satisfaction**: Perceived privacy protection is a critical element in evaluating online and offline services. The autonomy of consumers, e.g. to control the use of data might be a further important point in contrast to dependency and subordination (it is thus linked to enabling citizens). In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK is compliant to personal data regulations".
 - c. Democracy: citizens' perception that e-government systems empower the public. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK allows stakeholders to co-design and co-produce public services".
 - d. Public service relevant Weberian principles: Impartiality/Neutrality, Ruleboundedness, Script ability (existence of "files") or Professionalism. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK is





based on transparent rules and regulations and allow for an equal treatment of all people collaborating".

- **Satisfaction** degree to which user needs are satisfied when a product or system is used in a specified context of use. In INTERLINK case, we want to measure the "extend to which INTERLINK methodology and tools satisfy your needs and expectations regarding co-production".
- **Trust** is defined as the belief that a public body will contribute to people's wellbeing through their interaction or actions. In INTERLINK's case, by means of the provision of a co-production model, supporting tools for co-production and co-produced artefacts.
- Acceptance whilst acceptability refers to one's perception of a system before use, acceptance is one's perception of the system after use. Whilst being similar to adoption, acceptance refers to an attitude or perception after using a specific tool or system. IT researchers pay limited attention to the process towards acceptance or the adoption process as a whole, as they tend to focus on the factors influencing the ultimate acceptance. Various 'technology acceptance models' propose a set of factors that are assumed to determine the attitude or perception of users regarding the acceptance of a certain technology [9]. Even though these acceptance models are acknowledged and validated within the field of Information Science, they do not fit the purpose of the INTERLINK project given their limited focus in relation to the process towards acceptance.
- **Adoption** is a multi-phase process starting with "deciding to adopt (selecting, purchasing or committing to use it) and then achieving persistent use".

Notice that all the value-based constructs, together with satisfaction, trust and acceptance have also been measured through a thorough evaluation survey as reported in <u>1.3.3. Measurement instruments to populate KPIs</u>.

In summary, INTERLINK project's hypothesis is that **combining product-**, **user- and value-based quality allows a comprehensive account of the quality associated to the co-production process and the resulting e-government artefacts**. This may lead to higher **satisfaction** on INTERLINK proposed co-production approach and its supporting tools, **trust** on the resulting co-produced public services, which may enhance **acceptance** and, hence, ultimately, aid the **adoption** of co-production results among PA stakeholders. Notice that trust (in technology/government/e-government) is necessary for citizens to participate and at the same time, participation may lead to enhanced levels of trust (in e-government services). More details on the multi-dimensional approach to quality evaluation are collected in deliverable D2.3 - "Governance performance indicators" [8].

IIINTER**L**INK



Figure 14. Evaluation and assessment strategy (source D5.1[2])

1.3.3. Measurement instruments to populate KPIs

Several **quantitative and qualitative measurement instruments** have been produced to be able to assess the **quality associated with the co-production process and the resulting e-government artefacts**. Besides, the impact achieved by the project is measured by the set of KPIs designed and reported in section "<u>1.3.1. Evaluation goals</u>". As a matter of fact, there is a direct link between the dimensions used to assess "quality of the co-production process" and the KPIs devised.



Figure 15. Folder with evaluation questionnaires

To populate the KPIs, the following quantitative measurement systems have been put in place:





- Data model population exploitation. The data models associated to the coproduction process and catalogue of INTERLINKERs are available at "Appendix B <u>– Data models of INTERLINK</u>". As can be depicted in those entity relationship diagrams, all the entities involved in the co-production process and catalogue management are involved. They are used internally by the collaborative environment, but they can be exploited to understand the nature of the coproduction process. This formal data model was also essential to implement automatic methods for selected KPIs calculation (as explained in subsection <u>1.3.4</u> below).
- **Current questionnaires**. Apart from platform usage logs and queries to the Data Model, KPIs per pilot are populated by processing questionnaires. The following questionnaires have been used during iteration 1 of the pilots. Notice that each questionnaire type listed is hyperlinked to a publicly accessible PDF version of the designed questionnaires:
 - a. **Questionnaires for alpha testers**. The following were made available and translated to all the languages used in the pilots, namely: Italian, Latvian, Spanish and English.
 - <u>Alpha scripts</u> which were used to gather feedback from alpha testers on the functionalities of the Collaborative Environment
 - <u>Activity satisfaction and demographics questionnaire</u>, useful to analyse the participants in pilots' activities and to understand the usefulness of the activity promoting co-production and INTERLINK.
 - User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ), useful to understand overall user experience of the tools made available for pilots participants in terms of attractiveness, perspicuity, efficiency, dependability, stimulation and novelty. Interesting to complement usability sessions and to make comparison to benchmark scores.
 - Feedback and Support questionnaires, embedded in the Collaborative Environment have been used to provide quick feedback for continuous improvement of the environment.
 - b. Questionnaires for beta testers. The following were made available:
 - Activity satisfaction and demographics questionnaire, again for those activities used during the pilot execution subphase.
 - Evaluation questionnaires for co-producers and end-users. These questionnaires have been specially designed to be able to cover all the evaluation dimensions and constructs that feed the assessment of quality of service of the co-production process. For example, they include a couple of questions for each measurement dimension such as Usefulness, Effectiveness, Satisfaction or Democratic values. The designed questionnaires have different questions depending on whether





participants belong to the citizens group or to the public servants, nonprofit organizations, for-profit-organizations group. The specific questionnaire for those participants playing a coproducer role was extended with a set of questions to reflect about the co-productionprocess, covering the following areas associated to co-production: a) experience; b) motivation; c) reason or d) inspiration.

Notice some specific new questions were defined in some pilots to be able to answer certain pilot specific KPIs.

Accordingly, the following qualitative measurement instruments have been used in the pilots' execution's monitoring.

- Heuristic evaluation. This is a method in which experts in user interface design and development independently use an interface and identify possible interaction problems according to certain rules of thumb (heuristics) that characterise the usability of the system. It was used with the Collaborative Environment during the pre-pilot phase to identify, in a systematic way, major interaction issues that might impact on the user experience, before the system was further tested by end-users.
- Usability analysis. This is a method for evaluating a product or service by testing it with representative users. During a test, participants try to complete a list of tasks following a scenario, while observers watch, listen, and take notes on emerging issues.
- Evaluation questionnaires. Similar to research questions in academic research projects, guide the methods and tools used to collect data to understand the problem under investigation.
- Focus groups. A group interview involving a small number of demographically similar people or participants who have other common traits/experiences. Their reactions to specific researcher/evaluator-posed questions are studied.
- *In-depth interviews*. It is a qualitative research technique that involves conducting intensive individual interviews with a small number of respondents to explore their perspectives on a particular idea, program, or situation.
- Final <u>reflection questionnaire</u>. This is a list of questions which has the purpose to help pilot owners to reflect, during the post-pilot phase, about how the Collaborative Environment and the INTERLINKERs have been used by the pilot coordinating team and the engaged stakeholders to support the co-production process they have been involved in.

1.3.4. Automation of KPIs collection

Given the richness of the evaluation dimensions and the possible complexity for pilot owners to distil related KPIs manually, it was deemed interesting to put in place two mechanisms to automatically gather KPI values for each of the pilots:





- 1. A spreadsheet named "<u>KPI results</u>", which is updated every hour, shows the latest values for the KPIs (belonging to the evaluation goals "A. INTERLINK USE and CO-PRODUCTION of SERVICES" and "B. THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK" mentioned in previous Section 1.3.1) that can be automatically gathered by formulating queries to the databases of the project, namely Catalogue and Coproduction services relational databases. Their data models (entities that they model and their relationships) are viewable in an online INTERLINK Technical Documentation page² and in appendix "Appendix B - Data models of INTERLINK" at the end of this deliverable. Besides, we have also gathered logs every time a user interacts with the Collaborative Environment. Those logs go to an ElasticSearch database[10]. Thanks to the tool Dremio Community Edition [11] we have been able to issue cross-database SQL queries and joins so that data in the two relational databases (Catalogue and Co-production) and the documentoriented one (ElasticSearch), where usage logs are delivered, can be correlated. An interface for Dremio is deployed at https://dremio.demo.interlink-project.eu/ (login required to guarantee protected access to project data). What can be seen in the "KPI results" spreadsheet is the result of executing queries through Dremio. A specific Python script³ contains the queries that are posted to Dremio to calculate the KPIs, including notation used in the spreadsheet of the KPIs, according to the specification of KPIs shown in "Appendix A - KPIs for pilots' evaluation" at the end of this deliverable. In summary, the "KPI results" spreadsheet contains all the KPIs that we can calculate automatically⁴.
- 2. We have also automated the collection of KPI values for KPIs of category "C. The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK" mentioned in previous Section 1.3.1. For that, the spreadsheet "<u>questionnaire_summary</u>", goes through the evaluation questionnaires completed at each pilot, that should be left in a specific pilotnamed subfolder of the shared project repository. The spreadsheet "<u>questionnaire_summary</u>", through a bespoke script, developed in App Script, retrieves all the files with answers to questionnaires and populates tab "Files" and then with spreadsheet formulas populates tab "Responses". The results of this process can be seen in file <u>questionnaire_summary</u> segmented by month and pilot use case.

The following example, see Figure 14, shows one of the sophisticated queries that have been automatically executed to exploit the Data Models. In this case, it corresponds to

² INTERLINK Technical documentation page for Data Model in github: <u>link</u> (verified as active on 12 October 2022).

³ Python script with queries to calculate KPIs from Dremio data can be consulted at this <u>link (verified as</u> active on 12 October 2022).

⁴ For KPIs automatic calculation, a specific analysis was done in advance, as reported in the <u>KPIs_iteration1_calculation</u> table. We then had to adapt the interpretation of some of the KPIs defined in the master sheet and add some complementary additional ones as reflected in the analysis table <u>Verification KPIs</u>. (access to links verified on 12 October 2022)





the query answering KPI "A13. Number of processes with teams of different stakeholders".

Figure 16. SQL query to return co-production processes with teams of different stakeholder types.

```
SELECT
  SUM(counted coprods)
FROM
 (
    SELECT
     COUNT(DISTINCT coprod_id) AS counted_coprods
    FROM
      (
        SELECT
         DISTINCT coproductionprocess.id as coprod id,
         team.id as team_id,
         team.type as team_type
        FROM
          coproduction.public.coproductionprocess,
          coproduction.public.team
          INNER JOIN coproduction.public.permission ON permission
              .coproductionprocess_id = coproductionprocess.id
          AND permission.team_id = team.id
        ORDER BY
          coproductionprocess.id
      )
    GROUP BY
      coprod id
    HAVING
      COUNT(DISTINCT team type)> 1
```

1.3.5. Evaluation journey

The following figure shows the whole pilots evaluation process carried out. Departing from the alpha version of the platform, the pre-pilot execution subphase (see full details at chapter 2. <u>Pre-pilot subphase evaluation</u>) was executed, delivering the beta release of the solution. From the beta release the pilot execution subphase (see full details at Section 3. <u>Pilot's execution subphase evaluation</u>) was carried out delivering release 1 of the platform. As observed in Figure 17, different evaluation techniques have been applied with the collaboration of alpha (pre-pilot execution subphase) and beta (pilot execution subphase) testers to increasingly improve the INTERLINK co-production model and its associated supporting tools.



Figure 17. Evaluation process in INTERLINK's iteration 1.

Figure 18 shows the collaborative environment that was made available to alpha testers in April 2022 (see <u>Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release</u> for more details). Figure 19 shows how such collaborative environment evolved and was improved as result of the insights gathered during the pre-pilot execution subphase (see <u>Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release</u> for more details). Finally, Figure 20 shows the final look and feel of the Collaborative Environment after the pilot execution phase was completed (see <u>Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration</u> <u>1 release</u> for more details). Notice that higher resolution images are available at the commented annexes.



nem den Franzenske er produktion processe in produktion processe	Not Have International	H (1000) 10 May (1000) 14 May (1000)	37 Workspace (* New process)
			Have a manufacture of end of the second of t
TER INK minister annum		CONTENT OF	
Si Workspace / New process	yaan yaa yaa	Completion collaboration maintenant	Terminy 1 To pick distribution to drapping 1
Workspace Chevroprocess Workspace Work	Image: Image: Imag	Andrew Grand	





Figure 19. Collaborative Environment beta release (June-September 2022).

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 36 of 229




		Here Here Here Here Here Here Here Here	
All another instantions seturate Total total to	• • • = = = •	B TAINTER INK HOME	All inter-out interpretation
 M: Unitable the Mening and Lange Lange M: Simple the Mening and Lange Lange M: Simple the Mening and Lange Lange M: Simple the Mening La		Ageilean Martin	Not Sector Sector

Figure 20. Collaborative Environment release towards end of iteration 1 (15th September 2022).

In chapters 2. <u>Pre-pilot subphase evaluation</u> (formative evaluation) and 3. <u>Pilot's</u> <u>execution subphase evaluation</u> (summative evaluation), we will detail how the evaluation of pilot iteration 1 has occurred, detailing the dimensions explored and the data collected at each subphase. Overall, in the pre-pilot execution subphase the emphasis was on usability and robustness, while in the execution sub-phase the focus was on understanding whether the co-production models integrated in the platform and the supporting tools provided by INTERLINK (INTERLINKERS) supported pilots to accomplish co-production processes successfully or not.

Table 3. Dimensions explored and data collection techniques used at pilot subphases



INTERLINK



DIMENSIONS EXPLORED	Usability User experience Product quality	User-based quality Value-based quality Satisfaction Trust Acceptance
DATA COLLECTIONS METHODS EXPLOITED	Data Logs Cognitive walkthrough Heuristic evaluation Alpha questionnaire Interviews	Data logs In-app questionnaire Online survey Think aloud methods Interviews

1.4. Pilot's operation and monitoring management

This section provides evidence about how the pilot execution operation and monitoring took place in the two planned subphases (see Figure 21). Notice the evaluation dimensions and data collection methods used during the operation of the pilots shown at Table 3.



Figure 21. Evaluation process timeline

The two-fold pilot execution and evaluation were divided into:

 Pre-pilot subphase, also known alpha testing phase, a controlled set of pilot participants (alpha testers) got access to a preliminary version of the Collaborative Environment and associated INTERLINKERs. This subphase served to refine the co-production supporting tools designed by INTERLINK and the evaluation mechanisms put in place, namely, questionnaires or logs. As result of this subphase pilots were ready to execute the actual execution of the pilot open to a wider audience, i.e., beta testers. The results of the operation of pre-pilot subphase are reported in detail in section 2. <u>Pre-pilot subphase evaluation</u>.





2. **Pilot execution subphase**, also known as *beta testing phase*, the pilots opened the execution of pilots openly. They have, thus, reached a wider audience. They made use of the refined version resulting from pre-pilot subphase. Importantly, as result of this phase, we pursued to assess the quality of the co-production process as we reported at 3. <u>Pilot execution subphase evaluation</u>.

The aim of the execution of this first iteration of INTERLINK's pilot (*Exploration stage*) has been two-fold:

- 1. Validate INTERLINK co-production approach innovation potential and adoption barriers.
- 2. Guide the choice of the mature and promising supporting technologies and tools.

1.4.1. Evidence of cross-pilot execution arrangements

The following generic arrangements have been performed and materials prepared on a project wide perspective.

- Pre-pilot launch subphase (M16, April 2022) Milestone 1. Pre-pilot launch subphase (M16 - April 2022). Communication actions were prepared and executed. Knowledge and software INTERLINKERs were uploaded into INTERLINK catalogue where they have been made publicly available across pilot iteration 1. Alpha testers were identified and informed. Technical Support was launched, mediated by <u>Redmine tool</u> (see Figure 22) for within consortium communication. KPIs identified in D5.1 were carefully reviewed, and if needed updated, per pilot site. INTERLINK framework components and INTERLINKERs logs were specified. The steps carried out during this stage were:
 - a. Internal release. Alpha version of Collaborative Environment and INTERLINKERs was released, with associated documentation and user acceptance testing script (see Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release for more details). The resulting co-produced INTERLINKERs were uploaded into INTERLINK catalogue (see <u>INTERLINK's public catalogue</u> for more details). This activity took place at the very beginning of M16, i.e. April 2022.
 - b. **Communication**. Several activities were carried out before M16 and during the whole pre-pilot launch sub-phase to enhance awareness of INTERLINK among its stakeholders. In this subphase alpha testers, i.e. a controlled and reduced set of users were recruited at each pilot site.

These communication activities made use email, videoconference aided and physical meetings to provide the following information to pilot participants:

- Presentation of the INTERLINK project and its objectives.
- $\circ\,$ Presentation of the Use Case and goals.





- Introduction to the activities they're going to be involved in.
- Explanation of the participation benefits.
- Detailed program of the "next steps".
- Link to the INTERLINK platform.

These communication actions took place BEFORE and DURING the pre-pilot execution. The goal was to ensure that a sufficient number of alpha testers was ready to receive training and then perform alpha testing in M17. Besides, diverse communication actions, channels and contents were developed to prepare for external release of the INTERLINK platform by M18, i.e. June 2022.

Test users were informed about trial privacy procedures and policies. All test users had to accept the INTERLINK terms of use before accessing the INTERLINK ecosystem tools. Those users who collaborated for assessing the ecosystem also had to sign a <u>consent form after careful read of an information</u> <u>sheet</u> (see Figure 23) informing about the purpose of INTERLINK and the data collected in its activities and by its tools. In addition, anonymized information on customer feedback provided by the INTERLINK system was made available to project partners for research purposes by means of the alpha testing scripts and activity satisfaction and demographic questionnaires used in this subphase.

∧ Overview - proj_wp5_PILOT_evalu ×	+					\checkmark	_		×		
← → C ☆ ▲ Not secure n	edmine.interlink	c-project.eu /projects/p	roj_pilot_evaluation_mef		e i	☆	*) :		
Home My page Projects Help					Logged in as	diego M	y accou	ınt Sign o	ut 🔺		
proj_wp5_Evaluation » proj_wp5_PILOT_eval	Search:		proj_v	wp5_PIL(DT_eva	aluatio v					
+ Overview Activity Issues	Spent time	Gantt Calendar	News Documents Wil	ki Files	Settings	5					
Overview						N	Add bo	okmark •			
🥃 Issue tracking 👒			💣 Members								
open	closed	Total	role_proj_member: Alessio Chellini, Angelo Mazzoli, Cristina Luengo, Diego								
tracker01 2	2	4	Bernabe, Leonardo Cherubini, Cappuccio, serge2 serge2	, Luigi Rotili,	Maurizio F	Pulcini, M	ichele				
View all issues Summary Calendar	Gantt		role_proj_admin: Chiara Leonardi, Diego Bernabe, Diego López-de-Ipiña, Elena Not								
O Time tracking											
Estimated time: 0.00 hourSpent time: 0.00 hour											
Log time Details Report											
									-		

Figure 22. Redmine front-end used by pilot participants to manage issues.

INTERLINK



TINTER**L**INK

INTERLINK Informed Consent Form

Project: "INTERLINK: Innovating goverNment and ciTizen co-dEliveRy for the digitaL sINgle marKet"

1	I am 18 years or older and I ar	n competent to provide c	onsent.							
2	I confirm that I have read and understand the INTERLINK information sheet explaining the above research project. I have been fully informed about the aims and purposes of the Project INTERLINK. I have had the opportunity to ask questions and/or read FAQs about the project.									
3	I understand that my participation is voluntary and that I am free to withdraw at any time without giving any reason and without there being any negative consequences.									
4	I understand that I have the right of data portability, i.e. the right for people not just to obtain and reuse their data, but also to transmit the data they have provided to another service provider.									
5	I understand that my data will be kept strictly confidential. I give permission for members of the research team to have access to my personal information. I consent to photographs and videos being taken of the engagement sessions. Information may be shared between any of the other researcher(s) and partners participating in this project. I understand that my name will not be linked with the research materials, and I will not be identified or identifiable in the publications that result from the research. I have no objection that my data is published in a way that does not reveal my identity, without my explicit consent. The researcher(s) will ensure to preserve my anonymity.									
6	I understand that, subject to the constraints above, no recordings will be replayed in any public forum or made available to any audience other than the INTERLINK research team.									
7	I agree to take part in the abo	ve research project.								
l d	lo hereby agree and give my co oject.]	onsent for the treatment	of my personal data within the INTERLINK							
Na	ame of Participant	Date	Signature							
Le	ad Researcher	Date	Signature							
IN	TERLINK - 959201									
Inf	ormed consent form		Page 1 of 1							





IIINTER**L**INK

- Pre-pilot launch subphase (M17, May 2022) Milestone 2. Pre-pilot launch subphase (M17 - May 2022). Training actions (see <u>2.6. Training sessions with alpha</u> testers (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ) to target alpha tester groups were executed. Alpha testers started using the tools available in the INTERLINK ecosystem. Measuring and corrective actions were undertaken to ensure a successful trial execution, as shown in the evolution of the Collaborative Environment from alpha (see <u>Appendix</u> <u>E</u> - Collaborative Environment Alpha release) to beta release (see <u>Appendix F</u> -<u>Collaborative Environment Beta release</u>).
 - a. Training. A physical and/or an online workshop was organized to illustrate what INTERLINK is about, how co-production can enhance e-government practices and how INTERLINK tools and powered public services can be leveraged by civil servants, companies and citizens. The presentation used to inform the Advisory Board on 2nd March 2022, was then used to inform and train about INTERLINK and its supporting tools across pilots. Thus, INTERLINK platform components, the collaborative environment and knowledge and technology enablers were showcased to all alpha users through several workshops, walking them through the tools in case that it was needed, and providing them with basic information about how problems could be resolved using the helpdesk. Test users were also informed about the planned pilot duration and subsequent surveys. Actual trainings carried out per pilot are reported at 2.6. Training sessions with alpha testers (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ).
 - b. Support. Technical, methodological, and ethical support was provided to alpha testers to guarantee the highest possible adoption and acceptance of INTERLINK. Support requests were used to enhance <u>user documentation</u> and refine the tools supporting co-production offered to users. It was assured that the trial support team received appropriate training and had access to technical documentation and that basic problem resolving procedures have been explained and are in place. Technical issues were reported to consortium members by the different technical mechanisms and support tools provided by the project, namely, a <u>support web form</u> and a dedicated instance of the <u>Redmine tool</u> (see screenshot at Figure 22). The provided links to these two support mechanisms allow the reader to find more details. Besides a <u>feedback web form</u> (see Figure 24) was made available to enable alpha testers in this subphase and beta testers in the following subphase to provide enhancement suggestions. Such questionnaires were devised to adjust to the corresponding pilot site language.
 - c. Measuring & monitoring. Alpha testers were provided with guidelines regarding usage scenarios that they need to explore with INTERLINK tools. Internal pre-testing (face-to-face cross-testing session), including INTERLINK project members and a set of alpha testers (5 to 10 people) from each pilot, were performed of the INTERLINK ecosystem the whole functionality required for the Pilots Iteration I. Details about the concrete activities carried out are given in sections <u>2.7. Cross testing sessions with alpha testers (MEF</u>,





<u>VARAM, ZGZ</u>). During users' testing logs were generated. Besides, after the testing they were requested to fill in a <u>alpha script questionnaire</u> (see Figure 24). Logs collected and questionnaires received were analysed to verify whether the pilot data capture needs to ensure good validation were achieved. This is, we made sure that with the gathered data we could answer to the project's KPIs (see <u>Appendix A – KPIs for pilots' evaluation</u> and also respond to the project's evaluation dimensions, described in <u>1.3.2. Evaluation dimensions</u> and <u>constructs</u>). These activities contributed to the pre-testing of the logging functionality and the tools to be used for collecting and gathering end-users' feedback.

d. External release. All testing activities performed by alpha testers were scheduled to conclude by mid of M17 so that the second half of May 2022 was used to correct possible mistakes in INTERLINK platform and co-produced services. As a result, an external release of the INTERLINK platform, INTERLINKERs and other needed services was produced on 4th May 2022, as indicated by the interlink project repo tag v1.0.0. Some snapshots of the beta release of Collaborative Environment produced considering the feedback received during pre-pilot execution subphase can be encountered at <u>Appendix F - Collaborative Environment Beta release</u>.



C	🛆 🔒 docs.google	.com/forms/d/1	eLwMXQfiB(G4gRmwj	y5QRDByTv	vsA5yqBQTxXL	JGOcGl-	A/edit	E	\$		*	
Fee	edbackQuestionna	iire_Colla 🗖	☆			Ô	0	5	9		Send		;
			Question	s Res	ponses 2	Settings							
	Section 2 of 6		-										A
	- SOME QUESTIO	NS ABOUT CO	LLABORAT	TIVE EN	VIRONME	NT -				*	:		9
	Description (option	al)											Tr
													-
	Did you like the C	ollaborative Er	nvironment	t design	?*								Þ
		1	2	3	4	5							8
	Not at all	0	0	0	0	0	Ye	s, very i	much ir	ndeed			
	Was the Collabora	ative Environm	ent easy-t	o-use? *									
		1	2	3	4	5							
	Not at all	0	0	0	0	0	Ye	s, very i	much ir	ndeed			
	Was the Collabora	ative Environm	nent useful	for you	?*								
		1	2	3	4	5							
	Not at all	0	0	0	0	0	Ye	s, very i	much ir	ndeed			
	Does the Collabo	rative Environr	nent increa	ase your	chance to	o take part in	ı collab	orative		*			

Figure 24. Feedback (in app) questionnaire designed for the Collaborative Environment.





INTE	ERLINK - AI	Ipha Phase Script 🗙 🕂								~		-	1	
\rightarrow	сò	docs.google.com	n/forms/d/1DN	Ic-ig0CrILLDH	OA0aXVglTt11I	MibeacsKnac	h7n84/edit		e r	۲ 🗋	*		0	
=	INTER	LINK - Alpha Phase	Script for [ll changes saved	l in Drive	© ©	5 0	2	Send		:	(C. C. C.
				Question	s Response	es Settings								
		What is your age? *	• • • • •								(Ð		
		Short-answer text										Ð		
											Ľ	Tr		
											1	-		
		What stakeholder o	category do y	ou belong to	? *						[►		
		O Citizen									I	3		
		O Public servant												
		Non-profit organ	ization											
		C For-profit organi	zation											
		0												
		How would rate you scale)?	ur acquainta	nce consumi	ing web-base	d public serv	ices - e-servi	ces (1-5	*					
			1	2	3	4	5							
		Very low	0	0	0	0	0	Very	high					
		Would you be willin	ig to collabo	rate with us I	by providing r	nore detailed	l information	about yo	ur *					
		experience with IN	TERLINK and	I participate	in a deeper ir	iterview?	an nancible fo	r a deener	interi					
		n so, we will use the	eman you nav	e hrovided ap	ove to contac	r you as soon	as possible to	a ueeper	mevie	ew				
		O Yes												
														0

Figure 25. Alpha script questionnaire filled in by alpha testers after pre-evaluation subphase's activities.

3. Pilot execution sub-phase (M18-M21 - June-September 2022 - Milestone 3. Pilot execution subphase (M18-M21 - June-September 2022). Intensive communication campaigns were addressed to target groups (beta testers) of the trials. Iteratively the communication, support, execution, monitoring, evaluation, and reaction steps of the trial executions were undertaken. Monthly check meetings and evaluations' measurements were undertaken, and corrective actions taken in case there was a need, e.g., update of a given tool to address a common reported issue. Regularly and according to the engagement plan of D5.2





"Community building and preliminary use-cases activities" [2], communication actions were undertaken.

- a. Communication. Communication campaigns for engaging civil servants, endusers and ensuring the participation of citizens and other local stakeholders was critical for a successful evaluation of INTERLINK potential. Iterative communication activities were arranged to ensure build-up of the pilot's community.
- b. **Support**. Basic problem resolving procedures were tackled as described in D5.1's section "1.4. Help Desk: problem resolving approach and support mechanism".
- c. **Execution**. Activities were organized to encourage contribution from different civil servants and citizens. For instance, workshop with public servants, gamified sessions were moderated to intensify the usage of the INTERLINK co-production model and assets.
- d. **Monitoring**. Pilot owner progress was analysed in the pilots by reviewing associated quantitative and qualitative measures".
- e. **Evaluation**. Assessment of pilot objectives was performed halfway and at the end of the piloting stage. The idea was to ensure that positive progress of the pilot evaluation was checked with time to react.
- f. Reaction. When as result of the monitoring or intermediary evaluation issues were detected, the corresponding pilot owner in collaboration with the pilot task force undertook further actions to ensure that eventually the pilot's objectives were met. For instance, the organization of additional workshops with civil servants to ensure further service description enhancement suggestions are received.

The contents of chapter <u>3</u>. <u>Pilot execution subphase evaluation</u> described in detail the different activities belonging to the types above listed, carried out during pilot execution subphase spanning from June to September 2022.

1.4.2. Engagement strategy applied

Motivated by principles of the <u>IAP2 Public Participation Spectrum</u>[12] and based on our previous experience in the WeLive project [13] where a co-creation methodology was created, INTERLINK came up with the following categorization of community building activities suitable for the INTERLINK objectives. These are the different types of activities that can be carried out to attain the participation objective:

- 1. **INFORM ME**: creates awareness using traditional communication methods and channels.
- 2. **GUIDE ME**: assists end-user stakeholders and gives them guidance for how to use the INTERLINK platform.

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





- 3. **CONSULT ME**: obtains end-user stakeholders' feedback on the INTERLINK platform and associated co-production process.
- 4. **WORK WITH ME**: considers end-user stakeholders' concerns and aspirations on the INTERLINK platform and associated co-production process, as well as end-user stakeholders' participation within the co-production process enabled by the INTERLINK. For that, the objective is not only to involve users but also to empower them with co-production support tools and guidelines.

All pilots were requested to elaborate a planning both for engagement activities and pilot execution which were detailed in D5.2. Community Building and Preliminary Use-Cases Activities [2]. As a reminder, Figure 26 shows the timeline of community building and engagement activities of the VARAM use-case. As already mentioned, chapters <u>2</u>. <u>Pre-pilot subphase evaluation</u> and <u>3</u>. <u>Pilot execution subphase evaluation</u> describe each stage and activity in more detail. This chapter finishes by reminding what kind of engagement activities plans each pilot was requested to realize before the start of piloting.



Figure 26. Community Building Plan for VARAM

On the other hand, Figure 27 shows the activities planned by MEF for the two subphases of pilot iteration 1. Notice that through the activities' ID the time when each activity is scheduled can be traced in the Gantt chart (Figure 27).



Figure 27. Gantt detailing workplan of MEF pilot from April to September 2022.

2 Pre-pilot subphase evaluation

This section describes the evaluation activities that were carried out immediately before or during the pre-pilot subphase of the first iteration of use case pilots with the first prototype of the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment in alpha mode. Next, some snapshots of the first version of the project can be seen.

This section, as shown in Figure 28, describes in particular (i) the results of a Heuristic Evaluation session that was performed in May 2022 on the first stable version of the Collaborative Environment prototype, (ii) the preparation of the protocols and the execution of the controlled usability tests performed with pilot owners and other representatives of end-users during the pre-pilot phase (alpha tests), in May 2022, (iii) the methods and results of the evaluation of the co-production concepts featured by the first prototype of the Collaborative Environment, (iv) the results of the training sessions with representatives of each pilot site and (v) the actual cross-testing, i.e. mixing within consortium partner members with pilots' alpha testers, carried out at each pilot site. This sequential process enabled us to improve the co-production tools devised by INTERLINK. As result of it, departing from the alpha release of INTERLINK



platform⁵ (see <u>Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release</u>), its beta release⁶ was produced (see <u>Appendix F – Collaborative Environment Beta release</u>).



Figure 28. Evaluation process followed in pre-pilot subphase within iteration 1.

2.1. Approach followed in evaluation of pre-pilot subphase

Table 4 summarises the activities that were arranged during the pre-pilot execution subphase. Notice that it includes activities that are generic, i.e., cross-pilot, and those that are specific to a given pilot, during pilot iteration 1's pre-pilot subphase.

ТҮРЕ	DATE	ORGANIZER	PURPOSE	PARTICIPANTS (number & stakeholders)
Cross pilot Heuristic evaluation	5 April 2022	FBK	Test the user interface against the 10 usability heuristics of Nielsen	3 experienced usability experts from FBK
Cross pilot Usability testing	31 May 2022	FBK	Usability testing with pilot owners	6 representatives of pilot owners (2 per pilot MEF, VARAM, ZGZ) 6 technical partners (3 from FBK, 3 from DEUSTO)
Cross pilot Alpha test of co- production concepts	Cross pilot Alpha test of co- production concepts 29 April 2022 Deusto & RU 29 April 2022 Deusto & RU imple Colla envir		Contrast RU devised INTERLINK co- production model with Deusto's implementation of Collaborative environment	6 representatives (3 from RU and 3 from DEUSTO)
Cross pilot Focus groups	1 June 2022	RU	Investigation of the story of the co- production initiative, validation and	5 representatives of pilot owners (2 for MEF, 1 for VARAM, 2 for ZGZ)

Table 4. Summary of activities carried out during pre-pilot execution subphase

⁵ Alpha release of INTERLINK platform stored in Github repository at this <u>link</u> (v1.0.0).

⁶ Beta release of INTERLINK platform stored in Github repository at this <u>link</u> (v1.0.14).



			refinement of the Preliminary Governance model (project start and engagement), investigation of the inhibiting and promoting factors encountered (or expected) in the co- production process, regarding the actors involved, the institutional framework and the technology	3 governance researchers from RU 2 HCI researchers from FBK
In-depth interviews	June & July 2022	RU	Investigation of conceptions of digital collaboration, perceptions on its quality, and the influencing institutional, actor-centred and technological factors	4 representatives of pilot owners (VARAM), 1 governance researcher from RU
Training sessions	27/04/2022	MEF	Showcase Collaborative Environment to whole team	3 members from Deusto, 2 from FBK and 6 from MEF
Training sessions	02/05/2022	VARAM	Showcase Collaborative Environment & Augmenter/Servicepedi a + preparation of cross- testing	3 members from DEUSTO team and 2 members from VARAM
Training sessions	29/04/2022	ZGZ	Showcase Collaborative Environment	3 members from DEUSTO team and 2 members from ZGZ
Cross-testing session	23-25/05/2022	MEF	Usability testing with enlarged group of end- users	4 representatives of MEF team and 5 representatives from other MEF departments 1 researcher from FBK 1 researcher from DEUSTO
Cross-testing session	06/05/2022	VARAM	Comparison of Collaborative Environment vs Servicepedia, and of generic co-production trees vs pilot specific co-production trees	7 civil servants from VARAM 3 representatives from DEUSTO





Cross-testing session	23/05/2022	ZGZ	User acceptability script executed in session with alpha testers	2 members from DEUSTO team 6 representatives from ZGA
--------------------------	------------	-----	--	--

The following sections describe in detail each of the activities summarized in Table 4. Notice that all activities within the prefix "*Cross-pilot*" have been organized for all the pilots simultaneously whilst the other activities correspond to specific sessions between consortium's technical partners and either with the pilots or Radboud university. In all activities, technical support was provided either by DEUSTO, CNS, TREE TK and/or FBK team

2.2. Heuristic Evaluation of the Collaborative Environment prototype v1

After the release of the first stable prototype (milestone at M16, April 2022) an expert usability testing was performed in May 2022 to identify, in a systematic way, pending interaction issues that might impact on the user experience, before the system is further tested by end-users. The issues that were identified were grouped according to the section of the interface where they appeared and were assigned a priority for their fixing. The Heuristic Evaluation methodology was applied, as explained below.

2.2.1. The Heuristic Evaluation method

Heuristic Evaluation of a user interface is a process in which experts in user interface design and development independently use the interface and identify possible interaction problems according to certain rules of thumb (heuristics) that characterise the usability of the system. Research studies on the usability of user interfaces of digital systems have demonstrated that several usability experts ranging from 3to 5 is able to discover from 60 to 75% of usability problems.

Heuristic evaluation is not just about testing that the implemented functionalities work (i.e., there are no bugs) or that initial requirements have been satisfied (e.g., everything has been implemented). In performing the test, usability experts maintain the perspective of the end-user and try to understand which elements could confuse them, favour errors or unnecessary complex interactions, demand heavy cognitive load, require further help and guidance.

The heuristics proposed in [14] and further refined and consolidated in [15] have become a defacto standard for the evaluation of user graphical interfaces. Here below we list the well-known 10 evaluation criteria that were used also in INTERLINK (credits to the NNGroup <u>https://www.nngroup.com/articles/ten-usability-heuristics/</u>).





#1 Visibility of system status	The system should always keep users informed about what is going on, through appropriate feedback within reasonable time.
#2 Match between system and the real world	The system should speak the users' language, with words, phrases and concepts familiar to the user, rather than system-oriented terms. Follow real-world conventions, making information appear in a natural and logical order.
#3 User control and freedom	Users often choose system functions by mistake and will need a clearly marked "emergency exit" to leave the unwanted state without having to go through an extended dialogue. Support undo and redo.
#4 Consistency and standards	Users should not have to wonder whether different words, situations, or actions mean the same thing. Follow platform conventions.
#5 Error prevention	Even better than good error messages is a careful design which prevents a problem from occurring in the first place. Either eliminate error-prone conditions or check for them and present users with a confirmation option before they commit to the action.
#6 Recognition rather than recall	Minimize the user's memory load by making objects, actions, and options visible. The user should not have to remember information from one part of the dialogue to another. Instructions for use of the system should be visible or easily retrievable whenever appropriate.
#7 Flexibility and efficiency of use	Accelerators — unseen by the novice user — may often speed up the interaction for the expert user such that the system can cater to both inexperienced and experienced users. Allow users to tailor frequent actions.
#8 Aesthetic and minimalist design	Dialogues should not contain information which is irrelevant or rarely needed. Every extra unit of information in a dialogue competes with the relevant units of information and diminishes their relative visibility.
#9 Help users recognize, diagnose, and recover from errors	Error messages should be expressed in plain language (no codes), precisely indicate the problem, and constructively suggest a solution.
#10 Help and documentation	Even though it is better if the system can be used without documentation, it may be necessary to provide help and documentation. Any such information should be easy to search, focused on the user's task, list concrete steps to be carried out, and not be too large.

2.2.2. Results

A Heuristic Evaluation of the first prototype of the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment was organised on the 5th of May 2022. Three usability experts from FBK gathered in the same room, agreed on the version of the system to test (staging environment, with preselected English language, on Windows operating system) and performed a two-hour extensive test of the interface functionalities. The experts worked independently but consulted with each other in case there was any doubt on how to record or classify the found issues. A schema for issues description was agreed in advance. The following information was collected for each identified problem:





- Section of the interface where the usability issue occurred
- Task that the user was trying to accomplish
- Subject, i.e. a very brief description of the problem
- Detailed description of the problem, with sufficient information for designers and developers to understand what happens during the user interaction with the system
- Usability heuristic which was violated
- Severity of the problem, which corresponds to the priority with which the issue should be fixed

In total, **79 usability problems were found by the three experts**. An initial analysis was performed to merge similar items, which led to a consolidated list of 70 usability problems.

By grouping problems according to the usability heuristic, they violate, as shown in Figure 29, it was observed that most often problems are related to:

- weak consistency of terms and interaction across the platform and the compliance to standard behaviour in user interfaces (heuristic #4, 20% of the total number of issues), like for example the lack of a functionality for deleting a co-production project created by users;
- insufficient visibility of the system status (heuristic #1, 17%), like the lack of notification to people who have been added to a co-production work group;
- the difficulty for the user to remember or recognize the functioning of interface elements (heuristic #6, 16%), like the lack of introductory content that explains what the catalogue of INTERLINKERs is and what the user can do in that interface section;
- some technical terms that may not be familiar to end-users (heuristic #2, 14%), like the presence of a button named "Go to dashboard".







Figure 29. Number of usability issues found during the Heuristic Evaluation segmented by type of the heuristic they violate.

However, not all the issues were considered critical at the same level of severity for the user experience, as summarised in Table 5. For example, numerous usability problems under heuristics #4 related to consistency and standards do not impact heavily on the user's cognitive load. At the opposite, heuristics #1, #2, #5 and #6 helped identify more severe problems, that may make the user struggle in trying to understand what the system is doing (#1), the meaning of words (#2), how to avoid errors (#5), how interface elements work (#6).

	LOW	MEDIUM	HIGH	Total
1. Visibility of system status	3	6	3	12
2. Match between system and the real world	3	4	3	10
3. User control and freedom	1	1		2
4. Consistency and standards	9	3	2	14
5. Error prevention			4	4
6. Recognition rather than recall	3	6	2	11
7. Flexibility and efficiency of use	2	1		3
8. Aesthetic and minimalist design	5	1		6
9. Help users recognize, diagnose, and recover from errors				0
10. Help and documentation			1	1
bug	2	2	3	7
Total	28	24	18	70

Table 5. Number of usability issues segmented by heuristic and severity level.

Usability issues concentrated particularly in the area of the interface where guidance on the exploration of the co-production tree is provided (28% of the total number of issues) and in the navigation of the INTERLINKERs catalogue (21%), as summarised in Figure 30. The low number of issues discovered in the Workplan section of the interface is partly motivated by the fact that, during this cycle of heuristic evaluation, the Workplan functionality was not tested extensively. In fact, this aspect was meant to be further investigated with end-users in a dedicated formative evaluation focus group.



ILINTER**L**INK



Figure 30. Number of usability issues found during the Heuristic Evaluation, segmented by section of the Collaborative Environment interface where they occurred.

About half of the problems found in the INTERLINKERs catalogue and in the GUIDE section of the interface have been considered severe at a medium to high level. Within the section where users can manage their personal workspace and the work teams, a lower number of issues was found but almost all of them should be addressed carefully with priority (Table 6).

	LOW	MEDIUM	HIGH	Total
CATALOGUE	7	4	4	15
GUIDE	9	8	3	20
Landing - ABOUT	1			1
Landing - PROJECT	1	1	1	3
Landing CO-PRODUCTION	1			1
Landing PLATFORM	1	1		2
OTHER		2		2
OVERVIEW	2	2		4
PROJECT CREATION	2		1	3
REGISTRATION	1			1
TEAM	2	2	3	7
WORKPLAN		1	2	3
WORKSPACE	1	3	4	8
Total	28	24	18	70

Table 6 Number of usabilit	v iccuae ca	amontod hv	interface section	h and covorit	v lovo
i ubie 0. Multibel 01 usubilit	y 1330C3 3C	ginenceu by	IIIICI IUCE SECLIUI	I UIIU SEVEIIL	y 16 v CI

IIINTER**L**INK

SECTION	TASK (what the user almed to do)	SUBJECT (brief description of problem)	DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF PROBLEM	HEURISTIC VIOLATED	SEVERITY (will correspond to priority in Redmine)
Landing - PROJECT	 Initial browsing of portal 	The button the user sees "60 to dashboard" is not clear	The users have no idea of what the dashboard is, and this it the first thing they see. This is almost the only point from which to access the personal space A different term should be used and a description should be added to explain what the user will find	2. Match between system and the real world	≠ prio_HIGH •
Landing - PROJECT	 Initial browsing of portal 	Link to "Platform" section	The second section 'Are you a Public Administration, a company \ldots ' should have a button that directs the user to the 'Platform' section	8. Recognition rather than recall	• prio_medium •
Landing - PROJECT	- go to dashboard	what is a dashboard?	it is not clear why an anonymous user should click on "dasboard"	2. Match between system and the real world	+ prio_low -
Landing PLATFORM	 initial browsing of portal 	Button "Go to the dashboard"	The button "Go to the platform" should be available in the "Platform" section too (otherwise the user should go back to the home)	8. Recognition rather than recall	• prio_medium
Landing CO-PRODUCTI	 Initial browsing of portal 	Missing figure of the process- "co-deliver"	The figure related to the "co-deliver" phase is not present	6. Recognition rather than recall	- prio_low
Landing PLATFORM	 download the platform manual 	Platform manual download	download of manual in platform section does not work (no dowload starts)	bug	* prio_low -
Landing - ABOUT	- exploring the About	Pilot brochures are not directly	The button to download the brochure of one pilot redirects to a Google Drive	4, Consistency and standards	* prio_low
REGISTRATION	 request form in different language 	downloadable the request form is in "default language"	I have all setting in english but request form is in Italian	4. Consistency and standards	• prio_low •
CATALOGUE	 first exploration of the catalogue, from home page (no registered user) 	The catague does not have an explanation of what it is and how to use it	The user who first accesses the catalogue (from the public pages) has no idea of what it collects and what they can do with the available resources.	10. Help and documentation OTHER	• prio_HIGH

Figure 31. Heuristic analysis results' spreadsheet.

At the end of the Heuristic Evaluation, the list of prioritised usability issues was reviewed by the development team, who devised proper design or implementation solutions to solve the issues. The outcomes of the usability study and its reaction by performing changes to the Collaborative Environment were gathered at the following table.

2.3. Alpha usability tests with pilot owners

Usability Testing is a method for evaluating a product or service by testing it with representative users. Through Usability testing it is possible to: i) identify problems in the design of the product or service, ii) discover opportunities to improve the designed solution, iii) learn about the target user's behaviour with ICT. Usually during a test, participants try to complete a list of tasks following a scenario, while observers watch, listen, and take notes.

2.3.1. Methods of the alpha tests in Bologna

A workshop was organised during the INTERLINK Plenary Meeting in Bologna (31 May-1st June 2022) to engage Pilots representatives in the testing activities of the Collaborative Environment as part of the pre-pilot activities involving Alpha testers.

The goal was to identify any usability problems, collect data and determine the participant's satisfaction with the product in order to improve it.





The whole testing session lasted approximately 90 minutes and included both plenary and individual activities. Overall, 6 participants took part in the usability testing, two representatives for each of the pilots.

The structure of the working session was the following:

INTRODUCTION. The goal and the method used were explained to participants. Consent forms were distributed and signed by participants.

INDIVIDUAL TESTING. Six parallel sessions were organised to collect focused and structured feedback. In each session a moderator/note-keeper followed the "Usability Testing Guidelines" INTERLINKER (available from the platform catalogue⁷) to perform the test with a pilot representative. A set of more operative instructions and materials to support the activities were also circulated in advance by FBK to all moderators⁸.

During the session, participants were asked to perform a number of tasks using the Collaborative Environment on their PC⁹. During the completion of the tasks, participants were asked to "think-aloud" while interacting with the Collaborative Workspace. This gave the opportunity to understand the participant's cognitive processes. If the participant struggled to verbalise, the moderator could encourage him/her to express his/her doubts and feelings. The sessions were audio recorded and notes were taken by the moderator in a shared file for further comparison and analysis. At the end of each task, the note-keeper asked the participant to rate the perceived difficulty in completing the task (Question: How easy or difficult did you find this task? Ask the user to rate it on a 7-point Likert scale: (1= very easy – 7= very difficult).

BRAINSTORMING. A final collective reflection was organised to share the main issues encountered by testers and collect more general impressions about the Collaborative Environment. The following questions were identified to trigger reflection and promote discussion among partners, based on their opinions:

- 1. Which are the strong points of the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment?
- 2. Which are the major weak aspects?
- 3. What would you like to add to the system?
- 4. What views of the collaborative environment you find most useful?
- 5. Can you imagine yourself using the system in your daily work?

⁷ "Usability Testing Guidelines" Knowledge INTERLINKER, INTERLINK H2020 Project, #959201, publicly available from the system platform from this <u>link</u>.

⁸ "Usability Test Instructions, Bologna | Alpha testing - May 2022" Internal Report, INTERLINK H2020 Project, #959201. Available internally to the consortium from this <u>link</u>.

⁹ "Usability Test. Suggested list of tasks, Test of the Collaborative Environment, May 2022" Internal Report, INTERLINK H2020 Project, #959201. Available internally to the consortium from this <u>link</u>.





The questions were printed on separate sheets and hung on the wall. Participants were asked to elicit their opinion both verbally and writing on post-it notes, in order to collect feedback from all the 6 participants.



Figure 32. Brainstorming session during usability testing in Bologna

2.3.2. Results

Results from the individual testing sessions

Individual testing results highlighted a number of usability issues regarding specific sections of the interface. Looking at the scores related to "Task completion" (the average of scores given by the note-keepers in relation to the observed difficulty of the testers to perform the tasks) and the scores related to "Perceived difficulty " (the average of scores given by testers themselves in relation to the difficulty to perform a





specific task), they both suggest that the most critical issues are related to the following functionalities (see scores in Table 3):

- 1. Team creation,
- 2. Schema selection,
- 3. Knowledge and Software INTERLINKERs exploration and usage,
- 4. Project description editing.

Table 7. Usability issues scores related to 1) Task completion (scores given by the note-keeper-observers) and 2) Perceived difficulty (scored assigned by the testers)

TASKS	TASK COMPLETION (Scores: 1=completed without struggle – 5=not completed, a lot of struggle)	PERCEIVED DIFFICULTY (Scores: 1= very easy 7= very difficult)
1. Landing page exploration	1.5	1.8
2. Registration	1.6	2
3. Project creation	1.5	1.8
4. Team creation	3	3.5
5. Schema selection	3	2.8
6. Knowledge INTERLINKERs explorations, usage	3.3	3
7. Co-production INTERLINKERs explorations, usage	2	2.4
8. Software INTERLINKERs explorations and usage	2.6	2
9. Project description editing	2.3	3.5
10. Catalogue exploration	1	1.3

We summarise in the following the main issues encountered considering the tasks with higher scores in terms of observed and perceived difficulty, that are: team creation, schema selection, knowledge and co-production INTERLINKERs' usage.

The insights coming from this activity set the ground for the improvement of the Collaborative Environment used for the Pilot Iteration 1.

Team creation. The procedure to create a team and to assign different roles was considered quite complex because of the lack of feedback (e.g. notifications and communication to invited users are not available) and lack of visibility of the system status (e.g. the relevant information related to users, roles and teams are not available





in a dedicated space). Besides, the two options provided by the system to add members to a process ("add individual" and "add an individual to a team") were not totally clear for testers that did not understand the action triggered by the two options provided by the system.

Schema selection. In the tested version of the system, users could select different schemas associated with different types of co-production processes (e.g. default schema, etc). This decision impacts on the type of guidance that the user receives throughout the co-production process (through the "Guide" functionality) and on the work plan. These dependencies were not clear for the user and the vocabulary used to support users in selecting the most appropriate schema was considered not clear. Some testers got lost during this activity and could not understand how to progress in the activity. Since the selection of a given schema will impact on the whole experience within the Collaborative Environment, more guidance is needed to support users in setting and managing the most appropriate Schema. Finally, testers asked for procedures to recover from errors (e.g. wrong selection of a schema) and to change the schema (e.g. after an initial testing phase of the schema, users could decide to change the schema).

Knowledge INTERLINKERs explorations and usage. Testers reported some issues in navigating in the co-production three in order to find the correct task. After the selection of the schema and of the team, users couldn't understand how to proceed in the navigation of the system. Some of them misunderstood, for instance, the role of the Overview section and expected to find there the resources needed to carry out a co-production process. Other issues were reported once the user accessed the tree that provided guidance and resources for conducting co-production. A user, for instance, expected to find information on how to create a network of stakeholders before the selection of a schema, because this is often a collaborative task. Concerning the Knowledge INTERLINKERs are suggested for each task. They suggested to better select the resources to present to the users or to have more guidance in order to select the most appropriate INTERLINKERs (e.g. number of stars to communicate the degree of coherence between the Task selected (e.g. Stakeholders mapping) and the Knowledge INTERLINKERs associated (e.g. Stakeholders mapping canvas).

Co-production INTERLINKERs explorations and usage. Co-production INTERLINKERs are transversal collaborative resources associated to all the nodes of the co-production tree (e.g. creation of documents, surveys, discussions, etc.). These resources are crucial to engage in collaborative activities yet they were considered a little hidden in the interface. Several testers could not easily understand how to find these resources





and needed support to find the button to activate them. Some minor errors were also found in relation to each single co-production INTERLINKER activated.

Results from the brainstorming session

After the usability testing, pilots' representatives were prompted with some more general questions to explore the value and the weakness of the Collaborative Environment. We report in the following the main aspects emerged during the brainstorming.

- 1. Strong points of the Collaborative Environment. Pilot owners identified the following aspects as a strong value of the INTERLINK platform:
 - Co-design approach and governance model: participants appreciated the innovative approach offered by the system to co-design and co-deliver services and the possibility to exploit pre-defined schemas for co-production that can be customised and adapted to meet contextual needs. Moreover, the governance framework provided by the system is expected to systematise efficiency and help automate "boring" tasks along the co-production process.
 - Knowledge and software resources available (INTERLINKERs): participants appreciated the quality and the amount of collaboration tools available in the platform that provide, as a participant said, "a complete range of tools to support almost any kind of co-production process".
 - Simplicity of some parts of the interface that guarantee accessibility and usability: in particular the simple access and registration and the simple and informative landing page of the workspace were appreciated.
- 2. Weakness of the Collaborative Workspace. Among the identified weaknesses, participants mentioned the fact that the system could be too ambitious and that several usability issues might hinder users from fully taking advantage of the platform. For instance, participants complained that the user flow and the sequence of the construction of the process are not clear: there are several places in which users can get lost and that require a lot of effort (e.g. defining a personalised co-production process). Participants suggested that guidance in the process page should be improved, and that visual communication could help users in better understanding the flow. A participant suggested, for instance, to visually represent the process (the co-production tree) to make it easier to follow.
- 3. Features to be added to the system. Concerning the new features that participants suggested to release, the following were highlighted: a more compact and homogeneous interface UX with a visual guide with examples on how to manage co-production processes, a personal dashboard where to find data about processes ongoing and important information, more options to modify process or create a new process from scratch, improve the number of collaboration tools and





release the platform as a plug-in for WordPress to better integrate the platform within already existing digital ecosystems.

- 4. Most useful views of the Collaborative Environment. Participants reported that the most useful views were those that support users in understanding the ongoing process and the whole process flow at a glance: 1) Overview page, 2) Process overview, 3) Guide. A participant reported that a better view that connects tasks and INTERLINKERs should be provided to facilitate tasks.
- 5. Adoption of the Collaborative Environment. Participants were asked if they could imagine themselves using the system in their daily work and under which conditions. Participants reported that they recognize the value of the Collaborative Environment, but more training is needed to learn how to integrate the system into the organisational practices. For instance, workshops and other communication initiatives could enhance the adoption of the system within the Public Administrations.

SECTION	TASK	SUBJECT	DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF PROBLEM	HEURISTIC VIOLATED	SEVERITY	SOLUTION PROPOSAL
REGISTRATION	Tring to register as new user	Restration with user and passw says "Invalid password"	The user tried to register as a new user with name, corporate email and password. The system tells that the password is incorrect and provides no information about what the user could do to proceed or how the password should be like. (no notification email was sent to the provided email address)	1. Visibility of system status	 prio_mealum 	1
PROJECT CREATION	 Creating a new co-production project 	Not completely clear where to create a new "project", current terminology a bit confusing	Users were asked to create 'a new co-production project'. Some of them reported a bit of confusion because the button in the interface is called 'create new process' and they were unsure of whether' process' and 'project' meant the same thing.	 Match between system and the real world 	 prlo_law 	Some branstorming on terminology would be beneficial with use case owners (in the different languages) to make sure the terms used in the interface have a straightforward meaning for them
PROJECT CREATION	 creating a new project vs. creating a new group 	Different users have different preferences: some of them would create the work team first and then the project: others viceversa	The participants involved in the PET test had invest preference on this aspect. It serves to depend on percendaria who francisica and on the role in the organization. It was commented that some times ensuring each of the other is the organization. The second preference of the other aspect of the other second second second preference of the project (). In other cases users are those who coordinate the project.	7. Flexibility and efficiency of use	+ prio_low	 It seems good but the infertuse does not force users to tolow a precibie or order of action (e.g. for storced project. Ther note goop or v(cverta)). Bit come suggestation on how to proceed may be useful for novice users. Interpret of the store of the store of the store of the store of the supers. Interpret of the store of the store of the store of the store of the supers. Interpret of the store of the store of the store of the supers. Interpret of the store of the store of the store of the store of the personal store instance of the store of version of the store of the store of the store of the store of the store of version of the store of the personal store instance of the store of version of the store of the store of the store of the store of the store of version of the store of the store of the store of the store of the store of version of the store of the stor
PROJECT CREATION	 selection of language for the process 	Selection of language of process was waluated as not useful	The user thought that the language of the process under creation and the language selected for the overall interface were the same so the usefulness of this option was not clear.	2. Match between system and the real world	+ prio_low	 When the creator of the process selects the larguage, she also decides how this will be seen in the future. This maybe too rigid. It may be the case that multifleguality is desired also at the schema ievel. This would help in international team where each participant would be able to read the information in the schema in their own language. This aspect could be further investigated with pilot owners
PROJECT CREATION	 after new process creation 	Information overload in the first screen that appears after having created the process	After the TristsCreation of a new process. The user is represented to the screen which have all of Information in Final vertical reads on the diel is progress of perioduciton process in the centre, recent resources on the right. This was evaluated as too much for a new user. Users have a lot of information to digest.	8. Asstnetic and minimalist design	- prio, medium	Part of this problem is due to the fact that in this case users had not received an exhaustive transmg on the platform. So they needed thre to depet what was displayed. Bit (however, this comment adout information overload was remarked bits).
PROJECT CREATION	 after new process creation 	The 'recent resources' section that appears after new project creation (and that is empty) is not clear	What is shown in this area is not comprehensible to a novel user	B. Recognition rather than recall	• prio_medium	
PROJECT CREATION	 selection of a new schema 	the selection of a new schema is not initiative	The user is not completely aware of how the mechanism of schema selection works. The desired flow of interaction was not clear. Users made some random attempts- someone mentioned that the 'green button with the 'Use Schema' command was a useful clue. (actually the button is not green, but blue maybe the text was determinant in giving this impression, or the fact that the other button is red)	6. Recognition rather than recall	≈ pria_HiGH	* We will add an alert window to ensure that the users realize of the most of welecting a roven schema.
PROJECT CREATION	 selection of a new 	not sufficient feedback is provided after	After the schema is selected with "use schema" the user has no real confirmation of what	1. Visibility of system status	→ prio_HIGH	* Users suggested a pop up of confirmation after the association with the
PROJECT CREATION	 selection of a new schema 	Information overload in the screen for schema previews	Users commented that the mixture of vertical element (menu on the left) and horizontal tabs (the phases of the schema) and the vertical unfolding of the tree are a bit confusing (too much information to evaluate)	8. Aesthetic and minimalist design	+ pria_meatum	Not sure how to simplify it, any suggestions? more textual explainations in the window? further alert dialogues?
PROJECT CREATION	 selection of a new schema 	difference between the three alternative schemas is not evident	The benefit of using one schema instead of another is not clear and this makes the decision making diffult	6. Recognition rather than recall	→ prio_medium	 We need to show when somebody pre-selects a schema a list of succes cases that would inform the user the goodness of such schema. This is difficult to implement now. We should currently rely on the description of

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/15mAKK0JMH160XCYzTF7MrSr18oJpIZNb/ edit - gid=953445392

Figure 33. Usability study spreadsheet.

2.4. Alpha tests related to co-production concepts: Focus Groups

A focus group[16] is a group interview involving a small number of demographically similar people or participants who have other common traits/experiences. Their reactions to specific researcher/evaluator-posed questions are studied. A Focus Group around co-production topic was organized on 1st June 2022 in the plenary meeting celebrated in Bologna, Italy.





2.4.1. Methods

The methodological approach was threefold: 1) introduction meetings for a first exploration of the empirical field in our three use cases and 2) focus groups with all use cases. Furthermore, starting to 3) conduct in-depth interviews to already produce results for the VARAM case.

The Radboud team organized introduction meetings during the pre-piloting phase with MEF (12/04/2022), VARAM (12/05/2022), and ZARAGOZA (18/05/2022), in relation to the use-case analysis and the integration between the Advanced Governance model and the use cases. The aim of these meetings was to learn more about the status of the use cases, as well as gather initial feedback on the Preliminary Governance model (see Figure 10). In addition, agreements were made on future collaboration, especially regarding the use case analysis (i.e., the in-depth, expert interviews).

During the meetings, the subsequent agenda was followed:

- 1. Current status of the use case (e.g. crucial questions/issues within the collaborative process)
- 2. Feedback on the Preliminary Governance model (e.g. how can it be developed in order to be more helpful?).
- 3. Discussion on current governance mode (i.e. Governance as a Platform or Citizen Sourcing)
- 4. Outlook: further collaboration this year (e.g. interviews for the in-depth case study analysis foreseen in the proposal)

Secondly, focus groups with the use case owners were organized at the Bologna meeting (01/06/2022). The objective of organizing the focus groups in Bologna was for the Radboud team to (1) understand the story of the co-production initiative to the current status quo of the realization, (2) validate and refine the Preliminary Governance model described in deliverable D2.1[17], based on the experiences of use cases for the start of the project and the engagement phase, and finally (3) to learn more about the inhibiting and promoting factors encountered (or expected) in the co-production process, regarding the actors involved, the institutional framework and finally, technological factors.

After the focus groups organized during the Bologna meeting, the Radboud team conducted in-depth interviews with public employees from the Latvian Ministry (VARAM). In the following months, in-depth interviews will also be conducted with public employees from the Italian Ministry (MEF) and Zaragoza. The in-depth interviews with VARAM (organized online at 17/06; 21/06; 05/07; 18/07) focused on three themes: (1) conceptions of digital collaboration, (2) perceptions on quality of digital collaboration,





and lastly, (3) institutional, actor-centred and technological factors influencing digital collaboration.

2.4.2. Results

VARAM

The introduction meeting with the VARAM team focused on the discussion on the current governance mode, which turned out to be <u>Citizen sourcing</u>¹⁰. There was an agreement during the meeting that the current status of the use case, as well as the initial objectives, can be linked to this type of co-production (i.e. citizen sourcing). However, more generally speaking, the VARAM team also considers <u>Government as a</u> <u>Platform</u>[18] as an applicable mode of governance, based on their activities. During the focus group and interviews, several aspects were further discussed in-depth.

Conceptions of digital collaboration

Within the Latvian ministry, digital collaboration is overall understood as working together with different stakeholders using digital technologies in order to achieve a certain objective (Interview 1). The public officials include internal stakeholders (i.e., government-to- government) as well as external stakeholders (i.e., government-to-business/organizations and government-to-citizens) in their understanding of digital collaboration, which hints at a rather broad conceptualization. While the officials make no distinction between different technologies or collaboration practices, they emphasize that digital collaboration should yield results (Interview 1-3). This suggests that the (perceived) benefits of digital collaboration. Moreover, Latvian public officials indicate that they do not have any difference in their notion of digital and non-digital/analogue collaboration processes, besides the use of digital technologies (Interview 1-2). In their view, the main goal of collaboration remains the same, only the means are different. However, the risks and challenges that come with digital collaboration can be quite different.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the internal use of digital technologies has increased remarkably within the ministry. Digital technologies are now at the centre of everyday activities, such as remote communication and sharing files online. While these technologies enable/facilitate digital collaboration within the organization (i.e.

¹⁰ <u>Citizen sourcing</u> is the government adoption of crowdsourcing techniques for the purposes of (1) enlisting citizens in the design and execution of government services and (2) tapping into the citizenry's collective intelligence for solutions and situational awareness.





between sub-units), they have a lesser amount of experience with digital collaboration focusing on external stakeholders. The ministry appears to be most familiar with digital collaboration in the area of government-to-government collaboration. They are, however, increasingly exploring options to engage citizens via digital technologies, in order to strengthen government-to-citizen collaboration. This interest is based on their rather broad conceptualization/understanding of digital collaboration and fuelled by the underlying assumption that a higher level of stakeholder engagement will lead to a better outcome (Interview 1-2).

In addition, the public officials expect that digital collaboration has certain benefits in contrast to non-digital collaboration. Digital collaboration is expected to reduce the amount of manual work and thus the administrative burden for officials coordinating the collaboration process (Interview 2). This might improve the quality of the gathered data and the following data analysis. Moreover, digital technologies allow for specific elements and information linked to collaboration processes to be stored digitally and re-used. This decreases the risk of losing relevant information (e.g. information on how a process was previously organized) when public officials change jobs.

Perceptions on quality of digital collaboration

In order to investigate digital collaboration in our cases, it is important to understand on which basis public officials judge the quality thereof. The analysis is based on our three pillars of quality of digital collaboration outlined in the theoretical framework.

The VARAM team emphasizes a user-based understanding of the quality of digital collaboration. The public officials in the Latvian ministry agree that the usefulness of digital collaboration should hereby play a central role, as public organizations should yield results in their opinion (Interview 1-3). Furthermore, one use-case owner emphasizes that the outcome of the process should be in line with the expectations of stakeholders (Interview 2). "Even if we do everything right, according to methodology, some people are still not satisfied because it was not what they expected" (Interview 2). This suggests that when stakeholders have different expectations towards digital collaboration, the actual quality might sometimes be overlooked, which shows that stakeholders' perceptions of quality might differ from the perceptions of public officials. This makes judgements on the overall quality of digital collaboration difficult. Next to usefulness, flexibility, and the quality of access to the digital collaboration process are also deemed important by the public officials, since these processes should be open to everyone willing to participate (Interview 4). Moreover, efficiency is





perceived as the least important aspect of user-based quality. One use-case owner, however, noted that efficiency should automatically come with ease of use (Interview 1). This suggests that efficiency might not be considered unimportant but is perceived as incorporated in other aspects of quality.

VARAM furthermore stresses the importance of a value-based perspective on digital collaboration, i.e. the extent to which collaboration processes are in line with normative expectations and broader societal norms. All use-case owners acknowledge that the inclusiveness of digital collaboration processes is the most important aspect of value-based quality (Interview 1-3). Even though the ministry experiences difficulties with motivating people to engage, they try to include as many diverse voices as possible (Interview 1-2). The public officials perceive that this is very much in line with democratic values (Interview 1), suggesting that this aspect is also deemed important.

Considering quality perceptions and possible challenges immanent to digital collaboration, the public officials raise some concerns regarding the involvement of citizens within the processes (Interview 1-4). These concerns often relate to certain elements of user-based and value-based quality, such as inclusiveness and access. One of the main challenges of digital collaboration concerns the lack of digital skills. This lack of digital skills results in some citizens not being able to join digital collaboration processes. Furthermore, some people have no access to the internet or computers, which makes it impossible to engage in digital collaboration processes (Interview 1-2).

Institutional, actor-centred, and technological factors influencing digital collaboration For the Latvian ministry, the findings show that several institutional factors appear to play a central role in the eyes of public officials: 1) the administrative culture and attitudes towards digital collaboration, 2) the organizational resources and 3) the interplay between the two.

Input from external stakeholders is largely considered as valuable for the development of services or ICT solutions (Interview 1-3). Some use-case owners even believe that citizen input is a crucial aspect of public policymaking (Interview 1). Regarding usability, one public official states that "usability can only be achieved by approaching the endusers" (Interview 2). Within the ministry, it is therefore believed that relevant external stakeholders (mostly concerning citizens) should be involved, especially on the subnational and local levels (Interview 2). However, the present-day/prevailing work ethic within the Latvian ministry is not particularly based on collaboration. In practice, since the ministry operates on the conceptual level (mostly developing guidelines), they often





do not directly engage with external stakeholders. Reaching out to stakeholders within the ministry (i.e. internal collaboration) only happens occasionally, given the independence of departments/sub-units (Interview 2). Taking into account the general work ethic, the step towards external collaboration, more specifically citizen engagement (i.e. government-to-citizen collaboration), can be viewed as quite revolutionary (Interview 1). In order to realize this, it is aimed to reach and engage citizens via municipalities or local communities as this level has a longer tradition of an administrative culture that includes citizens and other external stakeholders.

Furthermore, it is recognized that citizen input does not automatically lead to better results. According to one use-case owner, "you don't have the assurance that the input will be valuable" (Interview 1). Involving stakeholders means reaching out to citizens and organizing some kind of process, which can be messy and time-consuming. The attitude towards citizen involvement is, therefore, still reserved at the national level. Furthermore, the involvement of citizens is often viewed as impracticable and therewith a waste of financial resources (Interview 1-2).

Besides, there are some doubts regarding the willingness of external stakeholders to get engaged. These doubts might enhance the general, reserved attitude toward citizen involvement in digital collaboration processes. Nevertheless, it is believed within the ministry that citizens must be encouraged in order to get involved (Interview 2). In response, the public officials are now considering rewarding citizens for their participation (e.g. with presents). The perceived lack of interest also encourages the ministry to ensure that participating in digital collaboration processes will be worthwhile for stakeholders. However, since they lack experience, this proves to be a challenge.

In addition to the administrative culture and the organizational resources, the current practices and procedures are also perceived as influential in relation to the quality of digital collaboration. Hereby it is important to note that the current practices and procedures are linked to the organizational resources. For example, the amount of available financial resources determines the scope of current practices and procedures within an organization. Although the Ministry strives for inclusive stakeholder engagement, currently the situation is such that only a handful of experts(-citizens) are involved in respective processes. It is less time-consuming and thus cheaper to talk with experts, even though it is less in line with democratic values (Interview 1). Furthermore, public officials are used to the existing procedures





regarding working with external stakeholders. This might make it difficult to introduce new stakeholder engagement practices, focused on extending the scope of stakeholders.

Lastly, the capabilities of public officials are also believed to influence the quality of digital collaboration processes. Even though digital tools are considered to enhance collaboration with external stakeholders, there are also some doubts that relate to the digital skills of some public officials, which tend to be rather divergent. Whilst almost every public official knows how to work with a computer or browse on the Internet, it appears to be very difficult to attract actual IT professionals within the Ministry (Interview 1). As a result, officials involved in digital collaboration processes do often not understand the system/digital tool they are working with. This might lead to a situation in which they are unable to effectively facilitate digital collaboration processes or involve external stakeholders.

MEF

During the introduction meeting with the MEF team, it became clear that they could use support regarding stakeholder engagement. It was, therefore, agreed that the results of the literature review and thus the state-of-the-art-based knowledge on stakeholder engagement (included in Deliverable 2.1: Preliminary Governance model [17]) would be summarized and shared with the MEF team. Hereby, the academic results will be translated into points for practitioners. In addition, all MEF team members agreed that this use case can be categorized as <u>Government as a Platform</u> [18]. The agreement on this is taken up as an objective for the exploratory use case analysis.

Co-production is understood to involve stakeholders and to collect needs and requirements from them, in order to co-design services. Within this use case, stakeholders entail employees of various Public Administrations (PA) and managers of other public bodies. Hereby a distinction is made between internal and external stakeholders.

Regarding the story of the co-production initiative, the MEF team joined the INTERLINK project because they considered it as an opportunity to find a methodological and technical solution for managing co-production. The aim of MEF is to be among the first Italian PAs that can share their lessons learned with others, regarding how to better provide public services. While the Italian Ministry sometimes manages co-production initiatives itself, it is also possible to delegate the leadership to external consultants. In addition, IT is provided by an in-house company called SOGEI. The Italian Ministry hopes





to foster more initiatives and eventually involve more stakeholders. On the one hand, it was relatively easy to identify internal stakeholders. The internal group consisted of colleagues who are interested in the project. A few obstacles were hereby met (e.g. time resources of staff involved). On the other hand, it was more difficult to identify and involve external stakeholders. MEF asked for participation from other directorates, wanting to reach people who manage IT solutions of other PAs or people who manage HR processes. First, potential participants were reached via a top-down approach (official letter), then they reached potential participants via a more bottom-up approach, by using direct contacts of friends to encourage more replies.

Considering the mode of governance, MEF agreed that by making services available to other PAs, their governance process can be categorized as Government as a Platform. The Italian Ministry emphasizes that they are not responsible for the resulting activities, only for realizing the Participatory Strategic Planning Module (PSPM). In addition, since there are no citizens involved, co-production within this use case can be explained as an example of Government-to-Government collaboration.

In the focus group session during the Bologna meeting, several aspects were further discussed in-depth.

Perceptions of digital collaboration

Digital tools are seen as a way to strengthen the overall collaboration of public administrations. According to the use case respondents, it means to involve users and stakeholders and to collect from them needs and requirements for the co-design of services. In their understanding, collaboration is seen as connecting better different levels and units within the public sector. Being a case of Government as platform means at the moment a focus on government-to-government collaboration. Among the respondents it was discussed that the introduction of digital tools might mean a change of long-established structures and routines. It must thus be considered a quite fundamental change. It was furthermore stated that the introduction of digital tools for collaboration is still in an early stage, especially regarding connections across organizational borders both horizontally and vertically. Also in this use case, the pandemic was seen as an accelerating phenomenon. In this context, new digital tools were used and formed the grounds of a willingness to further search for new tools that might enhance collaboration.





Digital collaboration is overall rather positively connotated. It is seen as a way to increase the coordination of information, decisions and actions. However, it is aimed to go beyond simple coordination by using digital tools for collaborative decision-making. This is what the current project on designing an online Participatory Strategic Planning Module (PSPM) is set-up to achieve. It is supposed to allow the active participation of administrative stakeholders, i.e. other public bodies, in the ministry's strategic planning. Although collaboration is not new to the ministry, they hope to foster more initiatives and to have the opportunity to involve more stakeholders by leveraging the use of digital tools. The overall aim is to also become a role model within the Italian public sector. They would like to become one of the first Italian public administrations that can share with others the lessons learned on how to better provide public services based on digital collaboration.

Perceptions on quality of digital collaboration

For MEF, the value-based pillar seems to be the most important. In the establishment of services, it is important for them to meet the requirements, especially in the public sector context. That is why they engage the top management level of public organizations in the development of digital collaboration. They sometimes organize presentations and events to share with the top management of other PAs the fact that they are going to create new services so that they can provide us with feedback and requirements. Respondents stress that it is also important to talk about responsibilities and accountability in a value-perspective on digital collaboration. Whereas the ministry sees its mandate in the development of services of digital collaboration, they do not want to be seen as responsible for the resulting activities. The respondents also stress the importance of the user-based quality perspective on digital collaboration. Usefulness is hereby stressed as the most important factor. For example, there is agreement that there should always be an assessment phase before starting a collaborative initiative to understand whether and in which way collaboration in general and digital collaboration in particular is really fit for purpose. Therefore, they would find it very useful if there was the development of an 'assessment methodology' for those pre-development processes. To ensure the usefulness of digital collaboration, active stakeholder engagement in the process of the development of a new service is deemed important by the respondents.

Institutional, actor-centred, and technological factors influencing digital collaboration Many inhibiting or promoting factors identified in theory were recognized by the MEF team. Starting with the actors involved and institutional factors, the attitude of managers appears to be very important. This relates to the culture of collaboration,





which also plays a central role. In general, there is no culture of collaboration since the majority still prefers working in the traditional way. Furthermore, co-production is seen as time-consuming and expensive ("not worth the investment", which is also considered a cultural issue. Hereby, it is important to match hopes with what will happen. A lot of distrust is caused by a mismatch between high hopes and what is delivered. In general, trust within the public sector is low in Italy. It is, therefore, extra important to manage expectations.

Finally, focusing on the technological factors, it appears to be crucial that a platform is easy to use. In addition, sufficient training is viewed as important. At this moment, the way in which the process is built is not very understandable. It would greatly help the MEF team if there was a guide available. However, the Italian Ministry feels that the INTERLINK platform can help by initiating or improving co-production processes.

ZARAGOZA

During the introduction with the Zaragoza team, it became apparent that they are experienced with initiating processes of co-design and co-delivery, for which they have launched living Etopia. INTERLINK is meant to be the technological part of this process. Since Living Etopia is already launched, they cannot wait too long on INTERLINK. It is, therefore, important that the project catches up in terms of technology. Otherwise, it will be difficult to align the technology with what is happening in practice.

The main objective appears to be the systematization of the co-creation process as a whole. The Collaborative Environment has a lot of tools that can be helpful to improve co-creation processes. According to the Zaragoza use-case owners, the city hall cannot do everything by itself (public organization), they need input from other institutions to do their day-to-day programming in Etopia. Not surprisingly, this use case is quite familiar with co-creation and co-delivery with citizens or other stakeholders. This suggests that the governance mode 'Public-Civic Partnership' [19] is most applicable for them. However, citizens do not enter the collaborative environment, yet. At this moment, citizens do not even need to know that INTERLINK exists for this use case.

The Zaragoza team emphasized that the end-users of technology (such as citizens) should play a guiding role and should be the central focus. However, this is often not the case in practice, where technology is guiding and central at the moment. It would be





helpful if the project could focus more on the social side (i.e. the people), in order to understand how co-production processes go in practice and start from there.

In Bologna we further discussed the Zaragoza case. In this case, it is clear that the organizers consider the current state of affairs in the project, also regarding the development of technology, too premature in order for citizens to already be involved. In the current phase, there are five stakeholders involved (ZGZ City Hall, ZGZ City Knowledge Foundation, University, Business Incubation). This, however, does not mean that the decisions so far are taken by these stakeholders. In fact, most of the stakeholders have their own programs and use the Etopia building. The ambition is to sit together in the future and to co-create the program. A big question mark is: how to orchestrate this as there is not yet a director to bring people around a table and develop a shared program?

The lack of coordination and direction also partly explains why there are still no citizens involved. Currently, open calls are used to find parties that might provide the best solutions. Subsequently, local partners (public administrators) and local councils are involved to further develop the best idea and there Etopia comes in to implement a first prototype. As of this moment, the Zaragoza team aims to raise interest and to get a more diverse group of people involved in Etopia.

The expectation is to involve citizens in the second phase of the INTERLINK project because citizens should be sure about their role and expected participation within the process. This all has to do with the awareness that citizens' expectations need to be managed and well understood. In the long run, it is expected that the role of citizens will evolve over time. First, they have to come to Etopia as kind of passive end-users. Later on, they can become more active actors, if they are willing to invest more time. Then they will also get more experience and build expertise. So, there might be a need to develop a kind of reward system, in order to get actors to become more involved.

Having said all this, there is still the question of the suitable governance model that fits this practice. The initial idea was that the Zaragoza use case represented a 'Public-Civic Partnership' mode of governance. However, the lack of citizen involvement has implications for the co-production practices and indicates a different mode of governance (e.g., 'Government as a Platform').




The current plan for INTERLINK is to co-create "Habitar Etopia", an internal process of co-creation among the 5 stakeholders. Examples of activities are co-creating spaces in Etopia (Cafeteria, etc), co-creating signals, and co-creating a park. For the second iteration, sessions with citizens will be organized and performed in order to co-create the program for 2023.

2.5. Cross-testing between WP2 and WP5

This activity took place on 29th April 2022. It was a 90' long meeting, 2 members from Radboud team and 3 members from Deusto team attended. This session was devised to perform an additional cross-testing session, but, this time, with the consortium members that devised the default co-production model of INTERLINK, namely Radboud University, i.e. those that are experts in Open Government and political sciences. The main aim of this session was the following:

Assess how suitably the Collaborative Environment enables to realize the INTERLINK co-production model

2.5.1. Methods

Throughout the cross-testing session, DEUSTO presented the functionalities of the Collaborative Environment in an interactive manner. The goals of the session were to showcase the Collaborative Environment to the Radboud team (1), propose an evaluation exercise (2) and gather feedback (3) on how well the 'technical people' have interpreted and adopted the devised co-production model produced by the Radboud team into the Collaborative Environment. Dr. Marlies Honingh and Noortje Hoevens were the alpha testers of the Radboud Team.

In order to provide context for the subjective assessment session, Radboud was requested to reflect on how co-production is being carried out by a co-production team within the Collaborative Environment by proposing them to follow the reflection document Focus Group Template Co-production Investigation. However, because of the short duration of the session, we decided to skip this part after the explanation of its purpose.

Next, Radboud's team was reminded about the functionalities of the Collaborative Environment, at that time during alpha release, by showcasing its functionalities through the following steps:

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





- 1. Participants were requested to login with their google credentials or create their own credentials at <u>https://demo.interlink-project.eu/</u>. Only previously logged in users are able to be added to a team.
- 2. Create a team for those willing to take part in a co-production process
- 3. Create a new co-production process where the artefact to co-create is specified, designed, built and its sustainability defined.
- 4. Choose a co-production process guide (flexibility to choose the best fitting schema). There were several co-production trees available, some generic other specific to a pilot, e.g. co-refinement schema for VARAM, at the time. Customization of them was only possible by enabling deletion of tasks.
- 5. Create new roles and new teams with different rights than the core co-producers' team (role scoping is not yet considered)
- 6. Use the guide to co-produce an artefact, e.g. project to co-assess the implementation of the co-production methodology of INTERLINK through the collaborative environment
 - a. For each of the tasks in the co-production phases you may select any of the recommended INTERLINKERs or instantiate a new one based on the generic software INTERLINKERs available at the bottom of the screen shown when selecting a co-production task
- 7. Review progress of project in OVERVIEW view of Collaborative Environment.
- 8. Browse and select INTERLINKERs by accessing the Collaborative Environment's catalogue
- 9. Provide feedback: <u>alpha questionnaire</u> or semi-structured interview

After the demonstration of the solution, Radboud team was asked to experiment/work with the Collaborative Environment. Hence, Radboud co-evaluation team created a co-production process to perform an evaluation of its collaborative environment. They followed these steps:

- 1. Ensure that team members have logged in at least once at https://demo.interlink-project.eu/
- 2. Create a team "Radboud co-production team for co-evaluation of collaborative environment" to jointly generate an assessment of the environment and its capabilities to carry out collaborative processes. Add at least 2 members to the team.
- 3. Create a co-production project, namely "Co-evaluation of the co-production process"
- 4. Go to settings and ensure that the project has a good logo. Click on the pencil icon and then SAVE.
- 5. Click on "Team" left hand side menu and add the created Team to the project. Click on hyperlink of the Team view to modify team composition if wished.
- 6. Click on "Overview" and select the co-production schema (tree) to use. Choose "Default schema"





- 7. Hit on "Guide" and start as a team co-evaluating the collaborative environment
- 8. Browse through the different phases of the co-production guide
- 9. Select objectives within a phase
- 10. Select tasks within an objective
- 11. Instantiate a generic INTERLINKER, where feedback with your observations can be gathered in a shared Google Docs with the rest of the co-evaluators
 - a. Select BUILD > Technical Implementation > Technical implementation
 - b. Hit on "Initiate Procedure" > "Create a Google Drive document" > create asset "Feedback about usage of Collaborative Environment"
 - c. Ensure that all team members edit and insert their comments in such shared document
- 12. Explore navigation between "Guide" view and "Workplan" view by hitting on "Time planification". Test changing the Time planification of a task, by hitting on the pencil and selecting start and end period.
- 13. Explore navigation between "Overview" view and "Guide" view by hitting on "See Task"
- 14. Pick one of the recommended INTERLINKERs
 - a. Engage > Identify Stakeholders > Stakeholders Mapping Canvas
 - b. Click on button "Instantiate as resource to use in the project"
 - Check the newly created resource at the bottom of the page under "Current resources"
 - c. Open the presentation and add some modifications
- 15. Continue inspecting the different tasks and INTERLINKERs that are recommended for 5'
- 16. During the whole process PLEASE GATHER YOUR IMPRESSIONS / FEEDBACK on the shared document entitled *"Feedback about usage of Collaborative Environment"*. From OVERVIEW you can simply click on the resource title to be able to open it.
- 17. Answer the alpha questionnaire cloned for Radboud testing. You can record its location by creating a generic INTERLINKER of type "Link an external resource". Please produce an answer to the questionnaire per co-evaluator

Finally, the following questions were posed to trigger the discussion:

- 1. Do you feel that the Collaborative Environment has reflected well the INTERLINK co-production model?
- 2. What do you think about the possibility of customizing co-production trees to adequate it to specific scenarios / use cases in pilots?
- 3. Would you use this collaborative environment to organize collaborative activities in your team?
- 4. What about creating a specific process to co-evaluate the co-production model?





2.5.2. Results

During the cross-testing session, the first task was to create a team that wants to take part in a co-production process. Subsequently, a co-production project was created and a co-production process guide was chosen. The process guide is based on several co-production trees and can be customized to fit the specific needs and requirements of a unique co-production process.

Here it is crucial to note that it might be difficult for coproducers to make a decision on the co-production process guide since they often do not know which phase is relevant for them. In addition, who gets to (eventually) decide which phase is relevant? It would be helpful if the Collaborative Environment offers guidance with regard to this aspect.

Then, new roles and new teams were created. This activity led to a discussion on the need for the coordination of co-production activities/processes. The Radboud Team assumes that coproducing via the Collaborative Environment requires coordination, for example by a project manager. In other words, someone is needed who (amongst other things) initiates the tasks, creates shared folders, responds to comments, initiates voting activities and decides when to move on to the next phase.

Overall, the cross-testing session raised several questions and concerns. The most important ones are listed here:

- How do coproducers find the Collaborative Environment in the first place?
- Who initiates the co-production process? And thereby the use of the Collaborative Environment?
- Is someone in charge (also for inviting people to a specific project/team)?
- And who decides how the roles are assigned?
- Can all team members initiate and/or remove tasks on their own?
- How does the (design of the) Collaborative Environment take the digital divide into account?
- How does the (design of the) Collaborative Environment take visual impairments into account?
- If you have questions regarding the environment, is there an option for help? Or are there possibilities to provide feedback?

Several questions and concerns were already addressed accordingly by DEUSTO during the cross-testing session.

Finally, the Radboud team expressed their concerns regarding the possibility that the Collaborative Environment will guide and determine co-production processes, instead





of the other way around. This might lead to a focus on the possibilities in terms of software design, instead of the requirements of good governance in relation to coproducing public service provision.

Some recommendations issued by Radboud team were:

- Enhance flexibility of the roles scope, in phases. A solution could be to assign scope, i.e. phases, objectives, task where a given role applies.
- Classify schemas according to difference governance models (citizen sourcing, government as platform). More guidance on the choice of schema should be provided.
- Resolve the issue that communication feedback loops are not possible right now. A possible solution is to stress usage of Loomio INTERLINKER Forum option on the left-hand side menu could also be considered.
- Management of co-production should be improved, i.e. tackle the governance issues immanent to the co-production process. This entails answering questions such: Who starts? Why somebody is the admin or initiator of the co-production process? Who does what and why?
- Co-production processes and their outcomes have to follow some PA's regulation. Hence, it would be necessary to attach validator or rules that verify that PA regulations and Weberian principals are properly followed. However, it remains open to different interpretations how a correct trade-off between freedom and rules can be obtained.

2.6. Training sessions with alpha testers (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ)

A range of training sessions were organized to get pilot owners familiarized with INTERLINK co-production methodology and its supporting tools. The aim of these training sessions was to present what Collaborative Environment and Augmenter INTERLINKER (in the case of VARAM) do.

2.6.1. Methods

After a short presentation about the features of the INTERLINK platform provided by DEUSTO team, representatives of each pilot were given the following script with steps to carry out, on their own, when having a first go with the Collaborative Environment and the Augmenter INTERLINKER (for the case of VARAM), i.e. when embarking in a coproduction process supported by INTERLINK. Next, the instructions that were provided to trainees:

 You should all be able to use it by supplying at login in time, google credentials or define your own login credentials. Notice that to add members to a team they must have logged into the platform previously

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3



- 2. Create a team and a co-production process
- 3. Choose a co-production process guide
 - a. You may customize such tree to the specific needs of your co-production process
 - b. Observe that specific co-production trees can be defined (see VARAM's corefinement process tree or hackathon arrangement and operation process tree)
- 4. Use the guide to co-produce SOMETHING by instantiating INTERLINKERs
 - a. For each of the tasks in the co-production phases you may select any of the recommended INTERLINKERs or instantiate a new one based on the generic ones available
- 5. Review progress of project in OVERVIEW
- 6. Browse and select INTERLINKERs by accessing the Catalogue
- 7. Never forget to fill in the <u>alpha questionnaire</u>

As we can see, essentially the same script as the one offered to Radboud consortium colleagues as shown in <u>2.7. Cross testing sessions with alpha testers (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ)</u>, was offered to pilots' alpha testing participants to test the Collaborative Environment potential for managing co-production processes. The key mechanism of gathering feedback was to request them to fill in the alpha questionnaire. When time allowed in, an informal conversation between the chairing team, from DEUSTO and often with the support of FBK, of the training session and the participants was held, to be able to gather extra feedback.

2.6.2. Results

TYPE	DATE	ORGANIZER	PURPOSE	PARTICIPANTS (number & stakeholders)
Training sessions	27/04/2022	MEF	Showcase Collaborative Environment to whole team	3 members from Deusto, 2 from FBK and 6 from MEF
Training sessions	02/05/2022	VARAM	Showcase Collaborative Environment & Augmenter/ Servicepedia + preparation of cross- testing	3 members from DEUSTO team and 2 members from VARAM

Table 8 shows the details of the training sessions arranged in the three pilots.

Table 8. Training sessions.

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3





Training sessions	29/04/2022	ZGZ	Showcase Collaborative Environment	3 members from DEUSTO team and 2 members from ZGZ
-------------------	------------	-----	---------------------------------------	---

These sessions served to check whether the Collaborative Environment was usable or acceptable for those pilot representatives that should push its usage from its pilot's site. It was understood that the environment had a certain learning curve. As a response, a user manual was created to facilitate the process, see

Figure 34. The main outcome of realizing these sessions was to get pilot owners trained to guide other alpha testers and future beta testers (for pilot execution subphase) in the evaluation of INTERLINK co-production model and supporting tools. Apart from the user manual for Collaborative Environment publicly available at https://demo.interlink-project.eu/docs/en/, attendees to training sessions were informed about other support mechanisms made available by the project, namely: a) support questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; b) feedback questionnaire available from Collaborative Environment; and c) Redmine deployment for INTERLINK support tool. Whilst the latter tool is devised for more advanced users, the first two instruments can be used by any pilot participant, being alpha or beta tester.

Figure 34 shows how these support mechanisms can be accessed from Collaborative Environment.

Interlink documentation	Interlink user manual	÷;
Q Search	CONTENTS: • Dashboard	
CONTENTS: Dashboard Catalogue of INTERLINKERs	 Catalogue of INTERLINKERs Overview of a co-production process Guide view of a coproduction process Workplan view of a coproduction process Overview of a coproduction process 	
Overview of a co-production process	 Organization and team management in co-production processes Settings of a co-production process 	
Guide view of a coproduction process Workplan view of a coproduction process Organization and team management in co-production processes Settings of a co-production process	Indices and tables Index Module Index Search Page 	
		Dashboard >
	Copyright © 2022, Interlink team Made with Sphinx and @pradyunsq's Furo	

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 79 of 229





Figure 34. INTERLINK's Collaborative Environment User Manual.

		11 m m m
Zarago	Coproduction process overview	Open user manual Feedback form
agoza Apps4Good	PROGRESS RESOURCES (0)	Support form
English	Set coproduction process data	
relieve	The co-production process data are a set of attributes that serve to define the process to be carried out	
6	Go to settings section	
Again	[OPTIONAL]Set coproduction process administrators	
	🧭 🛞 The administrators of the coproduction process data has been defined. (2 administrators)	
tings	Go to settings section	
	Select the coproduction schema	
	O The schemas are used to create the initial phases, tasks and objectives of the to-production process. From there, the resulting to-production tree can be freely modified. Click on the but process.	ton and search for the optimal coproduction schema for your
	Select in scheme	
	Grant permissions over process to co-producer teams and start co-producing through Guide view	
	C Al feast a permission has been created.	
	(OPTIONAL)Add new resources to the coproduction process	
	3 🕜 Now you can add resources to the tasks in the coproduction process. For that, navigate to the Guide section and add new resources in the Resources tab available in each task	
	into managementary metalamit	

Figure 35. Access to support mechanisms from Collaborative Environment.

2.7. Cross testing sessions with alpha testers (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ)

These sessions aimed to organize cross-testing sessions involving INTERLINK consortium members and a set of alpha testers (5 to 10 people) at each pilot to assess the whole functionality required for the Pilots Iteration I, pilot case by pilot case. This cross-testing sessions followed the training sessions, so that at each pilot there was already a small group of users that were familiarized with the environment and that could aid other fellow alpha testers at their pilot.

The setup of these sessions was as follows:

- 1. Technical partners (DEUSTO and/or FBK) offered an introduction to INTERLINK, its tools and the objectives of the cross-testing session.
- 2. Participants got access to the testing environment https://demo.interlink-project.eu/
- 3. Participants completed an <u>alpha questionnaire</u> through which they may report back any issues identified during scenario-based testing sessions.

Table 9 shows the details about the cross-testing sessions arranged at the different pilots.

Table 9. Cross-testing sessions in pilots.



ТҮРЕ	DATE	ORGANIZER	PURPOSE	PARTICIPANTS (number & stakeholders)
Cross-testing session	23-25/05/2022	MEF	Usability testing with enlarged group of end- users	4 representatives of MEF team and 5 representatives from other MEF departments 1 researcher from FBK 1 researcher from DEUSTO
Cross-testing session	06/05/2022	VARAM	Comparison of Collaborative Environment vs Servicepedia, and of generic co-production trees vs pilot specific co-production trees	7 civil servants from VARAM 3 representatives from DEUSTO
Cross-testing session	23/05/2022	ZGZ	User acceptability script executed in session with alpha testers	2 members from DEUSTO team 6 representatives from ZGA

2.7.1. Cross testing session with MEF pilot

Besides the usability testing in presence at the INTERLINK consortium meeting in Bologna (2 participants from MEF), the MEF partner organised an online usability evaluation of the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment with a group of 9 alpha testers.

The alpha testers group included: INTERLINK-MEF internal team members (4 participants), and employees of other MEF departments that sometimes collaborate in joint projects (5 participants). For the latter type of participants, it was the first time that participants saw the interface.

The goal of the evaluation was to identify major usability problems from the end-user point of view and to investigate which functionalities seem to be missing and what in general should be improved.

The usability evaluation was structured in two workshops held online on different days.

During the first workshop (23 May 2022), one researcher from FBK moderated the meeting and one researcher from Deusto participated as an observer. Participants were asked to perform several tasks using the Collaborative Environment on their PC





[20]. They were not offered a specific training session on the environment in advance, as one of the objectives was also to evaluate the learnability of the system, i.e., how easy it is for novice users to understand the overall concept of the platform, whether the structure of the graphical layout is clear, and functionalities are put in places and work as users would expect. Given the fact that the test session was held online and in a group work setting, the think aloud methodology was not applicable. For each task that participants were asked to perform, the moderator provided a description in simple terms. Some time was then allowed for participants to try and execute the task and a short discussion followed each task. The moderator kept notes on paper on the usability issues that were mentioned by participants.

A second workshop was organised two days after (25 May 2022). The same group of alpha testers were invited to participate. But this time the group worked more freely at exploring the Collaborative Environment, without specific guidance.

At the end of the workshops, participants were asked to fill out the specific alpha phase script questionnaire to collect further comments and usability issues [21]. (The questionnaire is included in the evaluation protocol described in project deliverable D5.2[2]).

2.7.1.1. Results

Results from the group testing sessions

The detailed list of all the usability issues emerged during the workshops was passed to the platform developers for prioritisation and identification of possible design refinements and implementation solutions. We summarise in the following the main issues by concentrating on those aspects that pertain to the co-production workflow and on user's expectations about guidance.

Order of tasks for project and team creation. The participants involved in the MEF test had mixed preference on this aspect: some of them would create the work team first and then the project; others vice versa. Preference seems to depend on personal work practices and on the user role in the organisation. It was commented that sometimes employees are assigned to work on specific projects by their manager (so they cannot choose or create the projects they work on); in other cases, users are those who coordinate the project. What emerges as very important is that the profile of users (e.g. their expertise, their role, their responsibility) may be quite different. This aspect might suggest the utility to refine the design of the Collaborative Environment to include possible personalization features or alternative views based on the user's role.





Risk of information overload. Some sections of the alpha release prototype were very rich in the information that was shown to users. This was the case, for example, for the Overview page of a co-production process, showing at the same time both the current advancement status of the process (at the centre of the screen) as well as a summary list of the created resources (in the right area of the screen). Furthermore, not all the information may be relevant for all the users: this is a consequence of the different roles that users of the platform may have (e.g., coordinators of a co-production project vs. external stakeholders being consulted). This comment was immediately taken up by developers, who divided information in different tabs and simplified what is shown to users who do not hold coordinating roles.

Selection of the schema. The procedure to select the schema of co-production that is used to build the backbone of the guidance process was not clear to users. Apart from the usability issues that emerged also in the Bologna test sessions and mentioned above in Section 2.3. Alpha usability tests with pilot owners participants said that the benefit of using one schema instead of another is not clear and this makes the decision very difficult. For the future, this issue points to the need to provide more help and elements of comparison to support the decision making. Co-production schemas should be associated with stories of usage that would better inform users on schemas' purpose and goodness of fit.

Guidance to co-production. Even though the co-production schema determines the creation of a set of ordered phases, objectives and tasks that users can visualise in the "Guide" section, some participants felt that this was not the only guidance that is needed. The information offered in the Overview section on the advancement state of the process was commented as a good place to show what to do next. For the system prototype to be prepared for iteration 2 the possibility to partially merge the functionalities in Overview and in Guide section could be considered for a re-design of the guidance process.

More structure to the catalogue of INTERLINKERs. In the initial information pages of the portal (landing pages), users learn that there are different co-production phases (e.g. engagement, co-design, etc.). Alpha phase evaluators commented that they expected to be able to filter the catalogue of INTERLINKERs also by phase, to see what are the resources that support specific phases. More in general, the current filter mechanism available in the catalogue should be improved to provide a more user-friendly navigation.

Language preferences. In prototype v1, users are offered the possibility to choose the language for the content displayed in the interface and, as a separate choice, the language for the description of phases, objectives, and tasks of a certain co-production





schema. Once the language for the schema has been selected at co-production process creation time, it cannot be changed. This system behaviour reflects an implementation choice that creates a clone of the schema data model, in a specific language, for each new co-production process to allow for possible customizations (both (A) in the structure of the co-production tree as well as (B) in the nodes descriptions) decided by the project team. Alpha testers from MEF commented that two separate language choices, one for the overall interface and one the schema description, seemed redundant and counterintuitive. They expected that a unique choice was available to command the display of all the contents in the interface. This would also help in international teams, where each participant would be able to read the information in the schema in their own language. This aspect could be further investigated with pilot owners during the fine tuning of the system prototype for iteration 2 to understand how important it is for end-users to make changes to the texts describing co-production nodes (point (B) mentioned above).

Results from the questionnaire

The questionnaire that participants were asked to fill in at the end of the group usability testing contained the following general questions: What works well? What does not work? What should be added? What is missing? What should be improved?

Some of the issues mentioned by participants in their answers remark aspects that have already been described in the previous sections of this report. It is worth mentioning here a couple of additional suggestions that participants felt as important:

- 1. An additional form of personalisation could be introduced by adding a tab/section with "preferred INTERLINKERs";
- 2. A tight integration inside the platform of INTERLINKERs that provide essential collaboration functions would be desirable, like for example the possibility of having Loomio completely integrated with the Collaborative Environment. In particular, the need (in alpha release) to create separate teams both in Loomio and in the Collaborative Environment was considered an unnecessary duplication.

2.7.2. Cross testing session with VARAM

The aim of this cross-testing session was to "compare in parallel alpha testers groups trying to co-refine public Service descriptions, using different co-production trees on Collaborative Environment vs using a specific tool for web page augmentation (Augmenter/Servicepedia)". This activity was designed to engage VARAM staff in the first test of INTERLINK collaborative environment and Servicepedia/Augmenter INTERLINKER.





Impressions of participants were recorded in order to make some last improvements and changes of the collaborative environment before releasing it for beta testing.

As a matter of fact, this activity merged training (demonstration) and feedback session. After completion of tasks, alpha testers filled in questionnaires specifically designed for alpha test as well as provided oral feedback which was recorded in a separate shared file.

All participants were employees of VARAM Project Management Department (people not associated with INTERLINK project) who engaged in co-production in the role of a citizen. INTERLINK-associated employees moderated the task together with representatives from DEUSTO.

The process followed in the organization of this session was as follows:

- 1. Candidate participants to take part in alpha test were sent an invitation by email with the text appearing in the first part of the following public accessible <u>document.</u>
- 2. A videoconference link was sent to all those that showed interest. Attendees were arranged in 2 groups, once they joined the call.
- 3. Before starting the working session, attendees were offered a live demo guided by presentations of <u>Augmenter INTELINKER</u> and the <u>Collaborative Environment</u> possible use for service description augmentation.
- 4. Both teams were invited to undertake the following two tasks:
 - Task 1: Refinement of "<u>Academic recognition of educational documents</u>" service description: Refinement of a service description using Augmenter and INTERLINK: compare the process using a stand-alone tool (Augmenter) and the platform (INTERLINK). During the first task, team 1 followed the Augmenter/Servicepedia route whilst team 2 followed the Collaborative Enviroment route.
 - Task 2: Refinement of "<u>My Data in Cadastre</u>" service description using different co-production models: Refinement of a service description using different co-production models: compare the process using a generic coproduction model and specific model for VARAM purposes. During the second task, team 1 - Collaborative environment used the "Default co-production schema", whilst team 2 - Collaborative environment used the "Co-production schema to support co-refinement of public service descriptions" of INTERLINK. All activities lasted 20' each.
- 5. Users completed an alpha questionnaire at the end of the two sessions that they were engaged in.





The outline of the whole session, celebrated on 6th May 2022, 12.00 - 14.00 EEST (11.00 - 13.00 CEST), is summarized in the following table:

12.00 - 12.05	Introduction to the project
12.05 - 12.20	Introduction to the platform
12.20 - 12.50	 Task 1: Refinement of a service description using Servicepedia (Augmenter) and INTERLINK Compare the process using a stand alone tool (Servicepedia) and the platform (INTERLINK) Find usability blockers and bugs. Provide feedback by filling alpha <u>questionnaire</u> in the last 5' of this session. Academic recognition of educational documents acquired abroad <u>https://latvija.lv/en/PPK/dzives-</u> <u>situacija/apakssituacija/p11899/ProcesaApraksts</u>
12.50 - 13.00	Feedback session reflecting about findings on Task 1.
13.00 - 13.30	 Task 2: Refinement of a service description using different co-production models Compare the process using a generic co-production model and specific model for VARAM purposes Find phases, objectives, tasks and possible INTERLINKERs for an ideal co-refinement process. Provide feedback by filling <u>alpha questionnaire</u> in the last 5' of this session. My data in Cadastre: <u>https://latvija.lv/en/Epakalpojumi/EP32/Apraksts</u>
13.30 - 14.00	Feedback session reflecting about finding on Task 2 and Task 1.

Table 10. Outline of VARAM's cross-testing session

As can be seen, feedback through two mechanisms was obtained:

- By fostering discussion and feedback from attendees to the meeting.
- Through the alpha questionnaires which was analysed offline, i.e. after the session.

The following bullet points summarize the feedback received from VARAM's alpha testers, at the end of the session. All this findings were gathered in a <u>shared feedback</u> <u>document</u>. The following points summarize it:

• The augmented version of public service description, as offered by Augmenter, is a nice environment to crowd-suggest refinements to web pages. It is thought as the most straightforward manner to coordinate refinement of a service description.





- Collaborative refinement process guided by specific purpose designed coproduction process for VARAM is definitely useful and helps organizing the collaborative work. Still, Augmenter INTERLINKER being custom-made for this purpose was the preferred tool by cross-testing attendees.
- Augmenter's user experience could be enhanced making fonts, colours and icons more consistent.
- Augmenter's service descriptions' dashboard is useful, flexible but its use not obvious.
- It is hard to see how to link teams to processes in Collaborative Environment
- INTERLINKER, "resource" concept is not well understood, even confusing, new names for task status (TODO, IN-PROGRESS, DONE) should be considered in Collaborative Environment.

On the other hand, the following bullet points summarize the main insights gained by analysing the alpha questionnaires completed by session attendees:

- What works well?
 - o Descriptions are comprehensive
 - o There are ready-made templates for tasks
- What does not work well?
 - o There are missing links and directions
 - o Overall built of the environment is very complicated
- What could be added?
 - Steps must include links to concrete actions (e.g., redirect to action document) without vast texts and explanations while activity is running
- What is missing?
 - Customer support and contacts (regarding particular use case whom to contact regarding service descriptions refinement if there is an issue)
 - o INTERLINKERs must be renamed to resources, language localization
- How to improve it?
 - o More user testing

Appendix <u>Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session in pre-</u> <u>pilot subphase</u> contains a dump of the feedback gathered in this session.

2.7.3 Cross testing session with ZARAGOZA

The aim of this cross-testing was celebrated on 23rd May 2022, where 8 alpha testers from Zaragoza were involved, was to assess whether the INTERLINK co-production





model and supporting tools were usable enough to extend its usage to a bigger number of beta users during pilot execution subphase.

The following bullet list enumerates the steps carried out with the Zaragoza team:

- This was a 1 hour session where representatives attending from Zaragoza were provided by <u>User Acceptance Testing template</u>, see Figure 36¹¹.
- The instructor from DEUSTO went through the whole process, step by step, involving the 8 Alpha testers from Zaragoza within the same team.
- Alpha testers got the opportunity to familiarize themselves with INTERLINK and to think aloud providing feedback.
- Regretfully 60' session finished without time to gather much feedback

TEST NO.	DESCRIPTION OF TASKS	STEPS TO EXECUTE	EXPECTED RESULTS	PASS	FAIL	DEFECT / COMMENTS / ADDITIONS
STEP1:	Verify that users can log in and/or r	egister to access the Collaborative Environment				
1	Log into the Staging Server	Click on "Access to Dashboard" button	DASHBOARD view is rendered: https://demo.interlink-project.eu/dashboard			
2		Click on button "Login" in dashboard page	AAC login/register page appears			
3		Register in the platform by cloking on Register option				
4		Log into the platform using Google login details	DASHBOARD view is presented which offers three main functionalities: a) co-production project management (WORKSPACE top menu option) team managament (DGRANIZATIONS top menu option) and c) CATALOGUE top menu option which provides access to INTERLINKER catalogue browsing, searching and filtering	6		
5		Log out by clicking on user icon at the top right hand side and then logout button	Pop up window appears asking you to confirm log out			
6				-	1	
STEP2:	Organization and team manageme	ent to initiate co-production process				
Ţ	Create a new organization	Click on ORGANIZATION top menu and then on button "+Create new organization"	"Create a new organization" pops up with form to complete organization details			

Figure 36. Snapshot of User Acceptance Testing template.

As main conclusion from this session, Zaragoza alpha testers highlighted that it would be interesting to carry out some existing collaborative processes within eTopia through Collaborative Environment. For this reason, a template to define new co-production processes was made available¹² (see Figure 37). Such template is designed to help pilots declare possible new co-production processes which could be used for address their pilots' interests.

¹¹ This resource is publicly available in INTERLINK's GitHub repository <u>backend-catalogue</u>

¹² This New Schema Process Specification spreadsheet is also available at INTERLINK's GitHub <u>repositories</u>.





NEW SCHEMA PROCESS SPECIFICATION							
PHASE	OBJECTIVE	TASKS	PROBLEM PROFILES	INTERLINKERs	COMMENTS		
Complete phases really needed in your concrete co-production process	Identify the objectives assigned to a phase	Identify the tasks associated to an objective	(They are encountered in https://github.com/interlink- project/interlinkers- data/blob/master/problemprofiles/pr oblemprofiles.json)	(the problem profiles addressed by INTERLINKERS can be seen at https://demo.interlink- project.eu/catal)	Indicate expected behaviour regarding INTERLINKER recommendations, identify need for new INTERLINKER that would be useful to carry out this task and which are not available currently in catalogue: https://demo.interlink-project.eu/catal		
			11				
			-				

Figure 37. Snapshot of co-production tree template.

2.8. Conclusions pre-pilot subphase

The main outcome of the pre-pilot execution subphase has been the Usability enhancements carried out over the Collaborative Environment as result of pilots' feedback. As a matter of fact, a list of 30 issues was compiled as result of combining the reflections brought forward by carrying out the heuristic analysis, usability tests, cross-testing sessions with pilots' sites and Radboud partner, at the following publicly accessible shared spreadsheet: <u>Usability enhancements for Collaborative Environment</u> as result of pilots' feedback.

Figure 38 shows a snapshot of the spreadsheet where all usability enhancements were compiled. All the changes tagged as having high or medium priority were tackled before beta release of the solution was generated. Below a list of the identified issues ordered by priority is shown:

- Review behaviour in GUIDE view when INTERLINKER is added to task
- Unclear role of individual members in a group, rethink teams, team members and roles section
- Rethink some labels to reduce the difficulty of terms used
- Add some explanatory text to Guide View so that users understand better what they can do in such view
- Update documentation / user manual with new snapshots of environment
- Add support and feedback embedded forms within Collaborative Environment
- Enhance CATALOGUE view, tool tipping the purpose of the different filters available
- SCHEMA selection view usability: modify labels and descriptions in Schema selection view
- Simplify the DASHBOARD, renamed to WORKSPACE, view, it should only show coproduction processes which is after all the essence of the environment
- Warning pop up window should be shown when actions with important effect on co-production process takes place
- Enhance and make uniform actions possible over a resource





- Consistency on validation of fields in forms of teams and processes
- Enhance guidance (step-by-step) for co-production process in OVERVIEW view
- Enhancements in WORKSPACE view
- Change logo for team and process image
- Review mappings of INTERLINKERs and tasks
- Reason about the order in which INTERLINKERs should be listed
- Tackle responsiveness issues with smaller screens, some menus disappear, too much horizontal scrolling
- GUIDE and WORKFLOW views interaction: Tree items manipulation and association of time spans
- Customize help to selected language
- Add functionality to publish successful resources
- Email notifications to team members when a task is performed.
- Pop-up closing Xs icon/button should be added
- Introduce tooltips over some critical elements, particularly actions that can be carried out over GUIDE view
- Issues with INTERLINKERs
- Review translations taking into account pilots requests
- Catalogue of best practices/success cases
- Hide email addresses of administrators



DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF PROBLEM	PRIORITY		SOLUTION PROPOSAL (outline of possible solution)	OBSERVATIONS	DONE	
Email notifications to team members when a task is performed.	prio_medium	*	Send emails through SMTP server already configured in the project	Doable before end of July	YES	
Review behaviour in GUIDE view when INTERLINKER is added to task	prío_high		 Ensure user giving place to a RESOURCE as result of making use of an INTERLINK notices it. Focus should be switched to newly created INTERLINKER Ensure behaviour of instantiation of software and knowledge INTERLINKERs is uniform Highlight the latest instantiated resource to focus user attention Not too intuitive that you need to click on resource name to be able to open it as a new tab Should we change states from AWAITING, IN PROGRESS and FINISHED to TODO. IN PROGRESS and DINE? Rather than saying "Not set" minimalistic message. Indicate in that yellow built-in alert box how to solve such situation. e.g. Time planification Too restrictive to always have to assign a RESOURCE to a task, what if a resource is needed to record progress in an objective or phase. It would be nice that whenever there are resources associated to task, these can be accessed by clicking on a node hanging from the task Ad one liner indicating that in Guide view to indicate that users can discover what objectives through which tasks enabled by what INTERLINKERs could be used. 	To be done before end of June		
					YES	-
Pop-up closing Xs icon/button should be added	prio_medium		 A few users have reported that pressing ESC is not entererly intuitive Help side panel should also have X icon as all pop-up windows 	Assess what to do	YES	*
Unclear role of individual members in a group, rethink teams, team members and roles section	prio_high	*	- Required to change data model, providing access control at co-production process tree item level	 Improve user and role management, what is the role of unaunthenticated users, email notifications when people are added to teams should be sent 	YES	

Figure 38. Usability enhancements for Collaborative Environment as result of *pilots' feedback*.

Observe how as result of this pre-pilot execution subphase, the Collaborative Environment evolved from alpha release, snapshots available at <u>Appendix E</u> – <u>Collaborative Environment Alpha release</u>, to beta release, snapshots available at <u>Appendix F</u> – <u>Collaborative Environment Beta release</u>. It is very noticeable that the Team view adding role management, the workspace and guide views were enhanced, taking into account the usability feedback. Besides, the workplan view was introduced. With this update of the INTERLINK platform we proceeded to the actual pilot execution open to beta testers.

3 Pilot execution subphase evaluation

This section describes the evaluation activities that were carried out at the use case pilots with the first beta release of the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment, in the period June 2022 to September 2022.

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





As mentioned in section <u>1.2. Co-production enabling tools deployed at pilots</u>, each of the pilots was equipped with a full deployment of INTERLINK Collaborative Environment, customized to such environment, and populated with the relevant stakeholders.

The departure point of this subphase was a validated environment which had undergone a set of usability improvements are reported in section <u>2.8. Conclusions pre-pilot subphase</u>. The beta release of the Collaborative Environment was deployed in all pilots. You can have access to some of the snapshots of the beta release in <u>Appendix F</u> <u>– Collaborative Environment Beta release</u>.

Pilot owners at each of the pilots now had to arrange a set of activities conducting towards meeting the objectives at the three pilots. Below, a section is provided per pilot where a summary of the activities carried out towards the pilots' meeting goals are summarized.

This chapter finishes with an evaluation of the user behaviour and an assessment of the quality of the co-production process enabled by INTERLINK co-production model and supporting tools.



Figure 39. Evaluation stages of pilot execution subphase.

3.2. Pilot execution subphase at MEF

3.2.1. MEF pilot goals

MEF's use case goal is to test the INTERLINK's project Platform and its enablers to cocreate a Participatory Strategic Planning Module (PSPM) through a co-design experience. As an Italian central Public Body, MEF aims to provide a practical example of collaborative approaches, becoming a hub to adopt bottom-up methodologies that favour user experience.





To this end, MEF/DSII involves various Public Bodies and Civil Servants, identified as key stakeholders, in the collaborative design of the MEF PSPM, through two pilot iterations. The first iteration had the goal of collecting expectations, requirements, and feedback from stakeholders to test the usability of the INTERLINK platform during the co-creation process of the PSPM, and co-design a blueprint of the PSPM, identifying with the stakeholders its core elements and functionalities.

The second iteration will entail further work on the INTERLINK platform, its enablers, and the MEF PSPM alongside some of the same and potentially new stakeholders to gather additional requirements and feedback, and co-design a mock-up of the PSPM.

3.2.2. MEF co-production approach

This section describes how co-production has been applied with the help of INTERLINK in this pilot.

	STEPS OF CO-PRODUCTION SCENARIO	SUPPORT PROVIDED BY INTERLINK PLATFORM
ENGAGEMENT	MEF launched a communication campaign to make stakeholders aware about the initiative and use case's activities and goals to recruit participants to co-design the MEF PSPM blueprint.	Use of Awareness campaign INTERLINKER; use of Awareness creation INTERLINKER; use of User attraction INTERLINKER
	MEF gathered a network of interested stakeholders (MEF's staff civil servants from MEF as well as from and other Public Bodies; representatives from other Public Bodies)-to co-design a blueprint of the MEF PSPM, to be potentially adopted as best practice of collaborative and user- centred approach.	Tools and INTERLINKERs for stakeholder mapping and engagement as well as for information and data sharing

Table 11. Co-production process carried out in MEF.

INTERLINK



DESIGN		
	 MEF prepared and organized specific codesign activities on the INTERLINK platform and with the use of specific INTERLINKERS. For Public Bodies' representatives (MEF and other PAs Directorates), MEF coordination team prepared and shared an on-line survey to gather further inputs and suggestions for the PSPM blueprint co-design. For Civil Servants, namely, DSII applications' operators and human resources, MEF Department Directors, MEF Data processors, MEF employees and other PAs operators and managers, MEF organized: kick-off meeting onboarding session two online workshops The goal was to stimulate a discussion with the stakeholders engaged to share ideas and collect feedback on different needs and expectations, in order to codesign the MEF PSPM requirements and functionalities. 	Service design tools for workshops, focus groups, and on-line surveys; provision of guidelines for co-design; ideas crowdsourcing and e- voting INTERLINKERs; user attraction INTERLINKERs; information and data sharing INTERLINKERs
	MEF, at the end of the pilot 1st iteration created a PSPM blueprint, considering the results of the co-design activities as well as stakeholders' feedback.	Tools: INTERLINKERs made available to support co- production process
EVALUATION	At the end of the pilot's 1st iteration, MEF questionnaires, surveys and interviews have been provided to ask stakeholders their feedback on the INTERLINK Platform and its INTERLINKERs, as well as on the PSPM potential functionalities which will be elaborated and assessed.	Quality of service monitoring to assess the quality of co- design process Templates

INTERLINK



IMPLEMENTATION	 A blueprint of the PSPM that supports participatory processes of consultation and transparency along the definition and implementation of strategic plans has been produced following the requirements and functional specifications collected during co-design. Two main functionalities have been identified for the PSPM: 1. Interface for Strategic Planning 2. Open Repository of Good Practices 	Some building blocks already available in the INTERLINKER catalogue could potentially be re-used to aid some aspects of the implementation
----------------	---	--

3.2.3. MEF activities during pilot execution subphase

This section describes the list of activities that were carried out in the MEF pilot

Date	Engagement phase	Activity type	Description	Participants	Takeaways
16/06/22	Inform Me	Awareness material	Sending of reminder of the kick-off meeting to beta testers	Audience: 60 public servants (38 M; 22 F); ICT skills: 1 – basic; 4 – intermediate ; 55 – advanced	Important to keep stakeholders aware of and engaged with pilot's activities
21/06/22	Guide Me	Training	 Kick-off meeting: Presentation of the INTERLINK Project and the MEF use case 	Attendees: 47 public servants (32 M; 22 F)	Important to stakeholders' engagement and involvement
21/06/22	Inform Me	Awareness material	 Presentation of the INTERLINK platform (demo session), including MEF 		as well as to create awareness about the INTERLINK

Table 12. Engagement activities carried out in MEF pilot.



21/06/22	Consult Me Consult Me	Testing Monitoring & Evaluation	collaborative environment Used components: INTERLINK collaborative environment; INTERLINKERs		solution and goals
04/07/22	Inform Me	Awareness material	Reminder - Sending of reminders through the INTERLINKER 'Mailchimp'	Audience: 60 public servants (38 M; 22 F); ICT skills: 1 – basic; 4 – intermediate ; 55 – advanced	Important to keep stakeholders engaged with pilot's activities
05/07/22	Guide Me	Training	 Onboarding session: Open discussion/support to stakeholders (e.g. in registering to the INTERLINK platform) Sharing/collecting expectations about co-design and use of INTERLINKERs Overview of a strategic planning process and expectations about the MEF PSPM co- design Filling-in of "baseline survey on strategic 	Attendees: 42 public servants (29 M; 13 F). Education*: [MT1] 7- High school diploma: 4-	Important to verify stakeholders' successful registration on the INTERLINK platform; share and
05/07/22	Work with Me	Testing		INTERLINKERs Bachelor Overview of a degree; 2 strategic planning Master process and degree; 3 expectations about PhD the MEF PSPM co- design ICT skills* Filling-in of "baseline - survey on strategic intermedi	Bachelor degree; 21 - Master degree; 3- PhD ICT skills*: 2 - intermediate
05/07/22	Consult Me	Testing	planning" to collect feedback and better prepare the activities for the next sessions/workshops Used components: INTERLINK	; 35 - advanced	the INTERLINKE Rs



05/07/22	Consult Me	Monitoring & Evaluation	collaborative environment; INTERLINKERs		
11/07/22	Inform Me	Awareness material	Reminder - Sending of useful links and material through the INTERLINKER Mailchimp. Used components: INTERLINKERs	Audience: 60 public servants (38 M; 22 F); ICT skills: 1 – basic; 4 – intermediate ; 55 – advanced	Important to stakeholders' engagement and involvement as well as to create awareness about the pilot goals and activities
14/07/22	Consult Me	Awareness material	Reflections – Sharing of a document for stakeholders with trigger questions and key concepts to stimulate discussion on co-design Used components: INTERLINKERs	Audience: 60 public servants (38 M; 22 F); ICT skills: 1 – basic; 4 – intermediate ; 55 – advanced	Important to prepare the stakeholders, stimulate the discussion and collect feedback during the 1st workshop
21/07/22	Guide Me	Training	1st co-designAttendees:workshop:33 public• Initiate MEF PSPMservants (23co-design activitiesM; 10 F);(requirements andpotentialpotentialEducation*:functionalities)7- High• Presentation ofschoolMEF's co-productiondiploma; 3-	Important to collect feedback on requirements and potential functionalitie s of the PSPM from open discussion	
21/07/22	Work with Me	Testing	 process in the MEF collaborative environment (phases and steps, tools available) Brainstorming on key elements/steps needed in the MEF PSPM 	Bachelor degree; 17 - Master degree; 3- PhD ICT skills*: O- basic; 2 - intermediate	with stakeholders (divided into subgroups to facilitate interactions)



21/07/22	Consult Me Consult Me	Testing Monitoring & Evaluation	 Brainstorming on users, user journey, functionalities, and accessibility of the PSPM and the INTERLINK platform Used components: INTERLINK collaborative environment; INTERLINKERs 	; 30 - advanced	
08/10/22	Inform Me	Other	Explore the INTERLINK platform – Sending of reminder to access the INTERLINK platform, navigate it, and review useful resources uploaded on it Used components: INTERLINK collaborative environment; INTERLINKERs	Audience: 60 public servants (38 M; 22 F); ICT skills: 1 – basic; 4 – intermediate ; 55 – advanced	Important to stakeholders' involvement as well as to share useful information and to get confident with the INTERLINK platform
13/09/22	Guide Me	Training	2nd co-design workshop:Attendees: 31 public servants (20 M; 11 F);· Conclusion of co- design activitiesM; 11 F);· Consolidation ofEducation*:	Attendees: 31 public servants (20 M; 11 F); Education*: 3- High	Important to conclude co- design activities; consolidate the feedback received and make stakeholders aware of pilot's next steps
13/09/22	Work with Me	Testing	useful for: 1) drafting the MEF PSPM blueprint; 2) improve the INTERLINK platform	s- High school diploma; 1- Bachelor degree; 19 - Master	



13/09/22	Consult Me Consult Me	Testing Monitoring & Evaluation	 Presentation of pilot's next steps Used components: INTERLINK collaborative environment; INTERLINKERs 	degree; 2- PhD ICT skills*: O- basic; 2 - intermediate ; 24 - advanced	
17/10/22	Guide Me	Training	Interviews – sending of surveys to a selection of MEF/other PAs Directors to collect further inputs on the	Audience: 8ImportPAgatheriDirectors; 4furtherfrom MEF; 4andfrom othersuggesPAs (4M andfor MEI1F)co-desEducation*:all universitygraduatesICT skills*:	Important for gathering further inputs and suggestions
17/10/22	Work with Me	Testing	MEF PSPM core elements and functionalities; the surveys also include an overview of the INTERLINK project as		co-design
17/10/22	Consult Me	Monitoring & Evaluation	well as of MEF use case goals and activities	all advanced	
TBD	Inform Me	Communicat ion	Blueprint presentation – Sending of official communication to the stakeholders involved in both pre-pilot and pilot phases (alpha testers and beta testers) to present the PSPM blueprint	Audience: 60 public servants	Important to show the results of the PSPM co- design activities during the 1st iteration and highlight the importance of involved stakeholders' contributions





TBD	Inform Me	Communicat ion	Thank you email – Sending of official communication to thank stakeholders for their involvement and to inform them about next steps	Audience: 66 public servants	Important to highlight the importance of involved stakeholders' contributions as well as to inform them about next steps and keep them involved in next pilot's activities
-----	-----------	-------------------	---	------------------------------------	---

[MT1]* not all the attendees provided this information (we have included a note on this at the end of the table)

Next, a brief analysis of the community building process carried out in MEF is provided.

The following details sum-up the profile of the stakeholders involved in this pilot activities:

- <u>Target audience:</u>
 - Total number of stakeholders involved: 68 (60 public servants and 8 representatives of MEF/other PA Directorates)
 - Female (%): 32%
 - Male (%): 68%
 - Stakeholders' types:
 - Citizen (%): 0%
 - Public servant (%): 100%
 - Non-profit organization (%): 0%
 - For-profit organization (%): 0%
- Level of education:
 - Secondary school (%): 0%
 - High school diploma (%): 20.3%
 - Vocational training (%): 0%
 - University degree (%): 79.7%
- <u>Digital tools knowledge level</u>:
 - Basis level (%): 0%
 - Intermediate Level (%): 5.8%
 - Advanced Level (%): 94.2%
- <u>Work status</u>:
 - Unemployed (%): 0%

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3





- Self-employed (%): 0%
- Employed (private sector) (%): 0%
- Employed (public sector)(%): 100%
- Retired (%): 0%

The following details sum-up the profile of the stakeholders involved in the interviews conducted as part of the pilot activities:

- <u>Target audience</u>:
 - Total number of stakeholders involved: 6 representatives of MEF/other PA Directorates
 - Female (%): 20%
 - Male (%): 80%
 - o Stakeholders<u>type</u>s:
 - Citizen(%):0%
 - Public servant (%): 100%
 - Non-profit organization (%): 0%
 - For-profit organization (%): 0%
- Level of education:
 - Secondary school (%): 0%
 - High school diploma (%): 0%
 - Vocational training (%): 0%
 - o University degree (%): 100%
- Digital tools knowledge level:
 - o Basis level (%): 0%
 - o Intermediate Level (%): 0%
 - o Advanced Level (%): 100%
- Work status:
 - o Unemployed(%):0%
 - Self-employed (%): 0%
 - o Employed(private sector)(%): 0%
 - Employed (public sector)(%): 100%
 - o Retired(%):0%

To summarize, this pilot's participants were mostly men, belonged to stakeholder group of exclusively Public Servants, an aspect explained by the fact that the pilot is envisaged as a government-to-government collaboration, had high education levels, and advanced digital tools knowledge and were all employed, again, an aspect explained by the fact that all the engaged stakeholders were Public Servants, and hence, already employed.





Table 12 contains the listing of activities carried out by MEF in pilot execution subphase. As a summary, the below table indicates what % of activities in each of the engagement levels defined were achieved.

- <u>Number of activities</u>: 28
- <u>Classification of activities</u> (% activities vs total number of activities):
 - $\,\circ\,$ Inform me activities: 29%
 - o Guide me activities: 18%
 - o Work with me activities: 14%
 - o Consult me activities: 39%
- <u>Average satisfaction level in activities</u>: 3.83 (on a scale of 1 to 5)
- <u>Target components</u>:
 - o Collaborative environment: 40%
 - INTERLINKERs: 60% (main INTERLINKERs used: Information Sheet for INTERLINK project; Google Drive, Loomio, Mailchimp, Consent Form for INTERLINK project; Demographic and activity satisfaction questionnaire; Final end user's questionnaire- Quality of Service; Guidelines for online-surveys). INTERLINKERs were used slightly more than the Collaborative Environment as some INTERLINKERs were linked to external software and some were used for internal purposes (e.g., Mailchimp for communications and templates / guidelines for the preparation of activities).

In summary, to carry out the co-production process defined in 3.2.2. MEF coproduction approach, mix of different activities were carried out.

- Inform me activities: these activities were mainly aimed at creating awareness among the stakeholders about both (i) the INTERLINK project and MEF use case, and (ii) pilot's phases, actions foreseen and immediate next steps. To this end, information sheets, explanatory emails and useful material were shared with the stakeholders; reminders, communications and "calls-to-actions" were also regularly sent. These proved useful, among others, to establish a common understanding of the goals of the INTERLINK project and of the MEF use case, as well as to keep the stakeholders engaged in pilot activities.
- Guide me / work with me activities: the purpose of these activities was to provide guidance to stakeholders on how to access and navigate the INTERLINK platform and the MEF collaborative environment, on how to engage in ideas exchange and contribute to the co-design of the PSPM blueprint with the support of the INTERLINK platform and its enablers. To this end, among others, tutorials, explanatory communications, baseline survey, and guidelines were shared with the stakeholders, and live demo sessions of the INTERLINK platform and the MEF collaborative environment were performed. These proved useful to ensure that





active participation of the stakeholders was not hindered by technical issues or lack of understanding of tasks to be accomplished.

• Consult me activities: these actions were mainly aimed at collecting useful feedback and valuable contributions from stakeholders before and during the co-design activities of the PSPM blueprint, which was eventually drafted considering and including inputs received from the stakeholders. Open discussions, surveys and interviews, trigger guestions and online live voting sessions were used as main tools to gather stakeholders' opinions and ideas. These proved useful to better frame stakeholders' prior experience in strategic planning and co-design as well as current similar activities carried out within their administrations (if any), and to understand the stakeholders' expectations about the PSPM.

3.2.4. MEF KPIs

This section describes the KPIs that were defined to measure the achievement of the goals of this pilot. Do remember that section "1.3.1. Evaluation goals" explains the different categories of KPIs that have been defined in INTERLINK.

Notice that annexes 6.1. INTERLINK global KPIs and 6.2. INTERLINK local KPIs gather the KPIs that were designed in D5.1 [1]. Some adaptations over the KPIs originally designed have been performed, which are commented under the "Comments" heading. Please also be aware that KPI numbering that includes a second numbering level, e.g. A1.2 are additional KPIs, not declared at specification time in D5.1, that have been defined to provide further information about the outcomes of the evaluation.

		T	able 13. KPIs for MI	EF pilot
A	INTERLINK Use and Co-production of Services	Objective	MEF	Comments
Δ1	Number of INTERLINKERs used in an actual public service	3	62	The large numbers of INTERLINKERs used relates to the iterative process of testing the collaborative environment and its INTERLINKERs to find the most suitable ones and test them before using them with external stakeholders.
A1.1	Number of software INTERLINKERs		5	
A1.2	Used software INTERLINKERs		Google Drive, Loomio Awareness	



			campaign tool	
A1.3	Number of used software INTERLINKERs		3	
A1.4	Number of external software INTERLINKERs		12	
A1.5	Number of external knowledge INTERLINKERs		12	
A1.6	Number of external INTERLINKERs		24	
A1.7	Number of knowledge INTERLINKERs		33	
A1.8	Used knowledge INTERLINKERs			
A1.9	Number of used knowledge INTERLINKERs		5	
A2	Number of citizens involved in service customization	0	0	This pilot only embarked in CO-DESIGN phase and did not involve citizens in iteration 1
A2.1	Number of citizens involved in co- delivered services		0	
A2.2	Number of citizens involved in co- designed services		0	
А3	Number of INTERLINKERs with flag is_sustainabilty enabled	1	5	In D5.1 was defined as "Number of partnership enablers used within INTERLINK service instance". Replaced by counting INTERLINKERs that can support CO-DELIVERY
Δ4	Number of citizens registered to INTERLINK platform	0	0	No citizens were involved in this pilot
Α5	Number of citizens involved in co- delivered services	0	0	
A6	Number of teams		19	



A6.1	Number of public administration teams		18	
A6.2	Number of public administration teams involved in a co- production process		15	
A6.3	Number of citizen teams		0	
A6.4	Number of citizen teams involved in a co- production process		0	
A6.5	Number of TSO teams		1	
A6.6	Number of TSO teams involved in a co- production process		1	
Α7	Number of TSOs users	1	4	The unexpected number of TSOs came from the inclusion in the workshop of SOGEI, MEF's in-house company that declared themselves as private sector employees in the surveys, while MEF, considers SOGEI – being a society dependant on a Public Body – part of the broader Public Administrations universe.
A 8	Number of TSO users involved in a co- production process	1	4	
A8 A9	Number of TSU users involved in a co- production process Number of public servants	1	4	
A8 A9 A10	Number of TSU users involved in a co- production process Number of public servants Number of public servants involved in a co-production process	1	4 49 48	
A8 A9 A10 A11	Number of ISU users involved in a co- production process Number of public servants Number of public servants involved in a co-production process Number of new co- production processes	1	4 49 48 17	The correct number should be 1, as during the pilot's first iterations the work iteratively focused on one unique co-production process. All the other processes are either tests conducted by MEF team or test conducted by MEF's stakeholders.
A8 A9 A10 A11 A11.1	Number of ISU users involved in a co- production process Number of public servants Number of public servants involved in a co-production process Number of new co- production processes Number of co- production processes in English	1 1 1 1	4 49 48 17 7	The correct number should be 1, as during the pilot's first iterations the work iteratively focused on one unique co-production process. All the other processes are either tests conducted by MEF team or test conducted by MEF's stakeholders.
 A8 A9 A10 A11 A11.1 A11.2 	Number of ISU users involved in a co- production process Number of public servants Number of public servants involved in a co-production process Number of new co- production processes in English Number of co- production processes in English Number of co- production processes in Latvian	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	4 49 48 17 7 0	The correct number should be 1, as during the pilot's first iterations the work iteratively focused on one unique co-production process. All the other processes are either tests conducted by MEF team or test conducted by MEF's stakeholders.



	in Italian			
A11.4	Number of co- production processes in Spanish		0	
A12	Number of active users per month	100	35	The month where most activity was found was in July, when 35 active users were using the platform.
A13	Number of processes with teams of different stakeholders	1	0	Originally defined as "Number and Percentage of shared services between PAs and citizens that were co-produced through INTERLINK platform". In the case of MEF all teams were of type public servants.
A14	Number of TSO teams involved in a co- production process		1	Formerly defined as "Number of private companies involved in co-delivered services"
A15	Number of co- production processes involved in sustainability		1	Formerly in D5.1 defined as "Self-sustained services (without public expenses)"
A16	Percentage of users who completed the in- app questionnaires and made improved suggestions	25%	25/71 = <mark>35%</mark>	This value seems is aligned with the number of stakeholders that completed the activities questionnaires, which after all provided feedback about INTERLINK and its tools. 25 out of the 71 participants answered the questionnaires.
A17	Number of INTERLINKERs reused in more than one co- production process	1	3	Originally phrased as "Number of INTERLINKERs reused in more than one public service"
A18	Number of assets		33	
A18.1	Number of external assets		7	
A18.2	Number of internal assets		26	
A19	Number of organizations		7	
A206	Number of users		71	
A21	Average of members per team		4	
В	THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK			
B1	Perception of reduction of administrative and management costs	3	5.0	





B2	Quantity of co- produced initiatives (baseline: number of previously co- produced public services)	3	1	While the number of co-production processes is 17, officially MEF conducted only 1 complex and long multi-team process iteratively throughout the first iteration, as it was the plan from the start.
B3	Quality of co- production initiatives	3	3.8	
В4	Increased participation of Public Bodies in customization of public services	3	12	As MEF's pilot did not include citizens or private entities, the KPI had to be modified to refer exclusively to other Public Bodies. The KPI should also consider that participation from other Public Bodies before was not existing and hence the baseline is zero.
В5	Increased participation of citizens and private entities in co-delivery of public services	> 50%	0	There is no increase as citizens or private entities were not the scope of the co-design process carried out by MEF.
С	The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK			
C1.1	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	5.0	
C1.2	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	4.1	
C2.1	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	3.6	Not achieved the expected trust level but got quite close to iteration 1's goal.
C2.2	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	3.8	Not achieved the expected trust level but got quite close to iteration 1's goal.
C3.1	Acceptance assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	3.0	Not achieved the expected trust level but got quite close to iteration 1's goal.
C3.2	Acceptance	4	3.0	Not achieved the expected trust level but



	produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]			
C4.1	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools and INTERLINK- powered public services [Citizens]	80%	80%	
C4.1	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools and INTERLINK- powered public services [Others]	80%	80%	
D	Pilot specific KPIs			
D1	Number of Public Bodies involved in co-design of PSPM	>= 3	12	While the original target was lower, MEF committed to engage as many administrations as possible to obtain the expected results.
D2	Number of civil servants involved in co-design of PSPM	>= 45	56	
D3	Number of INTERLINKERs used in the PSPM model	>= 5	14	The number of INTERLINKERs used during the experimentation and testing phases of the platform is larger, but 14 INTERLINKERs, both knowledge and software ones were used during the co-design of the PSPM blueprint.
D4	Number of features contributed by external stakeholders to include into the PSPM model	>= 5	11	The active discussion with stakeholders during the workshops allowed for the integration of their requests and expectations, generating an actual co- design of MEF's PSPM blueprint.
D5	Increased representativeness of stakeholders during the co-testing phase	>=25%	62.5%	Through a specific question to the stakeholders' engaged, 62.5% agreed that an approach like the one used for the co- design of MEF's PSPM blueprint increased the representativeness of stakeholders.
D6	Perceived efficiency gains of the strategic planning process (value creation) thanks to INTERLINKERs	>35%	70.8%	As a result of the co-production questionnaire at the end of the first iteration activities, 70% of respondents agreed that a platform like INTERLINK and its INTERLINKERs could provide an increase in the efficiency of participatory strategic planning procedures.

INTERLINK


3.2.5. MEF's reflection on KPIs

This section performs a summary of the obtained results during the pilot's first iteration.

- <u>"A. INTERLINK Use and Co-production of Services"</u>. It shows that many INTERLINKERs were used during the testing of the platform and experimenting, while a smaller number was used during the actual activities. On this section, it is important to note that some categories were not applicable to MEF's pilot, and hence the values were zero, like those linked to citizens or third sector organizations. Finally, we noted there might be some incongruence with the numbers automatically collected from the platform and the actual experience of MEF's co-production work; particularly, MEF conducted only one co-production process iteratively during the entire first iteration, however, both MEF's coordination team and stakeholders' trials in the platform were detected.
- <u>"B. THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK"</u>. INTERLINK proved a valuable approach to engage and co-design a new service alongside stakeholders that enjoyed testing and discovering an innovative platform and approach. It is also worth noting the clear increase in external stakeholders' participation, being originally non-existent on MEF's strategic planning, the new approach allowed us to include 12 other Italian Public Administration in the co-design of a new PSPM blueprint.
- <u>"C. The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK"</u>. Users were consulted through a survey at the end of the last workshop conducted and showed high satisfaction levels (80%) with the platform and that its usability was above our expectations (above 4.0 in a scale of 1-5). We noted, however, some values slightly lower than originally targeted for acceptance (3 instead of 4 in a scale of 1-5) and trust (3.7 instead of 4 in a scale of 1-5). While we cannot speculate on the sentiments behind the responses provided, level of acceptance and trust could be increased moving forward to the second iteration, particularly considering the higher levels of satisfaction and usability.
- <u>"D. Pilot specific KPIs ..."</u>. On the pilot specific KPIs, we noted that the quantitative ones were more tangible and hence, more accessible both to calculate and interpret, while the measurement and interpretation of the qualitative ones might need refinement going forward as the means of verification are based exclusively on perception and a single question on a longer questionnaire. In that sense, we managed to engage 9 more Administrations than originally planned as well as 56 Civil Servants instead of 45, due to a high level of effort and commitment to the project. In the same manner, the number of INTERLINKERs used during the experimentation and testing phases of the platform resulted in a larger than planned number (14 instead of 5).





The active discussion with stakeholders during the workshops allowed for the integration of their requests and expectations, generating an actual co-design of MEF's PSPM blueprint.

Finally, to specify the challenges of the qualitative KPIs, we aimed at assessing them through specific questions about stakeholders' perception. 62.5% of stakeholders agreed that an approach like the one used for the co-design of MEF's PSPM blueprint increased the representativeness of stakeholders; and 70% of respondents agreed that a platform like INTERLINK and its INTERLINKERs could provide an increase in the efficiency of participatory strategic planning procedures.

3.2.6. Reflections on MEF's pilot execution subphase

The core of the activities carried out during MEF pilot 1st iteration was the organization of **two online co-design workshops**.

The **goal of the first workshop** was to **initiate the PSPM co-design activities**, focusing on requirements and potential functionalities. The session included a presentation of the MEF co-production process, and the tools available within the MEF collaborative environment. Then, the stakeholders were divided into two subgroups for performing some (3) exercises:

- Brainstorming on the key elements/steps needed in a PSPM
- Brainstorming on potential key users and their involvement in the PSPM
- Brainstorming on functionalities and accessibility of the PSPM and the INTERLINK platform

Each exercise was facilitated by the use of the collaborative tool '<u>Google Jamboard'</u>, where the stakeholders directly included their contributions.







Figure 40. Output of the brainstorming during the first workshop

The main objective of the **second workshop** was to **continue and conclude the codesign activities**, with the aim of **consolidating the inputs gathered** and facilitate (a) the drafting of the MEF PSPM blueprint and (b) the INTERLINK platform improvement. During the meeting, a flow chart showing the main stages of the participatory strategic planning was presented, and selected features were further discussed and voted trough the INTERLINKER **'Loomio'**.





Figure 41. Highlights of the second workshop

Below some success strategies from MEF pilot first iteration, which enabled the coproduction process:

• Since the meetings with the stakeholders (and related pilot activities) took place almost entirely during the summer months (June-early September), **sending regular communications and call-to-actions** proved to be useful to ensure





participation and active involvement of the stakeholders. To this end, the INTERLINKER 'Mailchimp' (external software) was particularly valuable, because it allowed sending communications with catching design (e.g. with the INTERLINK project logo and a MEF-representative image) as well as including intuitive direct links to useful materials and to the INTERLINK platform

- Before the two co-design workshops, an **"onboarding session"** was held; among the actions performed, stakeholders were asked to fill-in a **"baseline survey on co-design and strategic planning**" drafted by the MEF UC coordination Team. This activity was helpful in grasping stakeholders' prior experiences and first expectations, and tailor the co-design workshops accordingly
- During the onboarding session, a live, open discussion on PSPM expected requirements and functionalities was organized; to facilitate interaction, the stakeholders were **divided into subgroups**. However, it was noticed that in the various subgroups the discussion was not equally participated or fruitful. Apart from stakeholders' different previous experience with the topics analysed, this could potentially be attributed to three factors: (i) lack of adequate time during the open discussion to formulate opinions and provide contributions; (ii) different personal attitudes of the people involved towards the open discussion setting; or (iii) insufficient collaborative tools supporting the open discussion. Based on the above:
 - A document with keywords, key concepts, and trigger questions on the PSPM was shared with the stakeholders before the first workshop, to allow them to be better prepared for the upcoming exchange of ideas, and
 - The use of online collaborative tools (including INTERLINKERs for information and data sharing; INTERLINKERs for crowdsourcing of ideas and e-voting) was incremented during the two workshops. These tools considerably enabled the discussion and allowed to collect more inputs, visualize, and vote the alternative options previously discussed as well as to find and fix the stakeholders' preferences on selected features.

After the conclusion of the wide-audience workshops, MEF conducted interviews to 3 Manager/Directors of MEF and 3 Manager/Directors of other Italian Public Administration. The goal of the interviews was to collect contributions and suggestions aimed at enriching the co-design of MEF's PSPM blueprint.

The proven experience in strategic planning and co-design of Managers and Directors of the Italian Public Administration allowed for the collection of key insights. Some of these included that technological platforms such as INTERLINK are currently and generally not used to perform strategic participatory planning activities.

Also, that there is a lack of participatory strategic planning culture, as well as a lacking share of vision and objectives. Conversely, the lack of interest of stakeholders and the clear definition of roles do not represent critical elements.





The interviewees agreed on the validity and completeness of a participatory strategic planning flow which includes the following five phases: preliminary analysis, collection of needs, monitoring, elaboration and sharing of the plan, collection of feedback. The interviewees agreed in considering the preliminary analysis and feedback collection phases as the most relevant ones.

All interviewees agreed on the need to provide a phase of gathering the needs of external stakeholders as part of a Participatory Strategic Planning process. Periodic meetings, and in particular focus groups and workshops, are considered the most suitable tools to gather the needs. Similarly, the interviewees agreed on the importance and need to allow external stakeholders to follow the progress of the Participatory Strategic Planning process throughout its implementation phase.

The presence of space suited for collaborating represents the most suitable method, together with the sharing of intermediate and periodic reports. Finally, the interviewees agreed on the importance of including an Open Repository among the functionalities of a Participatory Strategic Planning Module of the MEF, i.e., a tool through which to consult methodologies, approaches, and good practices of strategic planning to support co-design processes. An interesting feature that emerged from the interviews is the possibility of equipping the PSPM with a message/chat feature that can inform stakeholders on the progress and actual completion of certain phases of the process.

3.3. Pilot execution subphase at VARAM

3.3.1. VARAM pilot goals

The aim of this pilot has been to improve the provision of unified municipal services through the improvement of service descriptions available on the Latvian State Portal (<u>https://latvija.lv/EN</u>). Through involvement of various stakeholders in the co-production process VARAM tried to make them more useful and accessible. The need arose from the conclusion provided by Unified State and Municipal Client Service Centres (CSC) which encounter clients who have all means of digital access to public services but choose to do so in person or with CSC assistance due to the complicated service descriptions and confusing instructions.

3.3.2. VARAM co-production approach

This section describes how co-production has been applied with the help of INTERLINK in this pilot. Considering that this pilot iteration was not designed to fully represent all





phases to be carried out digitally. For example, only through the INTERLINK collaborative environment, several steps were performed in a face-to-face environment as VARAM organised on-site workshops in several municipalities.

PHASES	STEPS OF CO-PRODUCTION SCENARIO	SUPPORT PROVIDED BY INTERLINK PLATFORM
ENGAGEMENT	 VARAM starts the co-production initiative Gathers the network of interested stakeholders (local PAs, representatives of CSC employees, representatives of Digital Agents) VARAM sets the goals of the co-production project and its work plan together with stakeholders They informally specify current issues with service descriptions to give context to the problem to be solved 	Carried outside of INTERLINK collaborative platform through manual arrangement of interested groups, project presentation and introductory discussion of the problem
DESIGN	 They decide to pilot test Augmenter/Servicepedia, one of the reusable INTERLINKERs available inside the INTERLINK platform They use other INTERLINKERs if they see them beneficial for design phase (typically Google Documents) 	Selection of "Augmenter/Servicepedia" INTERLINKER available in the INTERLINKER catalogue
IMPLEMENTATION	 The Augmenter/Servicepedia component is prepared to be used in the VARAM use case context 	INTERLINK technological components offer a configuration procedure for their reuse
	 Members of the stakeholders network need to be trained on the use of the Augmenter/Servicepedia 	Steps supported by INTERLINK collaborative environment (trained manually by VARAM representatives)
	 VARAM selects a set of services for which description improvements are required CSCs and Digital Agents can give opinions on which are the candidate services 	Steps supported by the INTERLINK collaborative environment
	 When service descriptions are agreed upon, they are uploaded in the Servicepedia CSC employees, Digital Agents, Citizens, and other interested parties provide their comments and suggestions for service descriptions 	Functionalities supported by the "Servicepedia" INTERLINKER
SUSTAINABILITY	 Incentives to encourage contributions to the Servicepedia are put in place 	Use of gifts for all participants - gifted manually (normally INTERLINK collaborative

Table 14. Co-production process carried out in VARAM.





	environment would provide some incentives to be exchanged for a reward)
--	---

3.3.3. VARAM activities during pilot execution subphase

This section describes the list of activities that were carried out in the VARAM pilot. Since the VARAM pilot targeted municipal digital services, it was decided to expand activities geographically to include groups from various municipalities in size and location (Figure 42). Total number of beta testing workshops was 11, and the total number of municipalities visited - 10. Each workshop was accompanied with INTERLINK project presentation, short training and demonstration and feedback session after performing tasks and filling surveys. Thus, such activities from categories "guide me", "work with me" and "consult me" were performed together in respective locations visited.



Figure 42. Geographic distribution of VARAM pilot activities (alpha and beta testing workshops) in Latvia (red - big cities; blue - towns; yellow - villages).

Date	Engagement phase	Activity type	Description	Participants	Takeaways
17/06/22	Inform me	Awareness	Announcement of pilot start in Latvia. Press release. Two social media posts on pilot start associated with the press release.	Targeted towards the public.	It legitimised our activities as information was distributed through official VARAM channels.

Table 15. En	aaaement	activities	carried o	out in \	ARAM	pilot.
Table IV. LI	gagement	aounico	ourricut	Jacini		p



06/07/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 1 in the town of Preiļi, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	5 participants 5 female / 0 male 3 citizens / 4 PA 3 Bachelor's Degree / 2 Master's Degree 5 Advanced digital skills 5 Employed (public sector)	Small groups are effective for testing functionalities of the technical solution but are limited when it comes to citizen sourcing for service improvement.
07/07/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 2 in the town of Kuldīga, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	11 participants7 female / 4 male7 citizens / 7 PA / 1 Private sec / 1 NGO1 High School / 4 Bachelor's Degree / 6 Master's Degree10 Advanced / 1 Intermediate digital skills11 Employed (public sector) / 1 Self-employed	Technically advanced group which showed that people who work with digital platforms daily can intuitively understand also INTERLINK purpose and functionalities. Such people must be trained as administrators of co-production processes.
11/07/22	Inform me	Awareness	Information on first successful pilot workshops. Press release. Two social media posts on celebrated events.	Targeted towards the general public.	Reminding the general public about ongoing pilot study.



12/07/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 3 in the city of Liepāja, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	13 participants 10 female / 3 male 9 citizens / 7 PA / 1 Private sec / 1 High School / 3 Bachelor's Degree / 6 Master's Degree / 1 PhD 7 Advanced / 3 Intermediate / 1 Basic digital skills 9 Employed (public sector)	The group expected technical difficulties with Servicepedia which showed that technical conditions of the infrastructure must be checked before launching co-production initiatives. It reduced the amount of results as the group had a good potential.
20/07/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 4 in the village of Priekuļi, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	4 participants 2 female / 2 male 4 citizens / 1 PA / 1 Private sec / 1 NGO 1 Vocational School / 3 Bachelor's Degree 3 Advanced / 1 Intermediate 4 Employed (public sector) / 2 Self-employed	As with the first workshop, it was successful in exploring INTERLINKERs for various tasks of the co-production process. It was small, thus the group took a lot of initiative.
28/07/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 5 in the village of Pūre, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	<u>10 participants</u> 10 female / 0 male 5 citizens / 2 PA 3 Vocational School / 2 Master's Degree 1 Advanced / 4 Intermediate digital skills	This group consisted mostly of people who have limited digital skills. For them digital co- production seemed more complicated than working in person. Some participants did not proceed with practical

Page 118 of 229



				5 Employed (public sector)	tasks but observed the work of others.
03/08/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 6 in the town of Bauska, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	 <u>10 participants</u> 9 female / 1 male 6 citizens / 1 PA 6 Vocational School / 4 Bachelor's Degree 7 Advanced / 2 Intermediate / 1 Basic digital skills 10 Employed (public sector) / 1 Employed (private sector) 	The group gathered people from various parts of the municipality (towns and villages) and worked well together. The end result was good, and participants showed interest in sustainability of INTERLINK.
17/08/22	Inform me	Awareness	Two social media posts on events celebrated.	Targeted towards the general public.	Reminding the general public about ongoing pilot study.
24/08/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 7 in the city of Jelgava, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	8 participants 8 female / 0 male 7 citizens / 1 PA / 2 NGO 2 High School / 1 Vocational School / 5 Master's Degree 6 Advanced / 2 Basic digital skills	The group was very active in improving the service description. It is important for others to see a process administrator who is trusted, both personally and as a person with good digital skills.



				3 Employed (public sector) / 2 Employed (private sector) / 4 Retired	
26/08/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 8 in the city of Jūrmala, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	7 participants 6 female / 1 male 6 citizens / 1 PA / 1 Private sec / 1 NGO 4 Bachelor's Degree / 2 Master's Degree 2 Advanced / 2 Intermediate / 2 Basic digital skills 5 Employed (public sector)	The group performed activities in a relaxed manner, more like explorers of a new way of working together. This approach still yielded results but their main interest was in functionalities of INTERLINK and sustainability.
07/09/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 9 in the town of Tukums, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	<u>9 participants</u> 8 female / 1 male 3 citizens / 8 PA 1 High School / 6 Bachelor's Degree / 1 Master's Degree 7 Advanced / 1 Intermediate 8 Employed (public sector)	Specific PA targeted workshop. Enthusiastic group which was happy to see the process from the citizen's perspective, too. The group gave valuable insights about the service description creation process from a PA perspective.



12/09/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 10 in the town of Sigulda, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	8 participants 6 female / 2 male 3 citizens / 6 PA 1 High School / 3 Vocational School / 2 Bachelor's Degree / 1 Master's Degree 6 Advanced / 1 Intermediate digital skills 7 Employed (public sector) / 1 Employed (private sector)	Group with good digital skills and interest in the project. However, they encountered technical problems with Servicepdia, thus not allowing them to perform tasks entirely. It signals the project to work on the reliability of all tools for the second iteration.
14/09/22	Guide me Work with me Consult me	Training Testing Evaluation & Monitoring	Beta testing workshop 11 in the town of Ogre, Latvia. Event consisted of project presentation, INTERLINK demonstration, practical tasks, survey completion, and feedback discussion.	15 participants14 female / 1 male6 citizens / 10 PA /1 NGO2 VocationalSchool /10 Bachelor'sDegree/2 Master's Degree14 Advanceddigital skills14 Employed(public sector) / 2Employed (privatesector)	Active group which split into two teams. They worked well on descriptions and expressed interest to participate in the second iteration. Good choice of process administrators proved beneficial also this time.
22/09/22	Inform me	Awareness	Two social media posts on events celebrated.	Targeted towards the general public.	Reminding the general public about ongoing pilot study.





|--|

Next, a brief analysis of the community building process carried out in VARAM is provided. VARAM notes that 89 participants out of 100 filled demographic data surveys, and percentages are counted taking 100 participants as a basis.

The following details sum-up the profile of the participants in VARAM's pilot activities:

- <u>Target audience:</u>
 - o Total number of stakeholders involved: 100
 - Female (%): 85(85%)
 - Male (%): 15(15%)
 - o Stakeholders' types (some of them overlap):
 - Citizen: 59(59%)
 - Public servant: 48(48%)
 - Non-profit organization: 6(6%)
 - For-profit organization: 4(4%)
- Level of education:
 - Secondary school: 0(0%)
 - o High school diploma: 6(6%)
 - Vocational training: 16(16%)
 - University degree: 67(67%)
- Digital tools knowledge level:
 - o Basis level: 6(6%)
 - o Intermediate Level: 15(15%)
 - o Advanced Level: 68(68%)
- <u>Work status (some of them overlap):</u>
 - o Unemployed: 0(0%)
 - Self-employed: 3(3%)
 - Employed (private sector): 6(6%)
 - Employed (public sector): 81(81%)
 - Retired: 4(4%)

In summary, this pilot participants had an overwhelming majority of female participants. It can be explained by the fact that women make up a majority of public sector employment and are more active in local communities. Most participants had





university level education and represented both citizens and public administration in a rather balanced ratio. Most of the people possessed advanced digital skills. Participants tended to be employed in the public sector while other forms of employment made up an insignificant part of the participants' pool.

Table 15 contains the listing of activities carried out by VARAM in the pilot execution subphase. As a summary the below table indicates what % of activities in each of the engagement levels defined were achieved.

- Number of activities: 41
- <u>Classification of activities</u> (% activities vs total number of activities):
 - o Inform me activities: 8(19%)
 - o Guide me activities: 11(27%)
 - Work with me activities: 11(27%)
 - o Consult me activities: 11(27%)
- <u>Average satisfaction level in activities</u>: helpfulness 3,1; interest 3,8; usefulness 3,5; topicality 3,4.
- <u>Target components</u>:
 - o Collaborative environment
 - o Augmenter INTERLINKER
 - o Google Drive

Notice that Loomio and Collaborative Editor were tested but not actually pushed from the pilot.

Overall, in order to facilitate the co-production process and meet KPIs, VARAM decided to organise an extensive number of workshops as shown in Table 15. It helped to reach a diversity of stakeholders and produce a significant amount of feedback, both about co-production process and technical improvements for future releases of INTERLINK collaborative environment. It is reflected in statistics of VARAM pilots. However, due to the nature of the use case and digital tools used, there is no gender balance and people with weak digital skills are excluded, even though they are the ones who would benefit most from the service description improvements.

3.3.4. VARAM KPIs

This section describes the KPIs that were defined to measure the achievement of the goals of this pilot.

Notice that annexes <u>6.1. INTERLINK global KPIs</u> and <u>6.2. INTERLINK local KPIs</u> gather the KPIs that were designed in D5.1. Some adaptations over the KPIs originally designed have been performed, which are commented under the "Comments" heading. Please also be aware that KPI numbering that includes a second level, e.g. A1.2 are additional





KPIs that have been defined to provide further information about the outcomes of the evaluation. Table 16. KPIs for VARAM pilot.

A	INTERLINK Use and Co-production of Services	Objective	VARAM	Comments
A1	Number of INTERLINKERs used in an actual public service	3	62	Because each workshop worked with different service descriptions, the number of INTERLINKERs is significantly higher. Participants did not re-use INTERLINKERs used by other teams.
A1.1	Number of software INTERLINKERs	-	5	
A1.2	Used software INTERLINKERs	-	Google Drive, Collaborative editor, Augmenter, Loomio	Augmenter was instantiated 22 times, being the most used INTERLINKER, followed by Google Drive INTERLINKER which was instantiated 9 times, whilst the other two INTERLIKERs were instantiated once.
A1.3	Number of used software INTERLINKERs	-	4	
A1.4	Number of external software INTERLINKERs	-	12	
A1.5	Number of external knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	12	
A1.6	Number of external INTERLINKERs	-	24	
A1.7	Number of knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	33	
A1.8	Used knowledge INTERLINKERS	_	Template for semi structured interview, Template for user journey, Consent Form for INTERLINK project, Information Sheet for INTERLINK project, Stakeholders identification analysis	They were not used often. Only tested in very few processes, once or twice per knowledge INTELINKER.

Page 124 of 229



			template guidelines, Business Model Canvas	
A1.9	Number of used knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	6	
Α2	Number of citizens involved in service customization	100	51	VARAM considers this KPI to be met because there were 100 participants involved in workshops (they did take part in service customization). Some of them were registered as PA or other types of stakeholders based on administrator's preference. However, first and foremost each participant approached the activity from a citizen's perspective and they were allowed to overlap with PA and other types of stakeholders because VARAM allowed recruitment of participants to be autonomously performed in each location.
A2.1	Number of citizens involved in co- delivered services	-	0	There was no co-delivery intended in the first iteration.
A2.2	Number of citizens involved in co- designed services	-	51	Look at A20 for the overall number of users that connected to INTERLINK.
А3	Number of INTERLINKERs with flag is_sustainabilty enabled	3	5	The original KPI was "Number of partnership enablers used within INTERLINK service instance". It was updated to accommodate to what was modelled in the platform.
Δ4	Number of citizens registered to INTERLINK platform	100	53	Actual number of users is at least 107 based on signed consent forms of participation. In here, they are reflected only those that defined themselves as "citizens" according to what users declared. A20 shows the global number of users making use of the Collaborative Environment.
А5	Number of citizens involved in co- delivered services	25	51	Same as A2, since in the co-production process specifically defined for VARAM pilot participants also contributed to phase RUN which corresponds to the co-delivery part of a process.
A6	Number of teams	-	25	
A6.1	Number of public administration teams	-	12	
A6.2	Number of public	-	10	



	administration teams involved in a co- production process			
A6.3	Number of citizen teams	-	10	
A6.4	Number of citizen teams involved in a co- production process	-	8	
A6.5	Number of TSO teams	-	3	
A6.6	Number of TSO teams involved in a co- production process	-	3	
Α7	Number of TSOs users	5	10	
A 8	Number of TSO users involved in a co- production process	5	10	
Α9	Number of public servants	5	43	Significant number of local PA stakeholders were attracted as the activity was relevant to them. Local contact points usually were in close touch with the public sector.
A10	Number of public servants involved in a co-production process	5	42	Almost all local PA stakeholders managed to be involved in at least a co-production process.
A11	Number of new co- production processes	1	59	Relevant number of co-production processes is 12. However, a lot of participants used the opportunity to try out the administrator's role by creating their test process and to see the opportunities provided by the collaborative environment.
A11.1	Number of co- production processes in English	-	7	
A11.2	Number of co- production processes in Latvian	1	52	Relevant number of co-production processes is 12. All the datasets were created in Latvian
A11.3	Number of co- production processes in Italian	-	0	
A11.4	Number of co- production processes in Spanish	-	0	
A12	Number of active users per month	100	61	Number of 100 users was reached gradually and it should be the same as registered users (at least 100). Users were active at





				workshop times and it was recorded throughout different times within pilot iteration. The month were most activity was found was in August.
A13	Number of processes with teams of different stakeholders	1	2	Users that took part in the pilot activities qualified themselves as public servants and/or citizens
A14	Number of TSO teams involved in a co- production process	-	3	
A15	Number of co- production processes involved in sustainability	1	0	
A16	Percentage of users who completed the in- app questionnaires and made improved suggestions	25%	89%	Percentage of participants who answered the activity satisfaction survey (thus making sure that they stayed until the end of the event) and were present in feedback discussion sessions. Face-to-face discussions were organised as extended versions of in-app questionnaires as VARAM had a possibility to collect feedback directly from participants.
A17	Number of INTERLINKERs reused in more than one public service	2	3	
A18	Number of assets	-	33	
A18.1	Number of external assets	-	2	
A18.2	Number of internal assets	-	31	
A19	Number of organizations	-	24	
A20	Number of users	-	111	
A21	Average of members per team	-	5	
В	THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK			
B1	Perception of reduction of administrative and management costs	3	4.0	In a scale of 1 to 5, it was perceived that INTERLINK helped to reduce administrative and management costs

Page 127 of 229



B2	Quantity of co- produced initiatives (baseline: number of previously co- produced public services)	3	10	There was none. In case of this iteration, it can be perceived as 10 if service descriptions' enhancement is counted.
B3	Quality of co- production initiatives	3	3.7	In a scale of 1 to 5, it was perceived that INTERLINK generally helps to enhance the quality of co-production initiatives.
B4	Increased participation of citizens and private entities in customization of public services	> 50%	> 100 %	There is no baseline as there were no such activities before. KPI is met but without a specific number.
В5	Increased participation of citizens and private entities in co-delivery of public services	> 50%	0	There was no co-delivery in this iteration.
С	The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK			
C1.1	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	4.1	In a scale 1-5, the results indicates that INTERLINK was considered overall usable.
C1.2	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	3.8	A lot of usability requirements were collected; there is a room for improvement.
C2.1	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	3.3	Participants raised questions about data storage which resulted in lower trust than intended.
C2.2	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	3.5	Participants raised questions about data storage which resulted in lower trust than intended.
C3.1	Acceptance assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	3.5	Participants were slightly confused if this solution is the most effective for co- production tasks
C3.2	Acceptance assessment of	4	3.4	Participants were slightly confused if this solution is the most effective for co-



	produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]			
C4.1	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools and INTERLINK- powered public services [Citizens]	80%	77%	Close to the target, however, based on C1.1 - C3.2 KPIs, there is room for improvement in order to reach the target.
C4.1	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools and INTERLINK- powered public services [Others]	80%	76%	Close to the target, however, based on C1.1 - C3.2 KPIs, there is room for improvement in order to reach the target.
D	Pilot specific KPIs			
D1.1	Number of service descriptions improved through INTERLINK	>= 3	10	Almost every location visited by VARAM was representing different municipalities, thus there were 10 different services used for workshops. However, the content of services was based on 4 possibly unifiable municipal services across all municipalities (Social services for disabled; Registration of address; Registration of a kid in the queue for kindergarten; Registration of a kid for educational institution) https://latvija.lv/PPK/dzives- situacija/apakssituacija/p11451.s5902.t289 /ProcesaApraksts https://latvija.lv/PPK/dzives- situacija/apakssituacija/p2679.s7936.t12/P rocesaApraksts https://latvija.lv/PPK/izglitiba/pirmsskolas = audzinasana/p4853.s5903.t111/ProcesaApr aksts https://latvija.lv/PPK/izglitiba/pirmsskolas = audzinasana/p12147.s5903.t595/ProcesaAp raksts https://latvija.lv/PPK/izglitiba/pirmsskolas = audzinasana/p8155.s5903.t89/ProcesaApra ksts



				https://latvija.lv/PPK/izglitiba/pirmsskolas = audzinasana/p8478.s5903.t9/ProcesaApra ksts https://latvija.lv/PPK/dzives- situacija/apakssituacija/p8064.s5902.t11/P rocesaApraksts https://latvija.lv/lv/PPK/izglitiba/pirmsskol as-audzinasana/p4545/ProcesaApraksts https://latvija.lv/PPK/socialie- pakalpojumi/invaliditates- pakalpojumi/p8394.s7935.t432/ProcesaApr aksts One of the services is already removed (no link) and is offered only centrally through state-wide unified service.
D1.2	Perceived improvement in service descriptions thanks to INTERLINK from citizens perspective	>= 50%	56%	Calculated as a share of choices of 4 and 5 in the scale 1-5 of the evaluation of the statement "Due to Augmenter/Servicepedia, the options to consume this service are increased"
D1.3	Perceived improved productivity in collaboratively enhancing public service descriptions	>= 50%	56%	Calculated as a share of choices of 4 and 5 in the scale 1-5 of the evaluation of the statement "The use of INTERLINK collaborative tools reduces the general difficulty in co-producing public services".
D1.4	Municipalities involved in INTERLINK pilot	> 3	10	Almost every location visited by VARAM was representing different municipalities, thus there were 10 different municipalities represented.
D1.5	Digital agents involved in INTERLINK pilot (trained)	>10	24	Digital agents were specifically targeted for events and their turnout was twice as high as expected. Several of them were VARAM contact points for recruitment of participants in workshop locations.

3.3.5. VARAM's reflection on KPIs

Overall, VARAM was able to meet KPIs, and even KPIs which were not met showed only slight deviation. It means that with certain improvements in digital tools (collaborative environments and INTERLINKERs), it is possible to meet them in the second pilot





iteration. Not all KPIs automatically counted could produce the right result (especially KPIs on participants and their profile), thus manual tracking of several KPIs was performed in parallel through collecting participation consent forms and questions in questionnaires. VARAM's reflection on categories of KPIs is as follows:

 <u>"A. INTERLINK Use and Co-production of Services"</u>. VARAM managed to include all types of stakeholders it intended. The final number of participants was 107, including alpha testers. There was a higher number of PA representatives, and it can be explained with recruitment practice where local contact persons invited interested parties for workshops, mostly concentrating on the public sector. However, the task set by VARAM was designed to be carried out from a citizen's perspective.

The processes were not re-used but created every time for each new workshop, thus increasing the number of them. It might be beneficial to try also re-using processes in the next iteration.

Instead of simply filling out short in-app questionnaires, VARAM opted for deeper conversation at the end of each workshop, to collect more qualitative feedback which is reflected in other parts of this chapter. Detailed feedback was provided to consortium members.

- <u>"B. The Value Provided by INTERLINK"</u>. KPIs in this category show that participants see the benefit in such digital solutions, both in reduction of the use of resources and increased quality of co-production initiatives. However, it is hard to assess the level of increase of such opinion as co-production initiatives in the field of digital services were not implemented before the INTERLINK project by VARAM.
- <u>"C. The User's Perceptions of INTERLINK Integrate Here Quality"</u>. Most of the KPIs in this section were not met, however, deviations are small. VARAM was able to indicate several reasons from qualitative discussions why participants hesitated to assign higher scores in these categories. One of the concerns was about data storage and privacy as participants did not understand who stores co-production data where and for how long ("Who's Google Drive is it?"). For some participants face-to-face co-production seemed more effective. Also, there were a lot of usability requirements collected which indicated that usability of the collaborative environment and INTERLINKERS does not meet expectations of users yet.
- <u>"D. Pilot specific KPIs"</u>. All KPIs were met, and some of them exceeded expectations. There was a very high activity of digital agents in this pilot iteration which also helped in recruitment of testers. Also, since groups of participants were relatively small, VARAM involved a much higher number of municipalities than intended in the pilot-planning period.

3.3.6. Reflections on VARAM's pilot execution subphase





In summary, VARAM activities carried out in recruitment of participants and organisation of activities in all parts reflected the idea of a co-production process in the INTERLINK collaborative environment. Even though for the most part activities were carried out face-to-face (Figure 43) to get significantly more feedback about the process and future technical improvements, they were equivalent to tasks set out in co-production trees in the collaborative environment.



Figure 43. INTERLINK workshops led by VARAM in various locations in Latvia (from top left: in towns of Bauska, Kuldīga, Sigulda, and Ogre)

VARAM was determined to expand the geography of events, thus contacted several local municipalities, digital centres, and libraries, and introduced the project's idea to a contact person in each location. After that, the local contact person was responsible to gather participants and build a network of stakeholders for the workshop (ENGAGEMENT phase). Workshops consisted of project presentation, training, and demonstration sessions led by VARAM, after which participants worked together in a collaborative environment with service description improvement (DESIGN phase). After that survey and feedback session concluded the event. Although the collaborative environment has no rewards system yet, VARAM rewarded all participants with a gift and representation materials (see Figure 44) physically as it is important to keep them engaged and involve them in awareness building of the project.

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3





VARAM also kept the public engaged about pilot activities by utilising VARAM social media and disseminating press releases, primarily to locations where workshops took place. During the pilot iteration VARAM produced 10 social media posts and 3 press releases¹³. Even though this topic is specific, such an approach together with established stakeholders' networks throughout Latvia in pilot iteration 1 will help VARAM to set up the use case and possible participants' pool for the pilot iteration 2. *Figure 44. INTERLINK representation materials and a gift for VARAM pilot iteration 1 participants (a notebook, a pen and a solar power bank)*

Two activities in towns of Kuldīga and Ogre highlighted the importance of administrators with good digital skills. Co-production processes need enthusiastic and skilful facilitators, thus it is a prerequisite for a successful use of a collaborative environment. Regardless of technological complexity, good administrators can



motivate other participants to carry out tasks and reach the group's goals. Also, small groups proved to be more efficient and creative (as seen in workshops of Preiļi and

https://www.varam.gov.lv/lv/jaunums/veiksmigi-noritejusi-interlink-platformas-testesana

¹³Press releases disseminated and published on VARAM website. Also, accompanying social media entries were created. <u>https://www.varam.gov.lv/lv/jaunums/sakusies-horizon-2020-projekta-interlink-tehniska-risinajuma-sadarbibas-vides-testesanas-pirma-karta</u>

https://www.varam.gov.lv/lv/jaunums/noslegusies-horizon-2020-projekta-interlink-tehniska-risinajumasadarbibas-vides-testesanas-pirma-karta





Priekuļi). Whenever there is a larger co-production initiative, a small pilot workshop before its launch could be beneficial. It would help the process administrator to find even more ways of reaching the goal besides the intended scenario.

Pain points are mostly related to lack of enthusiastic process administrators. Coproduction participants then feel lost and unable to switch between various tasks and interfaces within a collaborative environment. Administrator creates resources and assigns permissions, and people trust them.

Also, the registration process has proven to be complicated. Even though the process itself is a standard procedure, Latvian participants were not informed (within a collaborative environment) in any step that they cannot use diacritics in their names as well as that the password must include a certain set of characters. It created confusion in the very beginning of each workshop, and that was not the right way to start the activity.

3.4. Pilot execution subphase at ZGZ

3.4.1. ZGZ pilot goals

The aim of Zaragoza pilot overall is to:

- 1. Provide a digital layer to our physical co-creation and co-delivery activities
- 2. Increase our internal productivity through better reporting, tracking, and booking, also creating a data feedback loop for agile improvement
- 3. Improve the citizen perception in our brand as a City Making Center through a more accessible and open catalogue of services
- 4. Promote the transition from users to co-producers and co-deliverers from an agile and "open source" approach.
- 5. Enhance the engagement and participation level of the communities around Etopia_ including its co-governance through tokenization and gamification.

However, the first iteration of our pilot (now completed) has addressed the two first goals of the above list, since they are the first truly building blocks of what Zaragoza still aims to achieve through INTERLINK.

Specifically, we aimed at testing whether the Collaborative Environment provided by INTERLINK could effectively address the needs of the co-creation, co-design and co-production of <u>Etopia</u>.





Regarding the activity booking module, the objectives in this first iteration of the project were to test them in parallel with the tool that the centre is currently using, to address gains in productivity and usability.

3.4.2. ZGZ co-production approach

This section describes how co-production has been applied with the help of INTERLINK in this pilot.

	STEPS OF CO-PRODUCTION SCENARIO	SUPPORT PROVIDED BY INTERLINK PLATFORM
ENGAGEMENT	ZGZ launched a new participatory process named "Habitar Etopia" to co-create (with the communities of the "Etopia centre for Arts and Technology") its goals, governance scheme, sustainability model, as well as some of its services and facilities.	INTERLINK provides the technical, methodological and support framework into which the process fits.
	ZGZ gathers a network of interested stakeholders (Etopia's staff and other Public and Private Bodies). These correspond to the institutions and agents involved in running or programming the centre). In this first iteration the agents are mainly those involved in eTOPIA programming, int the second iteration these activities will be opened to the public (or at least to a wider group of stakeholders).	INTERLINK provides the users and stakeholders typology (personas) that allowed Zaragoza to thoroughly address the otherwise complex task of stakeholder mapping and role definition.

Table 17. Co-production process carried out in ZGZ.





DESIGN	 ZGZ prepared and organized specific codesign activities on the Collaborative Environment and with the use of specific INTERLINKERs. For internal staff, a whole set of activities around the design of the Activity Booking INTERLINKER. For internal as well as external stakeholders a set of workshops on the collaborative environment was also organized. The goal is to stimulate a discussion with the stakeholders engaged to share different needs, expectations, and ideas in order to co-design the new module functionalities. 	INTERLINK provided for this task: • service design (canvas) tools for workshop, • interviews and surveys; • provision of guidelines for co-design;
	 ZGZ, at the end of the pilot 1st iteration and using the stakeholders' feedback, started the co-design of several new public services: 1. Cafetopia: mostly internal 2. Environmental campaigns for kids & schools: external During the next weeks we will closely monitor how the communities respond to both challenges, so we can extract conclusions on the suitability of the collaborative environment to co-creation experiences involving internal and external stakeholders. 	Tools: INTERLINKERs collaborative environment.





EVALUATION	At the end of the pilot 1st iteration, questionnaires, surveys and one-to-one interviews were provided to ask stakeholders their feedback on the INTERLINK Platform and its INTERLINKERs, as well as on the new developed tools. For ZGZ the more valuable feedback came from the attendees as experts in collaborative processes.	Users' feedback questionnaires and KPIs monitoring systems.
IMPLEMENTATION	The outcome of this pilot is the implementation of a new tool (the activity booking module) with extensive features to enhance productivity inside Etopia. It is the result of a co-design with internal staff and the technical partners of the project.	As a matter of fact the <u>Event</u> <u>Organizer</u> (accessible in INTERLINK's catalogue) external software INTERLINKER has been created.

3.4.3. ZGZ activities during pilot execution subphase

This section describes the list of activities that were carried out in the ZGZ pilot.

Date	Engagemen t phase	Activity type	Description	Participants (*)	Takeaways
14/02/22	Inform me	Communica tion	Habitar Etopia_ was a first event promoted by Zaragoza City Council to bring together all the agents involved in the innovation ecosystem of Etopia in a co- creation and co- design session to generate and manage new services based on	Number attendees: 56 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organisation & for- profit organisation	Communicate the start of the testing phase of the INTERLINK project to a broad community that involves people who, although not active in this first iteration of the Zaragoza pilot, are part of our community. Some of them will have a more active role in the second iteration of the pilot. Our goal is to

Table 18. Engagement activities carried out in ZGZ pilot.



			the existing relationships between them. In this session we presented the possibilities of Interlink.		keep them informed of the progress even when their participation is minimal.
25/03/22	Inform me	Communica tion	First working session with the group of alpha testers and the development team to present the collaborative platform and discuss its potentials.	Number attendees: 12 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organisation & for- profit organisation	Make the testers feel that they are an important part of the project from the beginning.
20/04/22	Inform me	Communica tion	Launch of the pilot in Zaragoza - Informal meeting to communicate explain INTERLINK in a practical way to the staff. Hunt for people with different profiles among the staff to be testers.	Number attendees: 17 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organization & for- profit organization	Brief tour of the collaborative environment recalling the use scenarios of Zaragoza and the possible fit of the tool to carry them out.
18/05/22	Guide me	Testing	Onboarding session - First contact of the testers with the collaborative environment. Enabling the collaborative environment for the Zaragoza pilot. (test of credentials and access for some testers).	Number attendees: 6 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organization & for- profit organization	It was important to gather the testers to register and access the platform to familiarize them with the environment and use it to give their impressions on the potential of the collaborative environment as a co-design tool. The testers were also asked to think about features



					that might be missing as well as to report any problems they might find when testing the tool.
23/05/22	Guide me	Testing	Training with Deusto on some functionalities of the Collaborative Environment.	Number attendees: 6 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organization & for- profit organization	The activity was important to better understand the workflow of the collaborative tool before doing a course with more agents. It was also useful to clarify some problems detected with user registration as well as with the addition of registered users to teams.
06/07/22	Inform me	Training	Planning and design of training sessions on the collaborative environment and INTERLINKERs for testers to be held during the month of July.	Number attendees: 4 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organization & for- profit organization	Although tests and mini-workshops were carried out with the collaborative environment (some of them led by Deusto), it was noticed that the testers were not very motivated to use the collaborative environment, so it was decided to hire an expert in collaborative approaches to conduct a course that would link the collaborative environment with a real co-design process.



_			
			In the design of
			the workshop, we
			tried to take into
			account the
			experience gained
			so far through the
			feedback from the
			testers. We
			involved an expert
			in collaborative
			processes to
			make the design
			of the course
			more attractive
			and relevant.
			We informed the
			expert about the
			aim of the
			INTERLINK
			project in general
			and the Zaragoza
			use case in
			particular. With
			this information
			we designed a
			course that, on
			the one hand,
			would allow users
			to use the tool
			fluently and, on
			the other hand,
			would be as
			practical as
			possible. I o
			achieve this
			objective, a topic
			was chosen to be
			co-created using
			che collaborative
			environment. All
			course participanta would
			work on this tonic
			togothor
			together.



29/06/22	Guide me	Communica tion	Reminder and practical information on the session scheduled for July to selected participants. An invitation and an explanatory email describing what the training would consist of was sent. https://drive.googl e.com/file/d/10c0k PwyyZ0tV5v_8hCht g0pH4dlf26Pk/view ?usp=sharing The mailing also included a form for attendees to choose from 3 possible topics they would like to co- create with the tool: https://docs.google .com/forms/d/e/1F Alp0LScsdvWmsW TUdJ40woedbA_RV GDcGWveEV7CWKv sN1Rm7_djow/viewf orm?fbzx=- 44428359182768990 20	Number people: 22	Preparing the mailing and processing the responses to it enabled us to fine- tune the content of the course to the topic that was chosen by the majority of respondents.
28/08/22	Guide me	Communica	Reminder email including even more detailed documentation and instructions to follow to register for the training session.	Number people: 22 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organisation & for- profit organisation 16 consent forms 16 demographics & activity satisfaction questionnaires	



07/09/22	Work with me	Workshops	Collaborative Environment. Cafetopia I. People who are part of the eTOPIA ecosystem, including staff from	6 final end users' questionnaires 5 co-producers' questionnaires Number attendees: 15 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organisation & for-	The event brought together various types of stakeholders (all from the eTOPIA ecosystem) who tested the collaborative
			the city council, the FZC, the university and the business incubators.	profit organisation 16 consent forms 16 demographics & activity satisfaction questionnaires 6 final end users' questionnaires 5 co-producers' questionnaires INTERLINKERs used: - Template for use case scenarios - 10 x	environment. Some participants provided suggestions for improving the user experience in using the collaborative environment. The event was important because it was intended to get a feel for what it would be like to implement a tool such as the
				External resources - Stakeholder types guidelines	Collaborative Environment in the co-creation processes that are usually carried out at Etopia. Almost all the attendees were the people who lead the participatory processes at the centre. Their opinion is of utmost importance. Evaluation questionnaires were filled
					providing data for analysis





14/09/22	Work with me	Workshops	Collaborative Environment. Cafetopia II	Number attendees: 15 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organization & for- profit organization	There was a great debate on the importance of agility in the co- production of services that took up a significant part of the course. We highlight this because working with the tool implies an important time effort. For example, to customize the co- creation scheme to the specific needs of each co- production process requires extra time which is not always available. We are used to working with more agile and flexible co- creation processes (our work methodology is closely in line with fast iterations to achieve a
					iterations to achieve a minimum viable product soon).
19/09/22	Consult me	Monitoring	Breakfast meeting: Informal meeting with the attendees of the two co- creation workshops on their impressions around the Collaborative Environment as a potential tool for co-creation	Number attendees: 5 Target audience: Citizens & public servant & non-profit organization & for- profit organization	The session is important because the feedback obtained from the participants gave an idea of the popularity of the tool and how easy/difficult it can be to implement it as a tool to be used on





			processes.		a daily basis by the team.
28/09/22	Work with me	Training	Training session II with "Cloud'N'Sci" on eTOPIA's activity booking module. Testing the functionality of the tool. Objectives: 1 Testing the functionality of the tool 2 Solving doubts about the information flow of the tool 3 Requesting changes/improvem ents: Roles and authorisation levels for users, removal of superfluous information, small bugs detected, etc.	Number attendees: 5	Cloud'N'Sci enabled a form to report bugs and possible malfunctions that may arise with the use of the tool: https://docs.goog le.com/document /d/1ZnGuCMaso57 bE6hSYPLRwEUC OS3xvoXBE0tdKM Tlejg/edit The first version of the tool was available for testing later than expected. The summer period did not help to progress at the expected pace. However, communication with Cloud'N'Sci has been very fluid and fruitful throughout the implementation phase of the tool. There are still some proposals to be applied to the tool to improve its usability and to better adapt it to Zaragoza's needs (we are working with Cloud'N'Sci) to incorporate them.




(*) More detailed information on gender, type of work, technology skills, etc. is available at: <u>https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1C2GMDfnR6RfcEHFMw7_rVp0Zk6ng09IF6GNWCt42yWE/edit#gid=2040411598</u> (Not all activities asked about this data).

The <u>ZGZ activity table</u> collects the following information about participants: gender, type of stakeholder, educational level, knowledge of digital tools and employment status.

As relevant data on the participants who took part in the various activities, it should be noted that there was a good gender balance, in fact slightly more women than men attended.

In terms of technological skills, the bulk of the participants have an advanced level and only a few can be rated as medium level in this regard.

Regarding work status, the Zaragoza pilot in this first phase of the project has focused mainly on working with the internal agents that comprise its core. Namely: University staff, ZGZ staff, ZFK staff and business incubator staff. For this reason, the diversity of work status of the participants is almost entirely circumscribed to these 2 options:

- Employed (public sector)
- Employed (private sector)

Next, a brief analysis of the community building process carried out in ZGZ is provided.

The following details sum-up the profile of the participants in this pilot activities:

- <u>Target audience:</u>
 - o Total number of stakeholders involved: 56
 - Female (%): 35(62,5%)
 - Male (%): 21 (37,5%)
 - o Stakeholders' types:
 - Citizen (%): 4 (7,15%)
 - Public servant (%): 24(42,8%)
 - Non-profit organization (%): 14 (25%)
 - For-profit organization (%): 12 (21,4%)
- <u>Level of education</u>: (data relating only to those who participated in "work with me" activities -16 people-)
 - Secondary school: 0(0%)
 - o High school diploma: (0%)
 - Vocational training: 4(25%)
 - o University degree: 12(75%)
- <u>Digital tools knowledge level</u>: (data relating only to those who participated in "work with me" activities -16 people-)





- Basis level:0(0%)
- o Intermediate Level: 5(13,25%)
- Advanced Level: 11(68,75%)
- <u>Work status</u> (data relating only to those who participated in "work with me" activities -16 people-):
 - Unemployed: 0(0%)
 - Self-employed: 1(6,25%)
 - Employed (private sector):7(43,75%)
 - Employed (public sector): 8(50%)

Table 18 contains the listing of activities carried out by ZGZ in the pilot execution subphase. As a summary, the below list indicates what % of activities in each of the engagement levels defined were achieved.

- <u>Number of activities</u>: 12
- <u>Classification of activities</u> (% activities vs total number of activities):
 - o Inform me activities: 4(33,3%)
 - o Guide me activities: 4 (33,3%)
 - Work with me activities: 3 (25%)
 - o Consult me activities: 1 (8%)
- <u>Average satisfaction level in activities</u> (3.2): helpfulness 3,0; interest 3,8; usefulness 2,5; topicality 3,4.
- <u>Target components</u>:
 - Collaborative environment. Some INTERLINKERs (Canvas, User Map, google docs, Template for use case scenarios - 10 x External resources - Stakeholder types guidelines) were instantiated in the Cafetopia co-creation process.
 - Activity booking module, named Event Organizer in Catalogue. (Booking + Calendar).

We have provided evidence through photos that were taken in some activities. In other cases, evidence is provided in the form of documents (emails, reports, programs, etc.). All this information is detailed in the activity sheet provided for this purpose, which has been completed for each activity carried out by Zaragoza.

Just as an example, these are some graphic pieces of evidence of the Zaragoza pilot.





Figure 45. Habitar Etopia_ to bring together all the agents involved in the innovation ecosystem of Etopia.



IINTERLINK

Sesiones de cocreación de Habitar Etopia sobre el entorno colaborativo de Interlink

Os invitamos a trabajar sobre las propuestas surgidas en el seno de *Habitar Etopia* a partir del entorno colaborativo de Interlink con el fin de afianzar procesos internos, familiarizarnos con el uso de una herramienta digital de cocreación y seguir avanzando en los procesos de cocreación del centro.

Metodología

Eminentemente práctica, estará guiada por el facilitador Antonio Bretón.

Próximas sesiones

Se proponen 4 sesiones de 3 horas en horario de 10h a 13h con descanso para café en las siguientes fechas:

- 7 de julio
- 14 de julio
- 7 de septiembre
- 14 de septiembre

Espacio a concretar en función del número de participantes.

Asistencia

Si vas a asistir a la próxima sesión del jueves, 7 de julio por favor, indícanoslo reservando tu plaza a través del correo electrónico:

interlink.eu@gmail.com

Contacto

FZC FUNDACIÓN ZARAGOZA



🛂 Zaragoza

Figure 46. Reminder and additional information on the practical session scheduled for July.





Figure 47. Collaborative Environment. Cafetopia II event.





Figure 48. Collaborative Environment. Cafetopia I with people who are part of the eTOPIA ecosystem.



Figure 49. Training session II with "Cloud'N'Sci" on eTOPIA's calendar and resource booking application.

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 150 of 229





3.4.4. ZGZ KPIs

This section describes the KPIs that were defined to measure the achievement of the goals of this pilot.

Notice that annexes <u>6.1. INTERLINK global KPIs</u> and <u>6.2. INTERLINK local KPIs</u> gather the KPIs that were designed in D5.1 [1]. Some adaptations over the KPIs originally designed have been performed, which are commented under the "Comments" heading. Please also be aware that KPI numbering that includes a second level, e.g. A1.2 are additional KPIs that have been defined to provide further information about the outcomes of the evaluation.

		Т	able 19. KPIs for ZG	Z pilot.
A	INTERLINK Use and Co-production of Services	Objective	ZGZ	Comments
A1	Number of INTERLINKERs used in an actual public service	3	62	As a matter of fact, Google Drive mainly was the software INTERLIKER mostly used.
A1.1	Number of software INTERLINKERs	-	5	
A1.2	Used software INTERLINKERs	-	Google Drive Augmenter	Google Drive: 15 times Augmenter: once
A1.3	Number of used software INTERLINKERs	-	2	
A1.4	Number of external software INTERLINKERs	-	12	
A1.5	Number of external knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	12	
A1.6	Number of external INTERLINKERs	-	24	
A1.7	Number of knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	33	
A1.8	Used knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	Stakeholder types guidelines Stakeholders Mapping Canvas	Stakeholder types guidelines: 2 times Stakeholders Mapping Canvas: once Template for use case scenarios: 2 times Stakeholders' identification analysis template guidelines: 2 times Demographic and activity satisfaction

INTERLINK





			Template for use case scenarios Stakeholders' identification analysis template guidelines Demographic and activity satisfaction questionnaire	questionnaire: once
A1.9	Number of used knowledge INTERLINKERs	-	5	
A2	Number of citizens involved in service customization	100	18	It is expected that in iteration 2 a wider involvement of citizens will occur.
A2.1	Number of citizens involved in co- delivered services	-	0	
A2.2	Number of citizens involved in co- designed services	-	18	All citizens that took part did it in co-design activities.
А3	Number of INTERLINKERs with flag is_sustainabilty enabled	3	5	Rephrased from "Number of partnership enablers used within INTERLINK service instance". Now, it refers to Number of INTERLINKERs that promote sustainability used in co-production processes
Δ4	Number of citizens registered to INTERLINK platform	100	19	
A5	Number of citizens			Come as A0.1 in 707 sitizana participation
	involved in co- delivered services	50	0	was in the co-design stages of the co- production process
A6	involved in co- delivered services Number of teams	50 -	0	was in the co-design stages of the co- production process
A6 A6.1	involved in co- delivered servicesNumber of teamsNumber of public administration teams	50 - -	0 8 1	was in the co-design stages of the co- production process
A6 A6.1 A6.2	involved in co- delivered servicesNumber of teamsNumber of public administration teamsNumber of public administration teams involved in a co- production process	50 - -	0 8 1 1	was in the co-design stages of the co- production process
A6 A6.1 A6.2 A6.3	involved in co- delivered servicesNumber of teamsNumber of public administration teamsNumber of public administration teams involved in a co- production processNumber of citizen teams	50 - - -	0 8 1 1 4	was in the co-design stages of the co- production process



	co-production process			
A6.5	Number of TSO teams	-	3	
A6.6	Number of TSO teams involved in a co- production process	-	2	
Α7	Number of TSOs users	2	11	
A 8	Number of TSO users involved in a co- production process	2	10	
Α9	Number of public servants	2	4	
A10	Number of public servants involved in a co- production process	2	1	People that took part in the activities mostly belonged to non-profit organizations (foundations) rather than being direct civil servants
A11	Number of new co- production processes	3	13	
A11.1	Number of co- production processes in English	-	6	
A11.2	Number of co- production processes in Latvian	-	0	
A11.3	Number of co- production processes in Italian	-	0	
A11.4	Number of co- production processes in Spanish	-	7	
A12	Number of active users per month	100	10	Users were active at workshop times, and it was recorded throughout different times within pilot iteration. The month where most activity was found was in September.
A13	Number of processes with teams of different stakeholders	1	4	Mixed citizen, public servants and TSO teams were configured
A14	Number of TSO teams involved in a co- production process	3	2	
A15	Number of co- production processes	0	0	



	involved in sustainability			
A16	Percentage of users who completed the in-app questionnaires and made improved suggestions	25%	12/31 = <mark>38%</mark>	12 registered users completed the evaluation questionnaires to provide feedback out of the 31 users registered.
A17	Number of INTERLINKERs reused in more than one public service	2	4	
A18	Number of assets	-	12	
A18.1	Number of external assets	-	10	
A18.2	Number of internal assets	-	2	
A19	Number of organizations	-	7	
A20	Number of users	-	31	
A21	Average of members per team	-	5	
В	THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK			
B1	Perception of reduction of administrative and management costs	3	3	Participants saw the benefit of these digital
В2	Quantity of co- produced initiatives (baseline: number of previously co- produced public services)	3	1	solutions in reducing the use of resources as well as positively complementing the quality of co-production initiatives. However, it is difficult to quantify this view beyond a personal perception.
B3	Quality of co- production initiatives	3	3	
Β4	Increased participation of citizens and private entities in customization of public services	> 50%	N/A	At this stage it doesn't apply. In any case there is no previous record of this KPI so that even in the future it will be difficult to establish this percentage based on past data.



B5	Increased participation of citizens and private entities in co-delivery of public services	> 50%		
C	The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK			
C1.1	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4	N/A	In this phase the activities collecting feedback on the usability of the INTERLINKERs were addressed to the eTOPIA community and were not open to the public, so this data cannot be completed at this stage.
C1.2	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	3	Below the objective, feedback was provided to hopefully deliver a more usable second version of the INTERLINK tools
C2.1	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4		In this phase the activities collecting feedback on the trust of the INTERLINKERs were addressed to the eTOPIA community and were not open to the public, so this data cannot be completed at this stage.
C2.2	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	3	
C3.1	Acceptance assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Citizens]	4		In this phase the activities collecting feedback on the acceptance of the INTERLINKERs were addressed to the eTOPIA community and were not open to the public, so this data cannot be completed at this stage.
C3.2	Acceptance assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)[Others]	4	4	
C4.1	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools and INTERLINK- powered public services [Citizens]	80%		In this phase the activities collecting feedback on the satisfaction of the INTERLINKERs were addressed to the eTOPIA community and were not open to the public, so this data cannot be completed at this stage.
C4.1	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools	80%	65%	

INTERLINK



	and INTERLINK- powered public services [Others]			
D	Pilot specific KPIs			
D2.1	Number of co-created activities in eTOPIA driven by PA	>=5	2	We counted as co-production sessions only the two workshops that had the purpose of co-designing CAfetopia. The other activities that took place in Etopia were rather complementary
D2.2	Number of co-created activities in eTOPIA driven by stakeholders	>=3	0	No stakeholders other than the Etopia ecosystem were involved in the first iteration of the project, so the number of co- created activities is 0.
D2.3	Number of co- creation activities launched with activity management module	>=5	0	N/A at this first iteration
D2.4	Number of users per month accessing to activity booking module	>=50	0	N/A at this first iteration
D2.5	Engagement growth	>=10%	0	N/A at this first iteration
D2.6	Loyalty module usage	30	0	Applicable at 2nd part of the project
D2.7	Open Innovation feasts supported by INTERLINK co- production process	>=2	0	N/A at this first iteration

3.4.5. ZGZ's reflection on KPIs

Quantitative KPIs are a way to partially address the progress of the pilots. To complete the picture, it is advisable to gather qualitative info. The following section aims at providing the reader an overall view of how the first iteration of ZGZ pilot builds on existing needs and expectations and paves the way to the more ambitious goals foreseen in the 2nd iteration.

 <u>"A. INTERLINK Use and Co-production of Services"</u>. Overall, the KPIs give a glimpse about the reasonable results achieved by the first iteration of the pilot. In some cases, show notably above expectations, although reaching certain figures has not implied having achieved a relevant objective.





As shown in Table 18. Engagement activities carried out in ZGZ pilot., Zaragoza has not executed many activities (just 12), although the heterogeneity of these activities is significant. However, this is an aspect that is not considered in any KPI.

The feedback from the attendees, with an "advanced" profile in aspects related to co-design methodologies has been valuable. However, it has not been adequately reflected in the surveys prepared ad-hoc to collect it. Only 16 surveys were collected, which raises the question of whether this is a good method for collecting users' opinions or whether we should consider another type of method such as personal interviews.

The indicator "A1. Number of INTERLINKERs used in an actual public service" showed 3 as the expected result, but the result obtained in this first iteration was 62. However, if we go beyond the data, we see that although considerably more INTERLINKERs have been used than foreseen, there has not been much variety. In other words, the same INTERLINKERs were almost always used.

Specifically, the following:

- Stakeholder types' guidelines: 2 times
- o Stakeholders Mapping Canvas: once
- o Template for use case scenarios: 2 times
- o Stakeholders' identification analysis template guidelines: 2 times
- o Demographic and activity satisfaction questionnaire: once
- o Google Drive: 15 times
- o Augmenter: once
- o External resources: 10 times
- <u>"B. THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK"</u>. Due to the nature of the activities carried out in the first iteration, quantitative KPIs do not tend to grasp what is really at stake in ZGZ pilot. For instance, measuring perception is not a straightforward task (B1) neither does a baseline of co-produced initiatives (B2) nor of customization of public services (B4, B5). However, the overall impression is that INTERLINK and its associated tools still need to prove themselves as valuable tools for ZGZ's goals. In order to improve this critical issue, we propose that for the 2nd iteration, the technical partners studying the value of INTERLINK could increase their role in gathering information from users.
- <u>"C. The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK"</u>. The KPIs in this section are focused on addressing the willingness to use INTERLINK by the main <u>stakeholders</u>: the users. A first component is the usability, which for INTERLINK shows a reasonable margin of improvement, the reason behind it being that not sufficient UX work has been carried out in the development process (the tools have been handed to pilots





right after development and functional testing). We suggest that the project takes advantage of the time between iterations to address this problem.

For the second iteration, we also suggest that pilots work more closely with technical partners in workflows. This will improve user's perception on the technology and tools that Interlink provides.

• <u>Reflection on "D. Pilot specific KPIs ..."</u> When the target values for the indicators were initially established, they did not include an action plan to support the viability of those indicators. This implies that the current values are focused on quantitative targets rather than on more important aspects such as quality or added value. After this first iteration of the pilot and having gained a better understanding of what it means to incorporate a tool such as the collaborative environment into the routine of co-creation of services, it seems sensible to rethink the KPI objectives, at least as far as those of the Zaragoza pilot are concerned.

Considering that a KPI is only a performance INDICATOR, and not the PERFORMANCE itself, we propose to refocus the KPIs to reflect as much as possible the creation of value.

As an example, it does not seem to make much sense to have many users registered on a platform if they do not interact with it or do not contribute to the community (zombie users). In this sense, we would change the number of registered users as a relevant data to be achieved by the number of active users, prioritising then the interactions over the simple count of users.

As a final remark, we should rather avoid grounding our decisions about the pilot performances on "vanity metrics" such as logged users and try to grasp the activity dimensions critical for the success of the developed tools.

3.4.6. Reflections on ZGZ's pilot execution subphase

After the first iteration and after having implemented a dozen engagement activities, we conclude that the project needs to leave margin for flexibility in planning activities, since these highly depend on the nature of tools, which, in turn can only be properly understood when the tools are handed to pilots.

Regarding feedback and evaluation, we suggest that KPIs are insufficient to properly address the success of the INTERLINK "experiment", and therefore we propose for the 2nd phase a more qualitative approach, based on in-depth interviews with users. We suggest a high and direct involvement of technical partners involved in defining and





evaluating co-creation / co-production in these tasks. This will also allow a better understanding of the relationship between users' satisfaction and the set formed by tools and processes.

Success points:

The interests of all the institutions participating in the sessions were common in many areas (innovation, citizen science, smart city, data economy, etc.), which facilitated conducting the sessions.

People involved in the activities had a strong influence on the way of working, so their opinions could significantly determine the adoption of the tool on a daily basis.

Pain points:

Getting participants to complete the surveys is a job that requires additional effort.

Despite the willingness of our operational teams, there is always a certain degree of reluctance to take on new tasks that involve greater dedication.

3.5. User-behaviour analysis: backend and frontend logging

Log data provide a good deal of information about what people are doing but much less about why they are doing so and whether they are satisfied. This must be considered in analyses and complemented by other techniques to provide a more complete understanding of behaviour. "Why" can be understood not only by additional information, but by additional analysis of user behaviour patterns.

When analysing log data, researchers extract a variety of metrics. Metrics are measurable quantities that matter to the users or system stakeholders. Metrics can emerge directly from the data, such as, in the case of search, query length or frequency.

In INTERLINK, user behaviour logs are gathered whilst users interact with Collaborative Environment to make progress in a co-production process. Logs correspond to events generated in the front-end but that often do not result in a change of the Data Model entities in the DB. For instance, the selection of a given INTERLIKER on the Collaborative Environment does not produce changes in the Data Model, unless the INTERLINKER is used to give place to a new resource. The analysis of logs collected from the Collaborative Environment's usage is important to understand user behaviour whilst interacting with the Collaborative Environment. This way, we could be able to answer questions like the following ones:

- What does a user click whilst in the Guide view?
- How much time s/he spends in each of the different views? (which are the most popular or confusing pages?)

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3





• What actions do users perform over assets, e.g. clone or delete events over assets?

We have introduced four different mechanisms to log data in INTERLINK:

- 1. Loggings resulting from main web portal frontend interactions with backend API which result in data model updates
- 2. Loggings resulting from API calls from additional INTERLINKER modules
- 3. Loggings from frontend navigation functionality of web portal through Matomo.
- 4. INTERLINKER specific loggings to track usage of them as in the case of Augmenter and Loomio.

In iteration 1 we have mostly processed logs resulting from approach 1) and also experienced with approach 3) without truly exploiting the potential of analysing user behaviour in Collaborative Environment in depth. More details on both approaches next. Note that approach 2) has been used to aid pilots populate some of the specific KPIs, i.e. category D, of them.

3.5.1. User-behaviour analysis through backend logging

To collect all these types of user activity data from different sources, a logging and monitoring stack combining ElasticSearch and Grafana has been integrated into the Collaborative Environment platform's backend. It consist of a logging HTTP API which centralises log gathering from Collaborative Environment's containers, a daemon process collecting logs data from log files on each of the software components Docker container, storage of all these log data into ElasticSearch and SQL databases, and a centralized querying tool <u>Dremio</u> connecting all the collected logs data to the common SQL-like querying tool, and Grafana web dashboard.

Concretely, for each pilot a Dremio server combined with a set of Dremio SQL views/queries configured on it and a Grafana dashboard have been deployed. Grafana is a multi-platform open-source analytics and interactive visualization web application¹⁴. It provides charts, graphs, and alerts for the web when connected to supported data sources. Grafana is an excellent tool analysing time series as the ones resulting from logs issued by the Collaborative Environment.

Usage logs of the following aspects of the co-production process have been collected:

- Management of co-production processes: events for creation, read, update or deletion of a co-production process have been defined. Events to gather operations associated with settings of a process have also been defined.
- Management of organizations and teams: events for the creation, update, delete of an organization and team, the addition of members to a team and their listing have been defined.

¹⁴ <u>https://grafana.com/</u>





- Usage of Overview view: events to capture users switch to this view, and actions on it like the selection of a task associated to a resource or of an INTERLINKER associated to a resource have been defined.
- Usage of Workplan view: events to capture the selection or updates of phases, objectives or tasks within the temporal view of a co-production process.
- Usage of Guide view: this is the most important view offered by Collaborative Environment. Events to describe operations over a co-production tree (e.g. add new task), selection of a given co-production tree element (e.g. a task), manipulation of the status or details of a tree item have been defined, among other events.
- Management of permissions for a co-production process: events associated to the association of permissions to co-production tree sections to different teams or to the whole co-production tree have also been defined.
- Usage of Catalogue view: events to gather when searches, filter application in searchers, selection of tabs in view of an INTERLINKER, rating on INTERLINKER have been defined.

The code in Figure 50 piece of code in JSON shows an example log data produced whenever a created resource in a co-production process is selected:

```
"user id": "u d59d574a-a3f6-49dc-8479-085b70c96353",
"service": "coproduction",
"action": "GET",
"model": "ASSET"
"timestamp": "2022-10-13 12:51:48.155086",
"object_id": "db86f380-a3b8-4981-b1f7-67376bac5b54",
"task id": "f0f3dff8-e2d7-4b5a-969f-6260285c20e4",
"softwareinterlinker_name": "Google Drive",
"objective id": "1d1dd09d-1c45-4ccc-8639-4e233a19fe40",
"coproductionprocess_id": "9431e73e-9f5f-42e1-8b0f-e414f50fa32b",
"softwareinterlinker_id": "93574360-0539-479e-b676-d75a4a9f984a",
"roles": [
  "public administration",
  "administrator"
"type": "internalasset",
"phase_id": "8ae8635f-fd01-4529-8d47-865fcce64c3c",
"from": "API"
```

Figure 50. Exemplary log generated when a resource (asset) created through Google Drive is accessed in Collaborative Environment.

As mentioned, to support the interpretation of these logs, a dashboard in Grafana has been defined per pilot site. Figure 51 to Figure 53 show some snapshots of the Grafana dashboard for MEF and VARAM pilots¹⁵. Notice that in iteration 1 we have focused on

¹⁵ The log dashboards for Zaragoza and MEF case show results which are close to the ones that we already reported in their respective KPI tables, this explains why we do not include snapshots of them. They are accessible in their respective URLs, namely https://mef.interlink-project.eu/monitoring and https://zgz.interlink-project.eu/monitoring.





analysing the logs associated to the co-production processes. That is, we want to answer the following basic statistics on co-production per pilot:

- Number of users per organization, team and their roles in a given pilot
- Co-production schemas used by teams in a given pilot
- Number of teams, users and roles per process, distinguishing between active and passive users in a given pilot
- List and usage statistics, counting generated resources with them, of knowledge and software INTERLINKERs per process in a given pilot.

The insights obtained are closely related to the insights resulting from populating KPIs per pilot, exploiting the INTERLINK's Collaborative Environment's Data Model, shown in sections <u>3.2.4</u>. MEF KPIs, <u>3.3.4</u>. VARAM KPIs and <u>3.4.4</u>. ZGZ KPIs. Still, the set of metrics gathered in the Grafana dashboard per each pilot streamline the analytics associated with co-production in each pilot. In iteration 2, we should better focus on registering intermediary events about usage of the Collaborative Environment, rather than consummated events which are also realised by giving place to changes in the Data Model's databases. For example, temporal analysis of what actions, when, by whom of the members of a co-producing team were generated to understand the number of interactions, time span and diverse team member involvement across the whole co-production process. This way we could get a more fine-grained understanding of the evolution of a co-production process and possible roadblocks which may impede the finalisation of certain tasks in the co-production process.

器 General / User monitori	ing dremio ☆ ペ			
T001-num-USERS-all	T005a-num-ACTIVE-USERS	_Num_Organizations_	_Number_of_1	TEAMS_
72	35	7	19	9
T011_num_PROCESSES	T022a_num_USED_INTERL	_Num_Assets_	T021_num_INT	ERL_total
17	6	34	62	2
	pg058_num_USE	RS_per_ORG		
org_name		team_name		num_users
"en"=>"Agenzia delle Entrate", "es	s"=>"Agenzia delle Entrate", "it"=>"Agen			0
"en"=>"INTERLINK-PARTNERS", "	es"=>"INTERLINK-PARTNERS", "it"=>"I	FBK-team	4	
"en"=>"MEF - core team", "es"=>")	MEF - core team", "it"=>"MEF - core tea.	Core team MEF	3	
"en"=>"MEF - team supporto", "es	s"=>"MEF - team supporto", "it"=>"MEF .	Team supporto		3
"en"=>"MEF", "es"=>"MEF", "it"=>"	MEF-DSII", "Iv"=>"MEF"	Agenzia delle Dogane e dei M	lonopoli	1
"en"=>"MEF", "es"=>"MEF", "it"=>"	MEF-DSII", "Iv"=>"MEF"	Agenzia delle Entrate		3
"en"=>"MEF", "es"=>"MEF", "it"=>"	MEF-DSII", "Iv"=>"MEF"	Agenzia per la Coesione Terr	itoriale	3
"en"=>"MEF", "es"=>"MEF", "it"=>"	MEF-DSII", "Iv"=>"MEF"	Azienda Ospedaliera A. Carda	arelli di Napoli	1
"en"=>"MEF", "es"=>"MEF", "it"=>"	MEF-DSII", "Iv"=>"MEF"	Corte dei conti		

Figure 51. Grafana dashboard for MEF providing statistics about organizations, teams and users (captured from <u>https://varam.interlink-project.eu/monitoring</u>).

		or TEAM	T006 pum USERS	
DIP.	nim light	ei-i DAM	Tagm Type	Team Name
2	nun_users		nublic administration	1
•	•		public_auministration	-
9			ciuzen	24.08.2022 JPB
n.	ii.		public_administration	A komanda
		per_ROLE	T003x_num_users2	
tive	num_users_active	num_users_total		team_type
51	.51	59		citizen
2	2	Ġ		forprofit_organization
3	.3	4		nonprofit_organization
		er_SCHEMA	T015aa_num_PROC_p	
100	num_proc			schema_name
35	35		rt co-refinement of public service	"en"=>"Co-production schema to sup
2	2		a por defecto", "it"=>"Processo pre	"en"=>"Default schema", "es"=>"Esque
1	1		s"=>"Esquema para la creación de	"en"=>"Hackathon creation process",
21	21			
		EAMS_USERS3_per_PROCESS	T002yy_num_	
fraction_active_PC	num_users_active	num_users_total	num_teams	proc_name
		0	ö	Palete
		Ó	0	Preiļi 6.07.2022. I
2	2	7	1	Preiļi+06.07.2022.+1
		Ö	0	Process_tests
10	5	5	1	Pūres pagasta estrāde
10	9	ġ	1	Sigulda + 12.09.2022. + 1
10		0	0	Sporta projekts

Figure 52. Grafana dashboard for VARAM providing statistics about users and their roles in co-production processes.



	T024	4x_num_USED_INTERL_per_PROC ~		
proc_namo n	um_used_INTERL_TOTAL	num_lised_INTERL_IntKnow	num_used_INTERL_IntSW	num_used_INTERL_ExtSV
uldīga 07.07.2022. l	2		2	
atvija.lv pakalpojumu uzlaboju	3		3	
atvija.lv portālā pieejamo publisko pakalpoj	umu aprakstu uzlabošana JPB		2	
iela komanda	2			
iepāja 12.07.2022. I				
gre 14.09.2022 OCB				
)gre2				
Preiļi 6.07.2022. l	2		2	
reiļi+06.07.2022.+1	1			
ūres pagasta estrāde				
igulda + 12.09.2022. + I	2		2	4
iest 1				
T025_n	um_USED_INTERL_per_SCHEM	A		
Co-production schema to	support co-refinen	nent of public servic		
		Q		
A DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS		0		
Default schema				
		1		
	T026_num_USED_INTER	L_per_SCHEMA_per_PROC		
schema_name2	proc_name		num_USED_INTER	Ú.
Co-production schema to support co-refinen	nen Ogre 14.09.2022 OCB			
Co-production schema to support co-refinen	nen Ogre2		1	
Co-production schema to support co-refinen	ien Preiļi 6.07.2022. I		12	
Co-production schema to support co-refinen	nen Preiļi+06.07.2022.+1			
Co-production schema to support co-refinen	en Püres nanasta estrade			

Figure 53. Grafana dashboard for VARAM providing statistics about co-production schemas and INTERLINKERs.

3.5.2. User-behaviour analysis through frontend logging

We have also used Matomo tool¹⁶ in all pilot deployments in order to understand what pages were visited most frequently by whom and from where. Matomo, formerly Piwik, is the most common free and open source web analytics application to track online visits to one or more websites and display reports on these visits for analysis.

The following figures show some of the web analytics associated to the MEF pilot, obtained from its deployment at https://mef.interlink-project.eu/matomo (one per pilot was realized). Observe that we have restricted the analysis to September 2022, the last month of the pilot, which together with July were the most active months across the pilot sites.

¹⁶ <u>https://matomo.org/</u>.





Figure 54. Matomo visit overview during September 2022 for MEF pilot.





Visitor Map



Figure 55. Matomo analysis of visitors' country of origin_during September 2022 for MEF pilot.









Figure 57. Matomo insights on an activity celebrated on 15th September for MEF.

These visualizations (Figure 54 to Figure 57) clearly showcase the potential that a more fine-grained analysis of the front-end usage behaviour our users might deliver in order to enhance the Collaborative's Environment usability and finetune those views most used or where users struggle most.

3.6. Assessment of quality of the co-production process

Co-production refers to a way of working where service providers and users, work together to reach an agreed outcome. Co-producing thus refers to a process in which services are jointly designed and/or delivered by public authorities and other stakeholders. The approach is value-driven and built on the principle that those who are affected by a service are best placed to help design and implement it.

Co-production is there since it is linked to Open Innovation strategies. This means that the organisation, in our case the Public Administration, does not just rely on their own internal knowledge, sources and resources (such as their own staff or R&D for example) for innovation (of products, services, business models, processes etc.). INTERLINK directly corresponds to an innovation project, not only from a product perspective, but also from a service and business model standpoint.





The services upon which INTERLINK focuses have the following characteristics:

- They are *public services*, in the sense that public authorities have committed to realising them or making them available.
- They have an element of co-creation/-production, meaning that external stakeholders are engaged and collaborate with public government in their design and/or their delivery.
- Additionally, the services are realised through the use of digital technologies, either as a fully digital service or as a human service supported digitally.

The following two sub-sections aim to quantify the quality of the co-production process and reason about the underlying reasons that may encourage coproducers to be engaged with INTERLINK.

3.6.1. Quantifying quality of the co-production process

As indicated in section "<u>1.3.2. Evaluation dimensions and constructs</u>", the main research question that INTERLINK wants to explore is the following:

Will INTERLINK co-production model and its supporting tools and co-production enablers (INTERLINKERs) enhance the quality, quantity, and reuse of public services?

As reasoned in section <u>1.3.2. Evaluation dimensions and constructs</u>, we believe that the answer to this question may be driven by the combination of product-, user- and valuebased quality, since this allows a comprehensive account of the quality associated to the co-production process and the resulting e-government artefacts. This may lead to higher satisfaction on co-produced public service, which should lead to higher trust, which may enhance acceptance and, hence, ultimately, aid the adoption of co-production results among PA stakeholders. More details on the multi-dimensional approach to quality evaluation are collected in deliverable "D2.3 - Governance performance indicators" [8].

Consequently, we propose to use the following formula to measure the associated quality of a co-production process. The higher the resulting quality value the higher the user-based and value-based quality, satisfaction, trust, and acceptance. Potential adoption should be linked to the resulting quality of co-production process, the higher the quality the more likely that should be the adoption of the artefacts resulting from a co-production process.

QoS co-production =

average(user-based quality; value-based quality; satisfaction; trust; acceptance)





where:

- User-based quality means that the attributes of a product meet the customer's requirements (in the public sector this is very important due to the need for public accountability). The "quality in use" model is composed of five characteristics that relate to the outcome of interaction when a product, process or service is used in a particular context of use. These characteristics, namely effectiveness, efficiency, usefulness, ease of use and flexibility are fully defined in section <u>1.3.2.</u> Evaluation dimensions and constructs.
- Value-based quality refers to an understanding of quality as processes/outcomes being in line with normative expectations towards public services (e.g. legal treatment) and broader societal norms (e.g. democratic values). Again, refer to section <u>1.3.2. Evaluation dimensions and constructs</u> for the definition of the quality characteristics associated to this dimension, namely inclusiveness, security/privacy, democratic values and Weberian principles.
- **Satisfaction** degree to which user needs are satisfied when a product or system is used in a specified context of use
- **Trust** is defined as the belief that a public body will contribute to people's wellbeing through their interaction or actions. In this case, by means of the provision of a co-production model, supporting tools for co-production and co-produced artefacts.
- Acceptance whilst acceptability refers to one's perception of a system before use, acceptance is one's perception of the system after use.

During pilots' iteration 1, we have been able to measure these different dimensions through evaluation questionnaires targeted to citizens and other user (public administrations, for profit and non-profit organisations) whilst either consuming co-produced artefacts (see <u>8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire</u>) or actually participating in the co-production (see <u>8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire</u>) of such artefacts, where:

- User-based quality is calculated as AVG(Effectiveness, Efficiency, Usefulness, Ease of Use, Flexibility).
- Value-based quality is calculated as AVG(Inclusiveness, Security/Privacy, Democratic values, Weberian criteria)

Notice that the main focus on iteration 1's evaluation has been those participants actively taking part in the co-production process, which in most pilots have been public administration users, as was reported in <u>3.2.3. MEF activities during pilot execution</u> subphase, <u>3.3.3. VARAM activities during pilot execution subphase</u> and <u>3.4.3. ZGZ activities during pilot execution subphase</u>.

The questionnaires designed to gather the perceptions on User-based Quality, Valuebased Quality, Trust and Acceptance, both by Co-Producer's and End-users are accessible at <u>Appendix C – INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users Perceptions</u> <u>questionnaires</u>. These questionnaires include a pair of questions per dimension





established for the evaluation of INTERLINK as was discussed in <u>1.3.2. Evaluation</u> <u>dimensions and constructs</u> and further justified in deliverable D2.3[8].

The following table summarizes the results obtained per pilot. Observe that a reduced number of co-producers, i.e. those taking part in a collaborative process, and end-users, i.e. those making use of the outcomes of a collaborative process, completed the survey. Besides, notice that that participants' answers were collected on a 5-point Likert scale (where 1 indicated the most negative opinion and 5 the most positive opinion). (1. Strongly disagree, 2. Disagree, 3. Neither agree nor disagree, 4. Agree and 5. Strongly agree). The higher the value granted the more positive response given to a statement. The respondents' distribution was as follows:

- Co-producers: MEF (25), VARAM (22) and ZGZ (6), this is 53 co-producers, during the month of September. Notice, that we got answers 23 and 21 co-producers of Latvia, during July and August, respectively. Given that evaluation questionnaires were answered by all pilot cases in August, we have restricted the analysis to the month when the Collaborative Environment and INTERLINK's co-production supporting tools was most mature.
- End-users: VARAM (30), ZGZ (5), this is 35 end-users. Observe that in MEF only coproducers took place due to the nature of this pilot, where public servants from different public administrations have been co-designing a new PSPM module. Again, 22 and 24 end-users answered the evaluation questionnaire in Latvia, but we restricted the analysis to August when we had data from all pilots.

Role	Pilot	#	User qu	-based ality	Va ba qu	lue- sed ality	Satis	factio n	Tr	ust	Accep	otance	QoS pro	i co- od.
			Citz.	Other	Citz.	Other	Citz.	Other	Citz.	Other	Citz.	Other	Citz.	Other
Co-producer	MEF	25	4.67	4.04	3.92	4.00	4.00	4.00	3.60	3.75	3.00	3.00	3.84	3.76
Co-producer	VARAM	22	4.03	3.97	4.12	4.20	4.00	4.09	3.00	3.50	3.47	3.47	3.72	3.85
Co-producer	ZGZ	6		3,24		3,17		3,50		4,33		2,83		3,41
AVG co- producer			4.35	4.01	4.02	4.10	4.00	4.05	3.30	3.63	3.24	3.24	3.78	3.81
AVG GLOBAL			4	.17	4	.06	4.	02	3.	46	3.	24	3.	79
End-user	ZGZ	5		2,76		3,40		2,70		3,00		2,40		2,85
End-user	VARAM	30	3 90	3 65	3 91	3 75	3 71	3 50	3 53	3 45	3 50	3 40	3 71	3 55
User-user		50	5.50	5.05	5.51	5.75	5.71	5.50	5.55	5.45	5.50	5.70	5.7 1	5.55
AVG end-			3.90	3.65	3.91	3.75	3.71	3.50	3.53	3.45	3.50	3.40	3.71	3.55

 Table 20. Quality of Service in Co-production processes in the pilots.

INTERLINK





user							
AVG GLOBAL		3.77	3.83	3.60	3.49	3.45	3.63
AVG TOTAL		3.97	3.94	3.81	3.47	3.34	3.71

As can be seen in Table 20, the user-based quality was higher than 4 out of 5 among all pilots' coproducers (4.17) which means that the INTERLINK co-production model and its supporting collaborative environment and INTERLINKERs may be considered to satisfactorily (score > 4.17/5.0) meet coproducers requirements and expectations. The sample it not big, 53 respondents, but it appears that for co-producers the INTERLINK's Collaborative Environment and co-production supporting tools are overall effective, efficient, useful, easy to use and flexible. In the case of end-users, the provided tools deliver smaller user-based quality (3.77), which seems more than acceptable but, clearly, they find less value on INTERLINK and its supporting tools, since at the end they are not real users of them, only affected or exposed to the results obtained thanks to using them. The sample of end-users answering was smaller (35) bearing in mind that in MEF only co-producers were considered.

Regarding value-based quality again coproducers in all pilots seem to believe that (score > 4,06/5) the INTERLINK co-production model and its supporting collaborative environment and INTERLINKERs are in line with normative expectations towards public services (e.g., legal treatment) and broader societal norms (e.g. democratic values). Again, this is the perception of the 53 limited number of co-producers that answered the survey. Value-based quality obtained a score of 3.94 among end-users, which can be considered as an acceptable average perception regarding how well INTERLINK guarantees inclusiveness, security/privacy, democratic values and Weberian principles.

INTERLINK approach and supporting tools generally satisfies coproducers expectations with an average score of 4.02. End-users obtained a score of 3.60, showcasing that they are slightly less satisfied overall, but still the artefacts co-produced thanks to INTERLINK do moderately satisfy their expectations.

The INTERLINK co-production model and its supporting collaborative environment and INTERLINKERs are generally trusted by both coproducers and end-users with a score around 3.46 and 3.49, respectively. Interestingly, both co-producers and end-users, consumers of co-produced artefacts, generally agree that INTERLINK approach and tools are trustable. Still, the achieved level of trust is only moderate, should be improved.

The INTERLINK co-production model and its supporting collaborative environment and INTERLINKERs are prone to be acceptable with a score of 3.24 for co-producers and 3.45 for end-users. This should be considered as a moderately good result for acceptance. Undoubtedly, further research of what aspects of INTERLINK prevent it from being more acceptable have to be researched.





Finally, the QoS driven from the co-production processes enabled by INTERLINK coproduction model and powered by its supporting tool obtained an average score of 3.79/5,0 for co-producers and 3.63/5,0. Hence, we can conclude that the produced coproduction methodology and enabling digital tools and knowledge artefacts generally enhance the quality of co-production processes. Consequently, INTERLINK mediated co-produced artefacts should lead to good satisfaction, trust and acceptance levels in the use of digital tools/systems in public administrations. There is clear scope for improvement to enhance the overall perception of quality from those interacting with INTERLINK, since we do not surpass the score of 4 that would allow us to ascertain that INTERLINK will definitely enhance the quality, quantity, and reuse of public services.

Based on the future reflection about the experience in iteration 1 which is compiled in chapter <u>4. Post-pilot reflection phase</u>, we expect to improve this acceptable result regarding quality of co-production process in iteration 2. Besides, notice that we have weighted equally user-based quality, value-based quality, satisfaction, trust, and acceptance. Further reflection on the weight that each dimension should have to the overall "quality of co-production" should be performed.

Finally, these 'quality of service' results must be correlated with the "B. Value provided by INTERLINK" KPIs described for each of the pilots in sections <u>3.2.4. MEF KPIs</u>, <u>3.3.4.</u> <u>VARAM KPIs</u> and <u>3.4.4. ZGZ KPIs</u>. Pilot participants have reported during the assessment of "B. THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK" that they perceive that INTERLINK brings about a reduction on administrative and management costs with a score of <u>3.91/5.0</u> whilst the overall quality of co-production processes driven by INTERLINK score a <u>3.79/5.0</u> (fed by the outcomes of the category of KPIs "C. The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK"). Such KPIs have populated the dimensions user-based quality, value-based quality, satisfaction, trust, and acceptance dimensions of the QoS formula.

3.6.2. Co-producers context and experience in INTERLINK

This section summarises the results of exploring the answers given at all pilots for the block of questions with heading *"Reflection about co-production process"* from the questionnaire found in section <u>8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions</u> <u>Questionnaire</u> of Appendix C. Notice that the charts summarizing the insights gathered about each feature of co-production are detailed at <u>Appendix H – Co-producers' context</u> and experience.

3.6.2.1. Experience on co-production.

We should initially clarify that co-producers' questionnaire has been answered by only people that have technically or strategically taken part in the co-production activities performed. Therefore, we needed to understand their participation, according to their profiles, as identified in previous studies [22], [23], [24]). In this sense, it was





considered essential, based on the literature, to clarify previous experience of these users in open innovation and public open innovation activities [23].

Therefore, an initial question was formulated to clarify previous experiences. The aim of this query was to map the type of co-producers involved in the different case studies and specifically, if possible, identify the different phases in which they have experience. For that, we resorted to the phases determined in the literature: Co-engage, Co-design, Co-implementation, Co-sustainability, or if they have never taken part in previous similar exercises [24].





"In which collaborative co-production activities have you taken part in, before knowing about INTERLINK?"

The possible answers were:

- 1. Co-engagement phase activities (e.g. involving stakeholders, shared problem definition)
- 2. Co-design phase activities (e.g. shared solution definition, service specification)
- 3. Co-implementation phase activities (e.g. service implementation, service execution)
- 4. Co-sustainability phase activities (e.g. maintenance, co-evaluation)
- 5. Never before in any co-production activity

See charts in section <u>13.1. Experience in co-production</u> for the analysis of this feature of co-production.

The results we have obtained point to a generalized participation of users in design and active participation phases. Thus, the implementation phase is left on the hands of the technical teams of the administrations themselves. The proactivity of the users is also surprising, being exclusively the case of MEF -ltaly-, where we found people who had not previously had any experience, as was already identified by [25], for this phase of the procedure.

Finally, the case of Zaragoza is also surprising as it is the only case study in which users participated in a relevant way in the execution tasks for the co-implementation phase. However, these data should always be analysed with caution and no policy implications can be drawn from them, given the small size of the sample analysed.

3.6.2.2. Participation in co-production

Once the previous experience of the users was analysed, the actual role adopted by each member participating in this project was identified. In order to measure this feature, we enquired them about their actual function and the precise tasks they have performed.





The specific question formulated was: "In which way have you contributed towards a new or an improved public or private (co-produced) service?"

Offered answers wanted to capture the concrete activities that can be carried out within a co-production process. In this sense, the possible answers were:

- 1. I have collaborated with an idea for a solution/answer.
- 2. I have collaborated with a conceptual design for the solution/answer.
- 3. I have collaborated in the development of a solution/answer that is reliable enough so that it can be used.
- 4. Others are developing solution/answer based on my ideas or design
- 5. I have supported a collaborative decision process
- 6. I have only participated as an observer (passively) in co-production process

See charts in section <u>13.2. Participation in co-production</u> for the analysis of this feature of co-production.

In general, we can confirm that most of the participants cooperated with an initial idea they had, in order to produce a new product or service. However, in the case of VARAM, although 34.3% of the sample have also collaborated in the first step of the process, it is worth noting that 44.8% of the sample also has been active in the decision process. In this sense, we can conclude that co-producers in the three case studies participate in co-production projects for new or improved public services in three different ways:

1) I have collaborated with an idea for a solution/answer,

3) I have collaborated in the development of a solution/answer that is reliable enough so that it can be used and

5) I have supported a collaborative decision process.

As a conclusion, we should underline that the challenge remains to involve users in the development and co-production work.

3.6.2.3. Motivation

In order to understand the role of the co-producers we needed to understand their motivation so as to participate in the different stages of a collaborative product or service [26]. Based on the literature, we wanted to capture the possible reasons that might boost co-participation to develop a new public solution [27].

In order to address this facet, we included in the questionnaire the following question, introduced by a brief explanation to position the user on the object of our interest:





"Internal motivation for your participation in co-producing a service. What made you to co-produce a public service?"

The possible answers were:

- 1. The initial solution of the problem was not acceptable for the society (low user experience not ICT solution, not updated, etc.)
- 2. I have been working on similar solutions/problems that could serve as an example. (For other public administrations, for other services, for other firms, etc.)
- 3. I used the initial solution of the problem once and found several problems.
- 4. I am part of teams that have been previously working in this procedure/problem and I have similar ideas to improve the solution/address this problem

See charts in section <u>13.3</u>. <u>Motivation in co-production</u> for the analysis of this feature of co-production.

Based on the questions asked in the three case studies, we cannot identify a single, joint trend. Always with caution due to the low number of responses received, we could say that the motives and reasons why users participate are different. Three are identified as the key motivations:

1) The initial solution of the problem was not acceptable for the society (low user experience not ICT solution, not updated, etc.), critically and mainly elected by VARAM users.

2) I have been working on similar solutions/problems that could serve as an example. (For other public administrations, for other services, for other firms, etc.), chosen as the primary motivation for those co-producers in the MEF case.

4) I am part of teams that have been previously working in this procedure/problem and I have similar ideas to improve the solution/address this problem, also relevant for MEF case but generally elected by co-producers in the case of Zaragoza.

We should mention that, despite the low number of responses, the existing reality in each use case also justifies the type of responses received from the participating users. Therefore, the answers must be contextualised with the resulting picture of each case study.

3.6.2.4. Reason

Directly linked with the motivation question before, we also enquired users about the specific reason for their active participation in the co-production process (Van Eijik and Gasco, 2018). In this sense, we wanted to understand the intrinsic thinking that motivated co-producers to want to get involved in a new public project. The interest





might arise from professional background, ideas identified from other sources, collaboration with other stakeholders or personal interest.

In order to capture this feature, the question formulated was: "Reason for your contribution to co-producing a service. Why did you contribute to co-producing a service?" and the possible answers given, are identified below:

- 1. Because of my personal experiences (professional background)
- 2. Because of conversation with other stakeholders
- 3. Because of opinions gathered from social media/Internet
- 4.Because of my personal interests

See charts in section <u>13.4. Reason in co-production</u> for the analysis of this feature of co-production.

In general, we can assure that the main reason identified corresponds to the personal experience (1). This answer has been identified clearly as the most relevant for MEF coproducers (72% of the Italian sample), VARAM (71,6% of Latvian sample), and chosen as the second one in the case of Zaragoza (50% of the Spanish sample). However, in the case of Zaragoza, the key reason appears to be derived from conversation with other stakeholders, so the knowledge required to participate in a co-production process would be linked to ideas received from other people not involved in the project.

As a summary, we could say that the main reasons would be:

1) Because of my personal experiences (professional background)

2) Because of conversation with other stakeholders.

3.6.2.5. Inspiration

Directly linked to the inner or external reasons to participate in a co-production process, we wanted to understand the origin of the idea, which could be understood in the innovation literature as the source from which knowledge is obtained to implement a proposal. In this sense, the answers offered wanted to identify if the proposal was an incremental innovation (because of the adaptation from other public administrations or from the private sector) -Answers 1 and 2 below-, or it was a radical innovation (Answer 3 below). However, we also offered two answers for possible co-producers not participating at the stage in which the solution was formulated (Answer 4 below) or if the innovation was not the idea of that person (Answer 5 below).

The question formulated was: "Where does your contribution for the final proposal come from?"

The possible answers were:

- 1. The solution is adapted from another public administration service
- 2. The solution is adapted from the private sector





3. The solution is brand new4. No participation5. It did not occur to me

See charts in section <u>13.5. Inspiration in co-production</u> for the analysis of this feature of co-production.

In this case, we can conclude that the proposals made by the participating coproducers always correspond to incremental innovations from other public administrations or the private sector.

In all three case studies, other public administrations are identified as the main source for proposing and participating in a new co-production project. However, surprisingly, several respondents considered their solutions as radical innovations, identified as completely new ideas. This answer corresponds to 28% of the sample in the case of MEF, 29,9% in the case of VARAM and 16,7% for Zaragoza. This ratio is quite high considering the low level of proposals usually shared and developed [28].

Nevertheless, as a conclusion we might say that co-producers participate in coproduction projects inspired by:

- 1) The solution is adapted from another public administration service
- 2) The solution is adapted from the private sector.

3.7. Conclusions pilot execution subphase

As result of the pilot execution subphase a final release of the Collaborative Environment and associated tools has been produced and published at <u>GitHub</u>. This final release has considered the feedback received from pilots' sites. Generally, the environment has been kept very stable during the 4-month period when the pilots have been executed.

Whilst in the pre-pilot execution subphase the emphasis was on making the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment more usable and robust, in this subphase, the focus has been on understanding whether the flexible co-production models and supporting tools provided by INTERLINK have allowed pilots to accomplish co-production processes successfully. All pilots commented that the INTERLINK co-production model and supporting value do help them towards better quality, better resource, and effort efficiency towards co-production of public services.

Besides, the experience of the co-production process has been explored. A set of 4 categories KPIs have been defined to be able to perform an assessment of the co-production experience brought forward by INTERLINK. The discussion on the achievement of KPIs has been reported in sections <u>3.2.5. MEF's reflection on KPIs</u>, <u>3.3.5. VARAM's reflection on KPIs</u> and <u>3.3.5. VARAM's reflection on KPIs</u>. Overall, the objectives set have been met.





On the other hand, a mechanism to be able to measure the "quality of service – QoS" of the co-co-production process has been devised and measurements carried out at each pilot. As reported in <u>3.6. Assessment of quality of the co-production process</u>, the achieved QoS values per pilot are very encouraging, overall 3.79/5,0, and a moderate acceptance level perception, 3.24/5, have been obtained. Hence, we can conclude that a wide adoption of INTERLINK can be expected at other pilots, as the ones carried out in this project. Finally, the previous experience, actual participation, motivation, reasons, and inspiration followed by coproducers in each pilot has been gathered and analysed.

Our results cannot be categorized as conclusive given the small sample size, only 53 coproducers answered to our evaluation questionnaires in September whilst the answers from coproducers during the whole piloting timespan (98) were considered to analyse their co-production experience in INTERLINK. Definitely, a higher sample size should be achieved in iteration 2 to claim that the exploratory results obtained could be generalized. Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release shows the release produced after concluding pilot evaluation subphase, corresponding to https://github.com/interlink-project/interlink-project/releases/tag/v1.0.15.

4 Post-pilot reflection phase

After the end of the main pilot activities of iteration 1, during October 2022 a reflection phase has started to reason on the results emerged from the pilot activities and understand how the findings can be translated into (i) implications for possible redesign or extensions of the INTERLINK platform (as an input to WP4, D4.4), (ii) requirements for new useful types of INTERLINKERs (as an input to WP3, D3.3), (iii) valuable input for advanced governance models (as an input to WP2, D2.2).

To facilitate this phase, a list of questions has been distributed to pilot owners (reflection questionnaire) to help them think retrospectively about their experience of using the Collaborative Environment and the INTERLINKERs during their co-production process. At the time of writing this deliverable, the analysis of the collected feedback is in progress. Some preliminary findings are reported here below in section 4.1. Reflection questionnaire.

Further reflection activities have already been planned for the upcoming period, like a reflection workshop with guided brainstorming sessions (to be held on the 4th of November 2022) and a series of focused meetings devoted to the revision of current platform design and to the collaborative design of new INTERLINKERs. The outcome of these activities will be reported in future related deliverables (D4.4 - Second release of INTERLINK platform and community portal due in April 2023, D3.3 - Final repository of INTERLINKERs and partnership tools due in August 2023).




4.1. Reflection questionnaire

The post-pilot reflection questionnaire was structured around themes that relate to how end-users of the Collaborative Environment interacted with the technology to organize their co-production processes and what perception they had about workflows and other stakeholders' engagement with the platform. Nine major themes were identified, with a rationale that explains why they are interesting from a Human-Computer Interaction or governance point of view:

- Structure of the co-production working group: Different PAs, with different internal organizational / hierarchical structures, may interpret the concepts of "organization" and "team" differently according to their usual work practices and may group people according to different rules. This is interesting from the HCI point of view, as the user journey gets adapted to existing work practices. Is there a form of "appropriation"¹⁷ (i.e. observed uses of the functionalities for structuring the working group different from what originally conceived by designers)?
- 2. Motivation of participants and awareness of co-production process status: It may be useful to investigate whether data visualization (e.g. statistics on how the coproduction team practically contributes to activities) and motivational mechanisms (e.g. gamification) may be of interest to pilot owners
- 3. Structure of the co-production schema: Currently the schema is the main way to offer guidance through the sequence of co-production steps. Is the co-production schema developed during the early stages of the project in WP2 adequate to match real practice? Would personalisation of co-production schemas be suitable to match real needs?
- 4. *Choice of the co-production schema*: The selection of the co-production schema is a decision the Collaborative Environment needs to support in an effective way. Is the current interface effective in this respect?
- 5. Possible role of success stories and of reusability: We need to understand whether an example-based approach (i.e. copying, or at least knowing, what others have done successfully) would be an interesting/useful/actually adoptable approach for PAs.
- 6. Management of access rights: According to theory, different team members may participate in different phases of co-production. This was the motivation for including in the implementation of the Collaborative Environment a fine-grained method for assigning permissions at different levels of the co-production tree. It would be interesting to understand whether core teams actually used selective access permissions or not.

¹⁷ https://www.interaction-design.org/literature/topics/appropriation





- 7. Most used/useful functionalities of the Collaborative Environment: The Collaborative Environment is very rich in functionalities. It would be interesting to understand which functionalities have been used by whom. If there are significant differences, a personalization of the interface according to the user profile could be considered.
- 8. Most used/useful types of INTERLINKERs, user-friendliness of the catalogue: It is important to understand whether the platform users have an idea of the contents of the complete INTERLINKERs catalogue or whether they simply focus on what they need to perform their task. We already know that the search/browse in the catalogue should be improved, but which way would be the most desirable?
- 9. Motivation for using the INTERLINK platform functionalities: Some of the resources/assets created within the Collaborative Environment are used for internal purposes of the core team coordinating a co-production process. Other resources are shared with external stakeholders. It would be interesting to understand which are the actual motivations that sustain the usage of the Collaborative Environment and by whom.

Each of the nine research dimensions was further expanded into finer-grained subdimensions and translated into questions to guide the reflection of the coordinating team of each pilot¹⁸.

At the time of writing this deliverable, we are analysing the answers provided by pilot owners (VARAM, MEF, ZGZ) to distil useful lessons learnt. Here follow some examples of the preliminary findings that are emerging.

Structure and management of the co-production working group. The version of the Collaborative Environment that was tested by end-users during pilot iteration 1 provides a flexible way of creating organizations and teams to structure the working group of a co-production process. Users were, therefore, free to decide how to group participants. Pilots did actually exploit this freedom to accommodate different interpretations of the available functionality, different co-production goals and different governance approaches of the process.

In the VARAM pilot, for example, the coordinating team created 11 organizations, i.e. one for each of the municipalities that were invited to participate in the 11 hands-on INTERLINK workshops around Latvia. In the answers to the reflection questionnaire, VARAM pilot owners claimed that they decided to split an organization in different teams just once, given that the number of invited stakeholders was high and it was comfortable to work in two smaller groups. This is probably what happened during the physical workshops, but it is not completely reflected in the digital platform. By looking at the final snapshot of the Collaborative Environment at the end of the pilot, we can

¹⁸ The complete reflection questionnaire is available for consultation from this <u>link</u>.





observe that four out of 11 organizations have no explicit associated team. For 7 organizations 1 team was created collecting the names of the stakeholders invited to participate. For one organization, 4 separate teams were created to reflect different categories of stakeholders who participated in the workshop.

In the MEF pilot, instead, a different strategy was followed. One single organization was created for the co-production process, including 14 teams collecting stakeholders from the different PAs that were invited to participate in co-production activities. This allowed MEF to better handle and organize the involvement of the various stakeholders, assign tailored permissions, and ensure that each participating Administration was promptly represented in the MEF co-production process and in the collaborative environment. By looking at the digital platform, it can also be observed that 3 external PAs, after logging into the system, decided to create their own organization: it is not clear whether this was done to increase visibility of their participation to the platform or for testing purposes only. MEF also observed that in the usage of the system some stakeholders were more active than others (e.g., they proactively explored the INTERLINK platform without prior guidance), contributed more ideas and opinions, and were more active during open discussions. MEF retained the role of coordinators, but there definitively were contributors vs. observers.

In the ZGZ pilot, 7 different organizations were created, corresponding to different PA groups involved in the activities. Only for 1 of the organizations 3 different teams were created, grouping participants according to their category.

The comparison between the three pilots reveals that the functionality for creating organizations has been appropriated by co-production coordinators in two main different ways:

- 1. To create a match with the co-production process, with just one main organization created, and teams for each invited stakeholder group;
- 2. To create multiple organizations, one for each involved stakeholder group. In this case, the creation of teams seems to follow more practical and extemporaneous needs.

In both cases, the role of the co-production coordinator seems clear as administrator of the process. Other people mostly would be contributors and observers, based on their level of engagement in the activity. The identification of these main categories of participants (administrator, contributors, observers) by pilot owners might be used to manage the level of access and the authorizations to the platform's resources in an easier way.

Motivation of participants and awareness of co-production process status. On average, pilot owners (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ) observed in stakeholders a good motivation to participate in co-production, especially when stakeholders already had awareness of and direct experience with the problem tackled by the co-production process (i.e. the addressed problem is relevant for their activity and aligned with their skills). To sustain





onboarding, VARAM also used gifts (material rewards). For ZGZ, participants were already very familiar with co-design and collaborative practices, therefore motivation was not a major problem. MEF also took advantage of surveys and other interactive tools(like Loomio) to keep stakeholders involved. Interactive functionalities, like virtual boards or similar tools useful to brainstorm and discuss "live" are considered as very important to sustain active participation in the tasks.

The real difficulty lies in asking co-producers to introduce a new work methodology or to use a different digital platform than the one already established in their daily work practice. For the Collaborative environment to be adopted as a working tool it needs to maximize the value provided to the team involved in co-governance, co-design and co-production. This includes not only making possible a better service quality but also time savings. According to pilot owners, some improvements should be implemented in the Collaborative Environment to increase intuitiveness of use, simplicity and guidance.

As regards the problem of monitoring how the co-production process is going, pilot owners recognize that face-to-face gatherings offer the optimal opportunity for coordinators to monitor stakeholders' involvement. INTERLINKERs like the Augmenter can additionally contribute a summary of which stakeholders contribute to what specific collaboration activities (like in the case of the VARAM pilot).

It is harder to get an intuitive view of the status of the entire process, to determine where resources have been created. Pilot owners suggest that the process dashboard could be more simplified, including a progress board - maybe something like a Kanban board¹⁹ that tracks, for instance, the phases and tasks that have already been worked on and those that are in progress.

Structure of the co-production schema. Pilot owners welcome the possibility of choosing among the different schemas available in the Collaborative Environment and appreciate the possibility of simplifying existing schemas to adapt them to their own purposes: the examples offered in version 1 of the Collaborative Environment (see Table 2), although theoretically well justified, are too rich and complex to be manageable, as not all the optional steps are of interest in a specific use case.

The names and terminology used to describe phases, objectives and tasks should be carefully revised, to avoid duplications and make concepts clearer. Making the schema more visual (or at least including it as an option) would be beneficial, for example, arranging it in a decision tree type of visual or process flow.

Tasks in progress should also be highlighted so that users can quickly find their location.

¹⁹ https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kanban_board.





INTERLINKERs should be annotated more carefully so that the recommendation function can filter and reorder them correctly. Finally, the Overview section of the interfaces, showing a summary of the created resources should provide additional explicit information about the phases/tasks those resources pertain to.

Choice of the co-production schema. Choosing from an existing set a co-production schema to fit specific use case needs is a difficult task. As an alternative, the possibility of creating a bespoke schema from scratch has been positively evaluated. Both VARAM and ZGZ have also suggested that simpler customized schemas could be created from the full schemas. Ideally, this could be done in an intuitive and simple way. Something like dragging and dropping the tasks and phases that best fit the co-creation process being designed. As a welcome improvement, end-users also propose that team members could receive notifications, invitations to participate in a specific task or phase, etc.

Possible role of success stories and of reusability of experiences. At this stage of project advancement, pilot owners (MEF, VARAM, ZGZ) have not expressed the need of success stories to foster reuse in co-production processes. However, they fully recognize the importance of reading the experience of testimonials for getting inspired, informed, and additionally guided by what others have done. This aspect will be further investigated with ad hoc brainstorming activities to better understand how a catalogue of success stories would be most useful to them.

Management of access rights. The possibility to assign different access privileges to teams and team members has been evaluated as an important feature for the Collaborative Environment. On the contrary, during pilot iteration 1 the need to assign different access rights for different phases/tasks of the co-production process did not emerge (MEF, VARAM) or it was not easy to do (ZGZ). Further investigation is required to understand whether the flexibility of assigning access rights according to the position in the co-production tree/schema (that was included in the digital platform to reflect indications emerged from governance theory, as explained in section "2.5.2. Results" is exploited in practice.

Most used/useful functionalities of the Collaborative Environment. When asked about their perception on which have been the most used functionalities of the Collaborative Environment, pilot owners clearly indicated: the creation of the co-production process, the creation of organizations and teams, the upload and storage of documents. Of all these, the storage of the information and resources all in one place, also to keep account of the process carried out, has been mentioned as the (perceived) most useful functionality. Perceived as very useful was also the possibility to link external resources that were not yet available as native tools of INTERLINK.

Regarding possible new functionalities envisaged as potentially useful to be directly integrated inside the Collaborative Environment, pilot owners mentioned communication facilities, like discussion forum, group chat or instant chat (VARAM), possibility to send emails and notifications to team participants (ZGZ). A visual

INTERLINK Deliverable D5.3

Page 185 of 229





rendering of what is new is the co-production process (e.g. newly created resources) and virtual boards to support "live" discussion were also mentioned by MEF.

Most used/useful types of INTERLINKERs, user-friendliness of the INTERLINKERs catalogue. The subjective perception of which have been the most used INTERLINKERs²⁰ indicates that Google docs, with the related possibility of creating and sharing documents, was used most often. Then come other pilot specific INTERLINKERs, more closely related to the collaborative process to be performed: for VARAM, the process targets collaborative augmentation/refinement of web-based contents, therefore the Augmenter INTERLINKER was mentioned; for ZGZ, the process targets the co-creation and co-delivery of activities at Etopia, therefore guidelines for stakeholders analysis and in particular the template for use case scenarios were considered as most useful; for MEF, the process targets the co-design of a new software component, therefore knowledge INTERLINKERs to set-up the stakeholders' engagement and the organization of activities were greatly used. MEF also took advantage of INTERLINKERs supporting communication (Mailchimp) and ideas crowdsourcing, e-voting and collaborative discussions, like Loomio and Google Jamboard.

It was commented that other design thinking tools (for example, Miro/Mural boards and similar) would be good for longer co-production processes.

It was felt that, in general, the current version of the INTERLINKERs catalogue and the way INTERLINKERs are recommended within the co-production schema, is not intuitive for users who have not much knowledge about the current contents or about digital tools. It was suggested that a tech-savvy process leader/administrator should facilitate the choice of INTERLINKERs or choose in advance which INTERLINKERs will be available for each process and "hide" the others.

Motivation for using the INTERLINK platform functionalities. Pilot owners were asked the following question: "In your opinion, considering the experience that you had during the first pilots, what is the difference between the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment and other digital platforms that support collaboration, group work or project management, like for example Office365, Google Workspace, Trello?". Collected answers highlight that the INTERLINK Collaborative Environment can store every kind of resource without taking into account its format. MEF specifically mentioned that the INTERLINK platform combines functionalities of several of these competitor platforms and allows for the integration of missing ones from different software development providers. Also, collaboration is the central theme of INTERLINK while other tools are built like a storage space which can be readjusted for collaboration. An added value is provided by the guiding tool through a co-production process (including the evaluation phase). This, however, also brings drawbacks, as there might be reluctance in

²⁰ Objective data is also available as collected by the system logs and explained in previous section 3.5. User-behaviour analysis: backend and frontend logging.





stakeholders to incorporate new work tools in day-to-day work. Intuitiveness of the tool and extra effort to train people and get them involved are essential.

When asked how they would valorise and reward the activities of different team members in a co-production process, VARAM suggested that it could be possible to do on a case-by-case basis with physical rewards. Tokens are a good idea, but it should be laid out early in each process for what kind of value those tokens can be exchanged. It would also be beneficial to be able to exchange tokens for charity which could raise the motivation by helping two causes at once (typical practice in Latvian social and market research online panels). Also, ZGZ agrees that the community dimension is important: in their case, for example, more proactive users could accumulate points that they can redeem within the Etopia community. MEF highlighted, however, the difficulties that some public administrations might have in the provision of rewards. This latter aspect will be carefully investigated in the next phases of project development.

5 Conclusion

This deliverable has been divided into 5 chapters. In chapter "1. Introduction", the methodology for pilot evaluation and the applied strategy (goals, dimensions, constructs), provided measurement instruments (logs, guestionnaires), how automation of KPI collection has been performed and how pilot execution has been operatised (evaluation journey) has been described. Pilot execution was divided in two phases, namely pre-pilot and pilot execution subphases. Details about the tools made available and instruments used to gather insights were outlined: questionnaires, log data together with the engagement strategy. As a result of these activities, INTERLINK made available for pilot owners a working first prototype (alpha version) of the platform and the design of all measurement instruments applied in the evaluation of the pilots.

Chapter "2. Pre-pilot subphase evaluation" described the pre-pilot subphase evaluation. A diverse range of evaluation techniques has been used to gain insights and refine the original prototype of Collaborative Environment made available in April 2022. Heuristic evaluation, alpha usability tests, focus groups, training sessions, cross-testing sessions with social scientists and pilot owners were carried out. As result, a new version, named beta version, more solid and usable of Collaborative Environment was provided. Along the technical developments the evaluation guestionnaires and log gathering mechanisms were improved and got ready for use in the actual pilot execution subphase.

Chapter "3. Pilot execution subphase evaluation" described the pilots' execution subphase. Execution details at each pilot were provided: goal, co-production approach followed, activities executed, KPIs monitored and their actual values, together with reflections on KPIs and the overall pilot execution. Pilot by pilot evaluation was followed by a user-behaviour analysis exploiting front-end and back-end logging data and the assessment of quality of the co-production process. As result of this process, we were

INTERI INK





able to quantify the resulting quality out the co-production processes enabled by INTERLINK, raising a 3.79 out of 5 score, which is promising but far from conclusive.

Chapter "<u>4. Post-pilot reflection phase</u>" dealt with the post-pilot reflection phase, where pilots reflected about what was useful and what improvements should be made to provide a truly usable, satisfactory, acceptable, and hence, widely adopted, Collaborative Environment. The reflections gathered in this chapter set the basis for further developments to be realized before iteration 2 of the pilots.

References

- [1] «Overview Redmine». https://www.redmine.org/ (accessed on Dec. 22, 2021).
- [2] I. goverNment and ciTizen co-dEliveRy for the digitaL slNgle marKet INTERLINK, «D4.1- List and description of the socio-technical requirements», jun. 2021. Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021. [Online]. Disponible en: https://interlink-project.eu/
- [3] I. goverNment and ciTizen co-dEliveRy for the digitaL sINgle marKet INTERLINK, «D3.1- Identification and specifications of INTERLINKERS», oct. 2021. Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021. [Online]. Available at: https://interlink-project.eu/
- [4] K. Peffers, T. Tuunanen, M. A. Rothenberger, y S. Chatterjee, «A Design Science Research Methodology for Information Systems Research», Journal of Management Information Systems, vol. 24, n.º 3, pp. 45-77, 2007.
- [5] J. F. Nunamaker y R. O. Briggs, «Toward a broader vision for information systems», ACM Transactions on Management Information Systems (TMIS), vol. 2, n.º 4, pp. 1-12, 2012.
- [6] «Developing a gamified mobile application to encourage sustainable energy use in the office - ScienceDirect». https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0148296318305320?vi a%3Dihub (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [7] I. goverNment and ciTizen co-dEliveRy for the digitaL slNgle marKet INTERLINK, «D4.2- Reference architecture model and specification», Dec. 2021. Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021. [Online]. Available at: https://interlink-project.eu/
- [8] I. goverNment and ciTizen co-dEliveRy for the digitaL slNgle marKet INTERLINK, «D5.2 - Communituy Building and Preliminary Use-cases Activities», dic. 2021. Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021. [Online]. Available at: https://interlink-project.eu/
- [9] R. Ros y P. Runeson, «Continuous Experimentation and A/B Testing: A Mapping Study», en 2018 IEEE/ACM 4th International Workshop on Rapid Continuous Software Engineering (RCoSE), May 2018, pp. 35-41.





- [10] X. Yang y T. Hayashi, «Exploring the Effects of Internet Memes in Social Media Marketing through A/B Testing», in 2021 IEEE 23rd Conference on Business Informatics (CBI), Sep. 2021, vol. 02, pp. 97-106. doi: 10.1109/CBI52690.2021.10060.
- [11] E. Kaufmann, O. Cappé, y A. Garivier, «On the complexity of A/B testing», in Conference on Learning Theory, 2014, pp. 461-481.
- [12] D. Siroker y P. Koomen, A/B testing: The most powerful way to turn clicks into customers. John Wiley & Sons, 2013.
- [13] «A/B Testing: The Most Powerful Way to Turn Clicks Into Customers [Book]». https://www.oreilly.com/library/view/ab-testing-the/9781118536094/ Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [14] A. S. Gerber y D. P. Green, «Field Experiments and Natural Experiments», The Oxford Handbook of Political Science, Jul. 07, 2011. https://www.oxfordhandbooks.com/view/10.1093/oxfordhb/9780199604456.001 .0001/oxfordhb-9780199604456-e-050 (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [15] G. W. Harrison y J. A. List, «Field Experiments», Journal of Economic Literature, vol. 42, n.º 4, pp. 1009-1055, 2004.
- [16] «ISO/IEC 25010:2011(en), Systems and software engineering Systems and software Quality Requirements and Evaluation (SQuaRE) - System and software quality models». https://www.iso.org/obp/ui/#iso:std:iso-iec:25010:ed-1:v1:en (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [17] «ISO 25010». https://iso25000.com/index.php/en/iso-25000-standards/iso-25010 (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [18] «SERVQUAL», Wikipedia. jun. 06, 2021. Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021. [Online]. Available at: https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=SERVQUAL&oldid=1027201907
- [19] «Measuring Service Quality Using SERVQUAL Questionnaire». http://www.kinesiscem.com/pdf/ServQual.pdf (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [20] N. Martin, S. Erhel, É. Jamet, y G. Rouxel, «What links between user experience and acceptability?», in Proceedings of the 27th Conference on l'Interaction Homme-Machine, New York, NY, USA, oct. 2015, pp. 1-6. doi: 10.1145/2820619.2825015.
- [21] 14:00-17:00, «ISO 9241-11:1998 Ergonomic requirements for office work with visual display terminals (VDTs) – Part 11: Guidance on usability», ISO. https://www.iso.org/cms/render/live/en/sites/isoorg/contents/data/standard/ 01/68/16883.html (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [22] V. Distler, C. Lallemand, y T. Bellet, «Acceptability and Acceptance of Autonomous Mobility on Demand: The Impact of an Immersive Experience», en Proceedings of the 2018 CHI Conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems, New York, NY, USA: Association for Computing Machinery, 2018, pp. 1-10. Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021. [Online]. Available at: https://doi.org/10.1145/3173574.3174186





- [23]G. Bouckaert y S. van de Walle, «Comparing Measures of Citizen Trust and User Satisfaction as Indicators of 'Good Governance': Difficulties in Linking Trust and Satisfaction Indicators», International Review of Administrative Sciences, vol. 69, n.º 3, pp. 329-343, Sep.. 2003, doi: 10.1177/0020852303693003.
- [24]K. Renaud y J. van Biljon, «Predicting technology acceptance and adoption by the elderly: a qualitative study», en Proceedings of the 2008 annual research conference of the South African Institute of Computer Scientists and Information Technologists on IT research in developing countries: riding the wave of technology, New York, NY, USA, oct. 2008, pp. 210-219. doi: 10.1145/1456659.1456684.
- [25] C. Nadal, C. Sas, y G. Doherty, «Technology acceptability, acceptance and adoption - definitions and measurement», mar. 18, 2019. doi: 10.5281/zenodo.2593687.
- [26] A. S. for P. Affairs, «System Usability Scale (SUS)», Sep. 06, 2013. https://www.usability.gov/how-to-and-tools/methods/system-usabilityscale.html (accedido dic. 22, 2021).
- [27] M. P. Gagnon, E. Orruño, J. Asua, A. B. Abdeljelil, y J. Emparanza, «Using a Modified Technology Acceptance Model to Evaluate Healthcare Professionals' Adoption of a New Telemonitoring System», *Telemed J E Health*, vol. 18, n.º 1, pp. 54-59, Jan. 2012, doi: 10.1089/tmj.2011.0066.
- [28]M. Aoyama, «Persona-Scenario-Goal Methodology for User-Centered Requirements Engineering», in 15th IEEE International Requirements Engineering Conference (RE 2007), Oct. 2007, pp. 185-194. doi: 10.1109/RE.2007.50.
- [29] B. Ferreira, S. Barbosa, y T. Conte, «Creating Personas focused on Representing Potential Requirements to Support the Design of Applications», in Proceedings of the 17th Brazilian Symposium on Human Factors in Computing Systems, New York, NY, USA, Oct. 2018, pp. 1-9. doi: 10.1145/3274192.3274207.
- [30]L. Nielsen, «Personas in a More User-Focused World», in Personas User Focused Design, L. Nielsen, Ed. London: Springer, 2013, pp. 129-154. doi: 10.1007/978-1-4471-4084-9_12.
- [31] J. Salminen, S.-G. Jung, S. Chowdhury, S. Sengün, y B. J. Jansen, «Personas and Analytics: A Comparative User Study of Efficiency and Effectiveness for a User Identification Task», in Proceedings of the 2020 CHI Conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems, New York, NY, USA, Apr. 2020, pp. 1-13. doi: 10.1145/3313831.3376770.
- [32] L. Nielsen, K. S. Hansen, J. Stage, y J. Billestrup, «A Template for Design Personas: Analysis of 47 Persona Descriptions from Danish Industries and Organizations», Int. J. Sociotechnology Knowl. Dev., vol. 7, n.º 1, pp. 45-61, Jan. 2015, doi: 10.4018/ijskd.2015010104.

INTERI INK

Deliverable D5.3





- [33] W. L. in R.-B. U. Experience, «10 Usability Heuristics for User Interface Design», Nielsen Norman Group. https://www.nngroup.com/articles/ten-usabilityheuristics/(Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [34] «When are Surveys an Appropriate Method of Research?», SurveyPlanet. https://blog.surveyplanet.comwhen-are-surveys-an-appropriate-method-ofresearch (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [35] «Designing a questionnaire», Scribbr, jul. 15, 2021. https://www.scribbr.com/methodology/questionnaire/ (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).
- [36] L. Harris y G. Brown, «Mixing interview and questionnaire methods: Practical problems in aligning data», *Practical Assessment, Research, and Evaluation*, vol. 15, n.º 1, Nov. 2019, doi: https://doi.org/10.7275/959j-ky83.
- [37] «Agile Market Research | Semi-Structured Interview Guide», Fuel Cycle, ago. 29, 2019. https://fuelcycle.com/blog/a-quick-guide-to-semi-structured-interviews/ (Accessed: Dec. 22, 2021).





6 Appendix A – KPIs for pilots' evaluation

This appendix showcases the KPIs that were defined at pilots' planning time both globally and locally, i.e., for each specific pilot site.

6.1. INTERLINK global KPIs

H	(PI table for iteration 1		Pilots		
		VARAM	ZGZ	MEF	Means (way of measuring)
Α	Interlink Use and Co- production of Services				
A1	Number of INTERLINKERs used in an actual public service	>= 3	>= 3	>= 3	INTERLINK catalogue indexes public services and INTERLINKERs and returns INTERLINK- powered dependencies on INTERLINKERs
Α2	Number of citizens involved in service customization	> 100	>=100	>=1	Retrieve from collaborative environment number of teams and their members participating in co- production and the time invested by them, frequency of their contributions and so on

Table 21. INTERLINK global KPIs.



Α3	Number of partnership enablers used within INTERLINK service instance	>=3	>=3	>=1	INTERLINKERs are tagged when they are partnership enablers in the INTERLINK catalogue
Α4	Number of citizens registered to INTERLINK platform	> 100	>=100	>=1	Users of collaborative environment indicate in which role (civil servant, citizen) a user is co- producing something
Α5	Number of citizens involved in co-delivered services	> 25	> 50	>=1	Check projects whose co-production process is concluded and members that took part in co- production team
A6	Number of TSOs involved in co-delivered services	> 5	>=2	>=1	When users register, they must indicate their role, if they are citizens, PA representatives, TSOs and so on. When taking part in a team if a user may have several roles, then they need to indicate the role under which they take part.
Α7	Number of new co- delivered services	>=1	>=3	>=1	# co-produced services in the catalogue
Α8	Number of active users (sessions) per co-produced service (cumulative value of summing up users in all co- delivered services per iteration)	> 100	> 100	> 100	Gather usage and participation logs in a co- production process, co- producing a service



Α9	Number and Percentage of shared services between PAs and citizens that were co-produced through INTERLINK platform	> 1 and > 50%	>1and >50%	>1and >50%	# INTERLINKERS used in different co-produced services # public services that have cloned or derived from existing public services Analyse composition of co-production teams
A10	Number of private companies involved in co- delivered services		>= 3		Again count users under role company having taken part in finalized co- production process
A11	Number and Percentage of shared services between PAs and private companies that were co-produced through INTERLINK platform		>= 1 and > 25%		 # INTERLINKERS used in different co-produced services # public services that have cloned or derived from existing public services Analyse composition of co-production teams
A12	Self-sustained services (without public expenses)	1	0		# Co-delivered public services with business model where maintenance and exploitation is carried out by stakeholders other than PAs



A13	Number and variety of INTERLINK business model (investor funding, crowdfunding, revenue sharing models)applied to co-produced services	>= 2	>=2	>= 2	In sustainability phase of co-production model, co- produced artefacts must be associated a business model from a new taxonomy of innovative business models for co- creation
A14	Percentage of users who completed the in-app questionnaires and made improved suggestions	> 50%	N/A	> 50%	Gather results of INTERLINKER instrumented with in-app questionnaires
A15	Number of INTERLINKERs reused in more than one public service	>= 2	>= 2	>=1	Dependencies among INTERLINKERs and public services are retrieved from INTERLINK catalogue
в	THE VALUE PROVIDED BY INTERLINK				
B1	Perception of reduction of administrative and management costs	> 20%	> 20%	> 20%	Survey. Qualitative analysis with previous case study data analysis
B2	Quantity of co-produced initiatives (baseline: number of previously co- produced public services)	> 30%	> 30%	> 30%	Number of co-produced public services and INTERLINKERs



B3	Quality of co-production initiatives				Feedback from end- users about the co- produced services quality based on a quality assessment questionnaire which measures usability, acceptance, trust and adoption. Such questionnaire will be adapted to the final co- produced public services at each pilot site.
Β4	Increased participation of citizens and private- entities in customization of public services	> 50%	> 50%		Simple quantitative tools (such as attendance lists and meeting minutes) can be used to measure frequency and timing of encounters. Socio demographic questionnaires will be filled in by attendees to engagement sessions.
B5	Increased participation of citizens and private entities in co-delivery of public services	> 50%	> 50%	> 50%	Simple quantitative tools (such as attendance lists and meeting minutes) can be used to measure frequency and timing of encounters. Socio demographic questionnaires will be filled in by attendees to engagement sessions.
С	The Users' Perceptions of INTERLINK - Quality				



C1	Usability assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)	>= 4	>= 4	>= 4	Usability questionnaire based on <u>SUS</u>
C2	Trust assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)	>= 4	>= 4	>= 4	Newly defined questionnaire created by INTERLINK based on Trust analysis from SOTA
C3	Acceptance assessment of INTERLINK and co- produced artefacts (in a scale 1-5)	>= 4	>= 4	>= 4	Acceptance questionnaires based on <u>TAM</u>
C4	Satisfaction level of different stakeholders with INTERLINK tools and INTERLINK-powered public services	> 80%	> 80%	> 80%	Satisfaction questionnaire, distinguishing satisfaction level across different stakeholders

6.2. INTERLINK local KPIs

Table 22. INTERLINK local KPIs.

KPI table for iteration 1			Pilots		
		VARAM	ZGZ	MEF	Means (way of measuring)
D	Pilot specific evaluations				
D1	VARAM				



D1.1	Number of service descriptions improved through INTERLINK	>=3		Count the number of service descriptions augmented though Description Augmenter component part of Servicepedia
D1.2	Perceived improvement in service descriptions thanks to INTERLINK from citizens perspective	>= 50%		Satisfaction survey completed by beta testers taking part in service description collaborative sessions aided by Collaborative Environment and Description Augmenter INTERLINKER
D1.3	Perceived improved productivity in collaboratively enhancing public service descriptions	>= 50%		Satisfaction survey
D1.4	Municipalities involved in INTERLINK pilot	> 3		# of local PAs who are involved in the pilot
D1.5	Digital agents involved in INTERLINK pilot (trained)	>10		# of digital agents taking part in co-production processes
D2	ZARAGOZA			
D2.1	Number of co-created activities in eTOPIA_ driven by PA		>=5	Count the co-created activities either through collaborative environment or through eTOPIA_ activity co- creation and management led by PA



D2.2	Number of co-created activities in eTOPIA_ driven by stakeholders	>=3	Count the co-created activities either through collaborative environment or through eTOPIA_ activity co- creation and management led by external to eTOPIA_ parties
D2.3	Number of co-creation activities launched with activity management module	>=5	Count the number of projects started
D2.4	Number of users per month accessing to activity booking module	>=50	Count the number of users making use of activity booking INTERLINKER
D2.5	Engagement growth	>=10%	Growth of citizen participation / attendance to eTOPIA_ activities
D2.6	Loyalty module usage	30	Number of citizens whose contributions have been audited and rewarded by loyalty module
D2.7	Open Innovation feasts supported by INTERLINK co-production process	>=2	Activities organized to promote usage of INTERLINK tools and services
D3	MEF		





D3.1	Number of Public Bodies involved in co-design of PSPM		>= 3	Indicator explanatory	is	self
D3.2	Number of civil servants involved in co-design of PSPM		>= 45	Indicator explanatory	is	self
D3.3	Number of INTERLINKERs used in the PSPM model		>= 5	Indicator explanatory	is	self
D3.4	Number of features contributed by external stakeholders to include into the PSPM model		>=5	Indicator explanatory	is	self
D3.5	Increased representativeness of stakeholders during the co- testing phase		>=25%	Use existing benchmark, weight stakeholder involved in th determine ar representati relevant acto	proces allocati to of proce n increa veness ors	ss as ng a each group ss to se of in
D3.6	Perceived efficiency gains of the strategic planning process (value creation) thanks to INTERLINKERs		>35%	Conduct a the co-desig determine stakeholders of the improvemen	survey n proce perce prc t	after ss to the ption ocess





7 Appendix B – Data models of INTERLINK

7.1. Catalogue data model

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 201 of 229





Figure 58. INTERLINK's catalogue data model

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 202 of 229



7.2. Co-production data model

INTERLINK Delivera

Deliverable D5.3

Page 203 of 229







Figure 59. INTERLINK's co-production data model





8 Appendix C - INTERLINK's Co-producers and End-Users Perceptions questionnaires

This appendix showcases the Co-Producer's and End-Users perceptions on User-based Quality, Value-based Quality, Trust and Acceptance.

These questionnaires are thought to be answered by: a) those (coproducers) who take part in the co-production of a public service or reuse artefacts (public services & INTERLINKERs) made available through INTERLINK co-production tools (Collaborative Environment and Catalogue); and b) those (endusers) who make use of the resulting artefacts from co-production processes enabled by INTERLINK co-production methodology and associated supporting tools, i.e Collaborative Environment and INTERLINKERs.

8.1. INTERLINK Co-producers' Perceptions Questionnaire

INTERLINK Co-producers' Assessment Questionnaire.pdf

8.2. INTERLINK End-users' Perception Questionnaire

INTERLINK End Users' Perceptions Questionnaire.pdf

9 Appendix D – Detailed feedback from VARAM's cross-testing session in pre-pilot subphase

The following feedback was received regarding the two tools used in VARAM's cross-testing session.

Servicepedia

- Not very distinguishable colours in dashboard, why some appear in colour and move you to screen to vote, approve or discard and URL paths send to view in augmented version of web page.
- Augmented version of webpage is by far the most useful part
 - Votes for suggestions should be incorporated there without having to to Admin part, which is less clear more confusing

INTERLINK Deli





- The fonts of the **Refinement Report** should be more homogeneous, its format has to help those embarked in refinement.
 - Several fonts are used in the document, and it feels like a copy-paste from different places without spending time on it. It is suggested to use a single font and to play with sizes, bold and underlining.
- Refinement maybe in two stages:
 - Get feedback (Include all comments)
 - Try to answer (Experts can give solutions and try to came up with ideas)
- Can it be 2 groups users citizens and experts.
- Why did at the beginning encounter many problems, but did not collaborate to find solutions to descriptions
- Bugs for Augmenter/Servicepedia:
 - When you are in the integrated system and you approve it doesn't refresh, show the approved annotations.
 - Should we add another way of voting to add more prevalence?
 - $\circ~$ Links to external pages should not be annotable.
 - View, real time activity need to be implemented for user to interact.
- In general, working with Servicepedia is easier for the user. Its functionality is limited and the tasks to be performed by the user are few and concrete.
 - With an explanation of how to proceed, citizens could be asked to help with the annotations. (Video o Help)
 - The problem is that the whole process of why and for what purpose the citizen's help is requested would have to be managed externally. This management seems to be offered by the collaborative environment, but it is complex to understand because it has so much functionality.
- The problem here is that the icons and representations are not intuitive. They do not clearly reflect the functionality, for example: the eye icon, the icon to generate the report, the behaviour of the fields of each comment (the coloured text allows you to do one thing and the path another).
 - To solve this, it is suggested to use more representative visual icons and to have an explanatory visual legend always at hand.

Collaborative Environment

- It is not obvious, steep learning curve
- Hard to see that a team has to be linked to a project
- Too many tabs are opened





- INTERLINKER word is not very meaningful, better to use Catalogue name
- Some characters in Latvian do not appear well in the menus
- In the Team menus, horizontal scrolling impends seeing that there are buttons in the right hand side
- If you want to edit some task information, the pencil button is quite invisible for the user, it took some time to locate the functionality.
- Bug for the environment:
 - When you create a augmenter description from recommended didn't create it.
 - Go to the guide, select recommended INTERLINKERs, button instantiate (didn't work).
- It is not clear that the way to access the system is by pressing the "Go to dashboard" button. Why not rename the button to login? Also, button needs to be bigger or more visible, it is hard to locate where user can access the platform (there is no such option also in the menu on the upper side of the page.
- Once inside the dashboard, the login button appears very low and as it has no fill colour, it is practically not visible. The central image is very large and makes it difficult to see the button.
- The system does not log out correctly. If I logout I want to exit and the next time I log in I will be asked for my password again. The current behaviour is NOT correct. Another thing is to close the window or tab without pressing logout, in that case it would leave the current behaviour.
- When adding members to a group, is it possible to add suggestions as you write, or is this not done for privacy?
 - Better feedback should be given when somebody cannot be added because it has not logged in previously
- The distinction in the use of the terms process and project is not clear. In creation, "process" is used, but in editing, "project" is used.
- Suggested names for task status: TODO, IN PROGRESS, DONE

rent status of the task:		
AWAITING	IN PROGRESS Ø	FINISHED



10 Appendix E – Collaborative Environment Alpha release

The following snapshots exemplify the look and feel of the alpha release made available alpha testers in INTERLINK's iteration 1' pilot evaluations.

INTER/INK workspace interlinkers			III Q.	0
MYWORKIANSE Welcome, Julen Hann's what's hulppering today				
Your co-production processes	Your teams			
Create new co-production process		Create new team		

Figure 60. Collaborative Environment's Workspace view

	WORKSPACE INTERLINKERS		m Q	0
÷	* Workspace / 🞧 New process			
Suide	Created: February 16, 2022 Last update: February 16, 2022 4:56 PM			ŧ
	NAME OF THE PROJECT New process			
	silan descention of the project Example process description			
	ACTUAL GROAMZATION OF THE SERVICE Example data	AllKOF THE \$903ECT Example data		
	IDEA OF SERVICE TO BE CO-DELIVERED	CHALLENGES OF THE PROJECT		
	Normal : B Z U % E E Z	Normal 2 B I U % IE = 7.		
	Example data	Example data		

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3

Page 208 of 229





Figure 61. Collaborative Environment's co-production process view

* Workspace / 🞧 New process					
	ENGAGE	(esico)	SUSTAN	NULD.	
Identify stakeholders			Understa	nd the different types of s	takeholders
Understand the different types of stakeholders		0			
Visually map the network of stakeholders	Description:	ent actors are engager	in co-production to	create a new service or custo	mizing an already existing service: mibli
Map stakeholders, analyse motivation, skills, expectations	companies, St participate in a	MEs, citizens. Each ac a project. Learn about	tor brings specific ne the different types o	eds and competences in relat f stakeholders and which of th	tion to the service and has different mot nem can add value to your co-productio
Create a contact list of potential network participants	Stakeholde	ers Mapping			
Engage stakeholders	Canvas February 16	2022			
Create awareness and communication	This resource islentification	supports the and velocition of			
Engage citizens in the co-production process	tim stillenaid	Res to engage in a n lean			
· Prepare an engagement plan	TEL	E			
Communicate benefit for stakeholders					
Define legal and ethical framework	1	-			
Define a non-disclosure agreement (NDA)	No asse	ts wet for this task. Insta	ntiate un intertinieer, ples	uw.	
Define a partnership agreement				Add new empty exset 🖂	
🖯 Define data management plan					
Understand how the data flows					

Figure 62. Collaborative Environment's co-production Guide view



Figure 63. Collaborative Environment's co-production Team view



11 Appendix F - Collaborative Environment Beta release

The following snapshots exemplify the look and feel of the beta release made available beta testers in INTERLINK's iteration 1' pilot evaluations.



Figure 64. Collaborative Environment's WorkSpace view

		Recent r	esources		
valuating test	Name	Created	Updated	interlinker	Actions
	Stakeholders-Mapping-Cenves.pptx	May 10, 2022	a leve seconds ago	Taskeleddere Massing Commit	See task
•	Collaborative Environment feedback document	May 30, 2022	a line seconds ago	Correge Drive	See task

Figure 65. Collaborative Environment's co-production Overview view



	KE INTIRLINKERS									
AORE lat	Engage	information about the task								
	E Identify stakeholders			*						
Co-evaluation collaborative environment	Understand the different types of stakeholders	Name Prepare an engagement plan								
(1999)	Map stakeholders, analyse multivation, skills, expectations	Description								
÷	Visually map the network of stakeholders	Create an effective engagement plan w service is well targeted	hich allows you to reach to the	types and numbers of stakeholders	sufficient to ensure that the c	o produced				
Overview.	Create a contact list of potential network participants	with each stakeholder, and protocols for	or accurately documenting your	work for the sake of transparency, a	iccountability and evaluation	of the process.				
Workplan	Engage stakeholders	Current status of the task:								
Guide	Prepare an engagement plan	AWAITING		IN PROGRESS 🖓	HINISHED /					
Team	Create awareness and communication	Time planification:								
Settings	Communicate benefit for stakeholders		Start date	End date						
	Engage sitizens in the co-production process		Conset Horang	San Alla Alla Alla						
	Define legal and ethical framework			other actions						
	Define a non-disclosure agreement (NDA)			Restment TakaK						
	Define a partnership agreement		Recom	Are you sure? Confirm deletion						
	🕀 Define data management plan									
	Clarify the purpose for data collection	Current resources:								
	Understand how the data flows	No resources with								

Figure 66. Collaborative Environment's co-production Guide view



Figure 67. Collaborative Environment's co-production Workplan view



	ACE INTERLINKERS	-							m Q	0
AORE lat	Teams and i									
Co-evaluation collaborative environment		Name	Role	Members	Actions		Name	Role	Email	Actions
(a program)	*	Corevillation	Default	000	8/	0	Diego Lopez de Ipiña Goutalez de A	taza Administrator	idçena@deutio.es	
+	-	cu-dburyers	Co-observers *	000	8 -			Arki new individual		
III Overvlew ≁ Workplan	Roles		+ Add new learn							
Il Team	Name	Description			View resources	Create resources	Delete resources	Add teams or individuals	Change settings	Actions
¢ Settings	Administrator	Administrator rigi	to for the project		0	0	00		0	
	Unauthenticated	Rights for unauth	enticated users in case the process i	s public	×a	× o	× 0	x.s	× D	1
	Default.	When users or te	ims added, these are the rights by d	visult	× o	× o	× a	× e	× 0	1
	Co-observers	Co-observers /ole			0	× D	× 0	× e	× =	18
					Create	a new role				

Figure 68. Collaborative Environment's co-production Team view

12 Appendix G – Collaborative Environment iteration 1 release

The following snapshots exemplify the look and feel of iteration 1 release made available beta testers in INTERLINK's iteration 1' pilot evaluations.



Figure 69. Collaborative Environment's Workspace view



EINTERLINK *	ORRANZE ORDANIZATIONS CATALOGUE	• • 4	
1000	Coproduction process overview		
	PROGRESS RESOURCES (0)		
Apps4Good	Set coproduction process data		
English	1 The co-production process data are a set of attributes that serve to define the process to be carried out.		
Overview	Co to settings section		
Guide	[OPTIONAL]Set coproduction process administrators		
Workplan	3 Administrators can update the coproduction process information, add permissions to the tree illems or add new administrators.		
Feam	Ge to settings section		
	Select the coproduction schema		
	S The schema has been selected. Now you can access the Guide and the Workplan sections. Nevertheless, you can undo this action (clear the coproduction tree) in the settings section.	
	Grant permissions over process to co-producer teams and start co-producing through Guide view		
	C At least a permission has been created.		
	[OPTIONAL]Add new resources to the coproduction process		
	8 💿 Now you can add resources to the tasks in the coproduction process. For that, navigate to the Guide section and add new resources in the Resources tab avail	able in each task	
	Add an resource in the guide section		

Figure 70. Collaborative Environment's Overview view

	ENGAGE	0051(M)	BUILD	50574	uu +				
Apps4Good	Name Underst	tand the different type	INFORMATION ABOR	UT THE TASK	RESOURCES (0)	FERMISSIONS (1)	1.		,
neev de splan m m m m m souther m souther m souther m souther m souther m souther s	Usually compar particip Curren Avabin Time p	different actors are en nies, SMEs, oitizens, Er ale in a project. Learn It status 9 Janufication: Not set	gaged in co-productio ch actor brings specifi about the different typ	n to create a ic needs and es of stakeho	new service or cust competences in rela- liders and which of t	omizing an already e tion to the service a them can add value t	existing serving has different to your co-	nice: public bodie erent motivations production proce	s, priva to is

Figure 71. Collaborative Environment's Guide view.



INTERLINA	TUNUS AGE 0			_						-		
100					ENGAGE	DESIGN	BUILD	SUSTAN	+			
		DAY			WEEK			MONTH			YEAR	
Apps4Good						Oldobel				Novimber		
to programme	3	20	27	04 October	- 11	18	25	01 November	08	15	22	
English						Engage						
					9	Identify stak	eholders					
PEVHEW					5	Understand the	Stilerent types of stal	koholders.				
de					2							
rkplan					-	Map stakeholder	s, analysa motivation	, stats, inspectations				
					+ _	Visually map the	notwork of stakehold	in a contract of the contract				
em_					4	Create a contact	ill of patentia netw	ork participants				
tings					4.5	Engage stak	eholders					
					6							
					2	rengare an erga	Managing Press					
					+1,	Coeffe Inverenes	d and communication	5				
					40	Communicatio be	metil for stakeholdke	1				
					47	1 Engage citizens	in the co-pressuon	PRODUCT				
						Define local	and athical fram	niunele				
					2	Denne legar	and ethical fram	ework				
					41.7	Définé à non-dis	clósure kareemkint (l	(DA)				
					40	Define a partner	shid agreement					
					4.	Define data	nanagement pla	in				

Figure 72. Collaborative Environment's Workplan view.

	WORKSPACE ORGANI	ZATIONS CATALOGUE					6	• • •	0
								Add new permission to th	e overall process
Apps4Good		Apps4Good Team			For	View resources	Creaté resources	Delete resources	Actions
English		Citigens		Overall process		4	~	×	(# /
S Diverview									
na Guide									
→* Workplan									
t Settings									
2.		Figu	wa 73 Calla	uborativo Environ	mont's T	og mylew			

13 Appendix H – Co-producers' context and experience

The following snapshots exemplify the look and feel (*co-production facets*) of iteration 1 release made available beta testers in INTERLINK's iteration 1' pilot evaluations.





13.1. Experience in co-production

MEF

In quali tipi di attività collaborative di co-produzione ha partecipato in passato, prima di venire a conoscenza di INTERLINK?

25 responses



"In which collaborative co-production activities have you taken part in, before knowing about INTERLINK?"



21

VARAM

25 responses

²¹ Translated based on the original results





Kādās sadarbības/koprades aktivitātēs Jūs esat piedalījušies pirms INTERLINK?

67 responses



22

"In which collaborative co-production activities have you taken part in, before knowing about INTERLINK?"





23

ZARAGOZA

 ²² The questionnaire performed by VARAM included several test samples which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -those corresponding with the 1,5% of the sample-.
 ²³ Translated based on the original results.




¿En qué actividades de coproducción colaborativa has participado antes de conocer INTERLINK? 6 responses



"In which collaborative co-production activities have you taken part in, before knowing about INTERLINK?"



Figure 74. Experience feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.

13.2. Participation in co-production

MEF

6 responses





In quale modo ha contribuito alla creazione o al miglioramento di un servizio pubblico o privato definito tramite co-produzione?

25 responses



24

In which way have you contributed towards a new or an improved public or private (co-produced) service?"

25 responses



25

²⁴ The questionnaire performed by MEF included as possible answers -Not available, Have not participated and I have never thought about it-, which were not included in the original questionnaire, which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -just 1 single answer of the complete sample, corresponding to the 4%-.

²⁵ Translated based on the original results.





Kādā veidā Jūs esat palīdzējuši jauna vai uzlabota privātā vai publiskā pakalpojuma kopradē? 67 responses



26

In which way have you contributed towards a new or an improved public or private (co-produced) service?"



27

²⁶ The questionnaire performed by VARAM included several test samples which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -those corresponding with the 1,5% of the sample-.
²⁷ Translated based on the original results.





¿De qué manera ha contribuido a la creación o mejora de un servício público o privado (coproducido)?

6 responses



In which way have you contributed towards a new or an improved public or private (co-produced) service?"





Figure 75. Participation feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.

13.3. Motivation in co-production

MEF

²⁸ Translated based on the original results.





Quale è stata la Sua motivazione interna per partecipare alla co-produzione di un servizio? Cosa l'ha spinta a co-produrre un servizio pubblico? 25 responses



29

Internal motivation for your participation in co-producing a service. What made you to co-produce a public service?"



²⁹ The questionnaire performed by MEF included as possible answers -Not available, Have not participated and I have never thought about it-, which were not included in the original questionnaire, which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -just 1 single answer of the complete sample, corresponding to the 4%-.





Jūsu iekšējā motivācija dalībai koprades procesā. Kas lika Jums piedalīties publiskā pakalpojuma kopradē?

67 responses



Internal motivation for your participation in co-producing a service. What made you to co-produce a public service?"







Motivación interna para tu participación en la coproducción de un servicio. ¿Qué te ha llevado a coproducir un servicio público?

6 responses





Internal motivation for your participation in co-producing a service. What made you to co-produce a public service?"



 The initial solution of the problem was not acceptable for the society

2. I have been working on similar solutions/problems that could serve as an example

3. I used the initial solution of the problem once and found several problems

4. I am part of teams that have been previously working in this procedure/problem and I have similar ideas to improve the solution/address this problem



Figure 76. Motivation feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.

13.4. Reason in co-production

MEF

INTERLINK

Deliverable D5.3





In virtù di quale ragione ha partecipato alla co-produzione di un servizio? 25 responses



30

Reason for your contribution to co-producing a service. Why did you contribute to co-producing a service?



³⁰ The questionnaire performed by MEF included as possible answers -Not available, Have not participated and I have never thought about it-, which were not included in the original questionnaire, which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -just 1 single answer of the complete sample, corresponding to the 4%-.





Iemesls Jūsu devumam pakalpojuma koprades procesā. Kāpēc Jūs piedalījāties pakalpojuma kopradē?

67 responses

Personīgās pieredzes dēļ (prof						-48 (71.6%)
Balstoties uz sarunām ar citām		-10 (14.9%)				
Balstoties uz viedokļiem no soc	-4 (6%)					
Personīgo interešu dēļ			-20 (29.9%)			
TEST TEST	-1 (1.5%)					
lūgums iesaistīties	—1 (1.5%)					
Vēlēšanās uzlabot lietotājiem s	—1 (1.5%)					
C)	10	20	30	40	50

31

Reason for your contribution to co-producing a service. Why did you contribute to co-producing a service?

67 responses	67	responses
--------------	----	-----------

1. Because of my personal experiences (professional background)						- 48 (71.6%)
2. Because of conversation with other stakeholders		-10 (14.9%)				
3. Because of opinions gathered from social media/Internet	-4 (6%	b)				
4. Because of my personal interests			-20 (29.9%)			
	-1 (1.5%)					
	-1 (1.5%)					
	-1 (1.5%)					
	D	10	20	30	40	50

³¹ The questionnaire performed by VARAM included several test samples which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -those corresponding with the 1,5% of the sample-.





Motivos de tu contribución a la coproducción de un servicio. ¿Por qué has contribuido a la coproducción de un servicio?

6 responses



Reason for your contribution to co-producing a service. Why did you contribute to co-producing a service?



Figure 77. Reason feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.

13.5. Inspiration in co-production

MEF





Da dove ha tratto ispirazione per il Suo contributo al processo di co-produzione? 25 responses



32

Where does your contribution for the final proposal come from?

25 responses 1. The solution is adapted from another public administration service 16 (64%) 2. The solution is adapted from the private sector 0 (0%) 7 (28%) 3. The solution is brand new 1 (4%) 4. No participation -1 (4%) 5. It did not occur to me 1 (4%) 5 0.1 15 20

 $^{^{32}}$ The questionnaire performed by MEF included as possible answers -Not available, Have not participated and I have never thought about it-, which were not included in the original questionnaire, which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -just 1 single answer of the complete sample, corresponding to the 4%-.





Kas ir pamatā Jūsu gala risinājuma idejai?

67 responses



33

Where does your contribution for the final proposal come from?



³³ The questionnaire performed by VARAM included several test samples which are not relevant for the final consideration of the results -those corresponding with the 1,5% of the sample-.





Inspiración. ¿De donde viene tu aportación para la propuesta final?





Where does your contribution for the final proposal come from?



Figure 78. Inspiration feature on co-production across the 3 pilots.